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Definitions

TEAFSERRAIN - BRI X Fe 77 H I - A T Al # R L7 -

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms and expressions have the meanings set forth below.

(IR R ]
“AGM”

4RI ) ok [ A A AR A )
“Articles” or

“Articles of Association”

Lt YN

“associate(s)”

EnE=ieg

“Audit Committee”

[EHe)
“Board”

[ ]
“China”, “PRC” or “People’s

Republic of China”

[ A ] BT IE SR |

“Company” or “Zhenro Services”

[BAE AL

“connected person(s)”

Eelidie
“Controlling Shareholders”

[ €A~ Al

“Corporate Governance Code”

[#F

“Director(s)”

ARNERZFZZEAN AN BRI
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 16 June 2023

A B LA AR AR (AR ERT)

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time

HA BB 2% 2

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HEGFIZAY

the audit committee of the Board

HHE

the board of Directors

g KRB - (EEELE AR B N RAE I 25T S > BROCEE 7 A Prde
b > LR ~ WIRRRIAT B K 2

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, excluding Hong Kong,

Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

IERRBEBMARAR » R oF— E+ 7 +L HTER SR &ML #
ORA IREAT AR > BB B B (BefiACHE - 6958)

Zhenro Services Group Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 17 December 2018, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6958)

HA BB 2% 2 3%

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HA BB 2% 2 3%

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

L B - P ) 4 S A T R

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

AL AR

director(s) of the Company

2 EZ B M A R/ Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Definitions

[
“GFA”

[kt ]
“Global Offering”

[ AL
“Group”

[#oc
“HK$” or “HKD” or
“Hong Kong Dollars”

[ it |
“Hong Kong” or “HK”

[ P st e |
“IAS”

[ L]

“Listing”

[ b B

“Listing Date”

[k
“Listing Rules”

[

“Main Board”

[ HEHESy Al
“Model Code”

[ I o2 554
“Mr. GQ Ou”

jeie E

gross floor area

AR AT R ) A 0 B 3 R 4 4y
the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering of the Shares pursuant to

the Prospectus

A5 B SLHR A7) (BT » 7/ RS — M I 4 )
the Company and its subsidiaries (or as the context refers, the Company and any one or

more of its subsidiaries)

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

FprE N BRI 7 i L 7
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

E3epigt il

International Accounting Standards

B AR T

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board

TERTHAELHATH > BRBERECHT B H
10 July 2020, the date when the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange

W P 2 A (REARBRR BT ~ e s AR At U B 0
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended,

supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

B BT R RS R 5 5 B (LR HARETIT G ) A SE i S B GEMOIE BELEL I A7
(8

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which
is independent from and operates in parallel with the GEM of the Stock Exchange

TR IR % B B T AT N S TRE SR A 5 MRS I
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

BB S IR — > BRI SL T
Mzr. Ou Guogqiang, a Shareholder and son of Mr. ZR Ou

£ Annual Report 2022 3
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Definitions

[RCR R 5EA:
“Mr. ZR Ou”

[ AR PR

“Over-allotment Option”

[RIERE

“Prospectus”

[FrZ 5 g ]

“Remuneration Committee”

Eispiil
“Reporting Period”

[ AR
“RMB” or “Renminbi”

w5 MR ]
“ﬁO

[ ety )
“Share(s)”

s s
“Shareholder(s)”

RYES

sq.m.

[ Bt 52 |
“Stock Exchange”

BORSSEE > AN RIS — > BB R e 1 A0
Mr. Ou Zongrong, one of the Controlling Shareholders and father of Mr. GQ Ou

BABB SR T % Wi

has the meaning ascribed to it in the Prospectus

AN HMAZZ ZREAH ZFIUH MR ER
the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2020

EHEHMERE

the remuneration committee of the Board

BE-Z - HFF A= —HIEEE
for the year ended 31 December 2022

H o E B LR
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

B LG 571 B R IR K B UR M) (RORRFIETT ~ Wi sl bl b7 X
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

A RS T (EL0.002 8 TERY A » H LAV TT A 5y Bt E R Tl
ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a par value of US$0.002 each,
which is (are) traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main Board

LS ZEDN
holder(s) of the Shares

Ik

square meter(s)

B A A R
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

4 E 5{ % % " Pk 22 %] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Definitions

[ Bt g 22 ) |

“subsidiary(ies)”
&5 |

“WeiQiang”

[MER

“WeiTian”

[ &1 |

“WeiYao”

[M&IE

“WeiZheng”

[ESRTH 36 )

“Zhenro Commercial

Management”

[EAREEE 22wl ]

“Zhenro Group Company”

HA L AR % 2 8 3%

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BRERARAT > hZF— 4+ H = HAE S B A B 5 s BT i A
BREAEAT - Hh B e 2 6 A - RO —

WeiQiang Holdings Limited (f& 58 A PR/ 1), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 13 December 2018, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. GQ Ou and is one of the Shareholders

BREARAT > 1 ZF—/FE+ZH = HAE S B A B s BT i A
BREEAT - HMBECRREE2E0A AR —

WeiTian Holdings Limited (f# K4 A PR/ Al), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability on 13 December 2018, which is wholly-owned by
Mzr. ZR Ou and is one of the Controlling Shareholders

BREIRA AT » R =T — E+ = B A5 4 B 5 i O A
BREEAT  HMBECRREE2E0A MR —

WeiYao Holdings Limited (fFREHE AT BR/A ), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability on 13 December 2018, which is wholly-owned by
Mzr. ZR Ou and is one of the Controlling Shareholders

BIEZRARAT > hZF—/FE+ 1 = B AE B A B 5 s i T i A
IRIAEAF > KBRS E 2GR - BERORZ —
WeiZheng Holdings Limited (f#1IE¥ A FR/AH]), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 13 December 2018, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. ZR Ou and is one of the Controlling Shareholders

IEREREE A RAR > A= F—ELH ~ 48 HAER BB A REAEL
A RAEEMIgEFEREZ A —F A A =T HRE AL R R EM
J& 2 7]

Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Led.* (IEZE P £ E A BRA A, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on 26 May 2014 which has been a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company since 30 June 2021 upon its acquisition by the
Group

IEASEMA AR (IR AR @ IEREMARAR) - R—JULAEAA =+~
FAE B L A BREAE A A - ph S 28 5 AR BRI R S 2 70 Tl B 91.99% 2
8.1%

Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Fujian Zhenro Group Co., Ltd.), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on 31 August 1994, which is owned as to
91.9% by Mr. ZR Ou and 8.1% by Mr. GQ Ou

£ Annual Report 2022 5
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Definitions

[IEZEH7E |

“Zhenro Properties”

[IEZEHAE SR 1 |

“Zhenro Properties Group”

N Siid

“Zhenro Properties Holdings”

[%
“op

* (GG

IEAMAERMARATR R F—EEA A+ — HAER 28 &L AL
WA REEATR > HBO BT L (B AU5E - 6158)

Zhenro Properties Group Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 21 July 2014, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6158)

IESEHE S HC W 2~ 7]

Zhenro Properties and its subsidiaries

IS ERERRMARAF > RoF—TEEH Z+ = A B A PR
AT BIESEHE 1) 2 M 2 7

Zhenro Properties Holdings Company Limited* (1F 4% EE ¥ B A PR/ /), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability on 22 July 2015 and a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Zhenro Properties

An

percent

6 1E 48 MR % 45 B A PR 7] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Xiaotong (Chief Executive Officer)
M:r. Kang Hong

Non-executive Directors

Mzr. Liu Weiliang (Chairman)
(appointed as non-executive Director on 11 November 2022
and chairman of the Board on 20 _January 2023)

Mr. Huang Xianzhi

(resigned on 20 _January 2023)
Mr. Chan Wai Kin

(, resigned on 11 November 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Haiyue
Mzr. Au Yeung Po Fung
Mr. Zhang Wei

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mzr. Zhang Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Haiyue
Mzr. Liu Weiliang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mzr. Au Yeung Po Fung (Chairman)
Mz. Lin Xiaotong
Mzr. Zhang Wei

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mzr. Liu Weiliang (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Haiyue
M:r. Au Yeung Po Fung

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wang Yi
Ms. Lin Sio Ngo

43R Annual Report 2022
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Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

7 i 7 X il O
it o S B AT RS

ik

AT
BIEKEHR183 5
AL

17M1712-17169% 8k

DA 5 T By o 29 0
Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mzr. Lin Xiaotong
Mr. Wang Yi

Ms. Lin Sio Ngo (Alternate authorised representative)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE AND TRANSFER AGENT IN THE CAYMAN

ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

8 LA MFHEE AR AT Zhenro Services Group Limited
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http://www.zhenrowy.com
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6958

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND HEADQUARTERS
IN CHINA

1/F, Building 7, Honggiao Zhenro Center
666 Shenhong Road

Minhang District

Shanghai, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Construction Bank, Putian Licheng Branch

China Construction Bank, Nanchang Qingyunpu Branch
Bank of China, Jiangsu Province Branch

China Construction Bank, Shanghai Caoyang Road Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Hongqiao Business District Branch

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

http://www.zhenrowy.com

STOCK CODE
6958
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Chairman’s Statement

R AL BER

A NTRER ) £ R R R AR s =&
ARt A=t HILEE AR E
75 o

e3 )

Wt B o A AR B 2 AR A
RM1,335. 8 A @D #14.6% % AR
11413 &0 BNEBRA S AR
280.7 F #5G - 1 2% 4F [A] BA 1 5 F1 49 25 A R
We177.6 EEE G 5 B AR AN RE AL 10 I
BA /AR 281.3H &0 > M AFF BN
TR N 174.6 5 BT ©

22845 il
TERCUE S ERRE B R - B
ETGREERE BT > WETEER
PR - (AfE A EBECR Y 2%
TTEEM BB Y EITERE - LB
b > WY SERRBS AT SR W A T LB R
4 398 T 3 B B A S IR 1 R ER i > SR
ENERFERLD T A B eER T
Wy FEAT SR RS 1 TR 32 708 Pk BELAS T
ok -

TR AR ARSI N I T L
FNRIT WIS B E R
Bl AU S RS > ) 2 SE B B R A
JRy B 22 S Al S5 AT - 5 Ak dak i R 5 2 7
AET) - L BLEH BB LR TR R -
T LIRS > IS RIR M R R > AR E
FRAHTIE MR Bs ot EL > B P > s
B 7 R ) B s A A AR RE
$RTF > AT R AR o

Dear shareholders,

I am pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

RESULTS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group decreased by
approximately 14.6% to RMB1,141.3 million as compared with RMB1,335.8
million for the corresponding period last year; the loss for the period was
approximately RMB280.7 million as compared with the profit of approximately
RMB177.6 million for the corresponding period last year; the loss attributable
to owners of the parent for the period was approximately RMB281.3 million,
as compared with the profit of approximately RMB174.6 million for the

corresponding period last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, under the influence of the overall macroeconomic climate and real
estate market regulatory policies, the development of the property industry
experienced temporary setbacks. However, there were opportunities in the midst
of crises. The fluctuations in macro policies and within the property industry
promoted the consolidation of the property industry and the concentration
of market shares, and the property service industry gradually became the
backbone of urban governance and life services which has been developing
more independently, bringing the property industry from behind the scenes
to the front of the stage, and showing the society the broad applicability and

irreplaceability for the property industry to provide services to citizens.

In 2022, the Group actively responded to market changes and strived to
improve its market-oriented expansion capabilities. With its abundant resources
integration advantages in deep engagement areas, the Group promoted multi-
format development layout and diversified business innovation, strengthened
urban service operation capabilities, and achieved steady growth in business scale
and performance. At the same time, with its profound brand accumulation, the
Group continued to improve its service quality, optimized its management and
control standards, and utilized the strength of digital technology to strengthen
organizational efficiency and promote the improvement of its operations, thus

laying a solid foundation for sustainable development.

10 IEMFEEEA AT Zhenro Services Group Limited
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TE AR REEFEE S R IEAETE
WEEB R - 12 L - B At~ B -
e 45 2 4 S i ) SRR o o s
BT o fESERERIR I > AEEIREER
AR B E 2 WA TE B8 W - &
i~ R A o BLILIE R o AR 4R [ E R A
AL B9 B 1 A B R B o8 3 1 4 R IR
A - ) R RSO U P AL o AR R
AR ~ 72 ) A R % i 367 M AR I T B %€
B o AR A A AR RE T 7 {1 8 R R OB
Y A R SR A B

AR A AR B A B ) 2E R E H 1
HEERE37200 o G A EE R ([d 5
WD B —F T H = — I
Im&ys. o\ &Ik - ER 1091 B &
oAk EBERETEK R —F T
A=+F—HEsmao | &Kk - 23
#180.1 A K -

T AR AL HETT > R I 4 38 2 v A

FATGEA - M5 R Y A SR A B
(9 A A 47 > IE SE MBS U AR 5 T RS
O SEARR SRR SRR DAL R
BRL B D B SRR TT > TEE
SR 5 it BT TR R T R R OR > AE
TRTTAR S BT TORMRES A O — 2
TH o R TEROLRE  EMER - i/
Z It EE - WIB TR SE [MET Y MR
51~ A T A 25 ]~ 2RI [ 3T iR
Bl SEva TSR HE ] - A8 [RUH 2685 ]
e — R~ Bk A OomER
GFAERE o [ > R AR THE T >
A0 R AR AL BRI - HfES)
5 S R Tt > B BUIRHS SRR

Focusing on advantageous regions and tracks, and expanding the

service offerings

In 2022, the Group continued to deepen and broaden its advantageous regions,
expanded its business scale, and entered into 5 new cities in addition to various
advantageous regions such as Shanghai, Nanjing, Suzhou and Fuzhou. In terms
of business sector selection, the Group focused on the types of projects with
more room for growth and value, such as commercial offices, public construction
and industrial parks. Meanwhile, the Group promoted the transformation of
high-quality strategic resources through innovative and optimized cooperation
models and continuously improved expansion channels, and continued to achieve
breakthroughs in the fields of urban services, space management and business
management. During the year, the Group acquired 7 high-quality commercial

offices, urban services and commercial operational management projects.

During the Reporting Period, the number of property service projects under
management of the Group increased to 372. The contracted gross floor area
(“GFA”) reached approximately 109.1 million sq.m., representing a net increase
of approximately 5.0 million sq.m. as compared to 31 December 2021, and
the total GFA under management reached approximately 80.1 million sq.m.,
representing a net increase of approximately 9.1 million sq.m. as compared to
31 December 2021.

Promoting the improvement of service quality, and stabilizing the
lifeline of the enterprises

We are well aware that service quality is the lifeline for the long-term
development of property enterprises, and Zhenro Services has always adhered to
the brand philosophy of “providing heartfelt and personalized services for your
well-being” (“MRFFH L » S48 /1K), and insisted on quality improvement
by providing products and services in a high-quality, caring and intelligent
manner. We maintained the pursuit of high standards in terms of product and
service quality, further upgraded its five major service brands in 2022, and
proposed a “Happiness Spectrum” product system to lay out diversified tracks.
We made efforts to build a beautiful life in every scenario and at every moment,
through creating Rongju (4J&) “residential property services”, Rongqi (5
1) “business enterprise property services”, Rongcheng (483) “urban services”,
Rongshang (4 7) “business management” and Rong+ (4 +) “innovative
business”. Meanwhile, through the creation of benchmarked projects, we further
expanded our service touchpoints, refined our management, promoted the

improvement of our services and brands, and achieved service quality upgrade.

£ Annual Report2022 11
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SEUE R s L B0 B A T R
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[ B A A R SR T R s R B
an ELRE B > 2 36 T 4R (I G B AT R A S A
BRETI IR o 3 — 20 AL A S 1 19 248
A PRI THEENCR

Zhenro Services cares for its customers. In 2022, we launched programs such as
“Happiness, Prosperity and Pleasure — Community Cultural Activity System”,
“Health Ambassador”, “Healthy Dining Table”, which presented care services to
customers from all walks of life and from needs in the cultural, social, emotional
to other aspects, which strengthened community operation, and enabled
customers to experience the humanistic care of Zhenro Services while enjoying

the high-quality services it provided.

Expanding the community value-added business and creating

digital intelligent services

With the continuous improvement of project density in deep engagement areas,
the Group fully utilized the resource advantages of projects under management
and deeply integrated the needs of property owners, actively expanded high-
quality business resources, promoted the innovation of community value-added

business, and improved the ecological chain of community services.

In 2022, we focused on customers’ daily needs such as food, accommodation and
travel needs, and relied on the Group’s online platform “Rong Xiang Life” (“4¢
ZHEE) to promote the linkage of online and offline resources and capture
business opportunities from multiple aspects. While creating growth points of
community retail and life service businesses, we also promoted the improvement
of the ecological chain of community services. Meanwhile, through the effective
coordination of high-quality commercial project resources and community
value-added service business, the Group launched “Rong Xiang Market” (“4¢
ZHETH) to realize resources sharing and deep mining of community resources,

and to promote the improvement of community and value of commercial space.

In terms of intelligent operation, the Group unswervingly implemented the
technology strategy and promoted the development of intelligent properties.
During the year, through the gradual integration of the panorama plan
management platform “Rongzhantu” (“4&EK[E ") with the Group’s business,
the operation efficiency, management standards and service quality were
effectively improved, and the digital transformation of the information coverage
and management of the Group’s business operations was gradually realized.
At the same time, through the optimization and upgrade of multiple online
service scenarios of the online service platform “Rongzhihui” (“£%5 "), the
digitization and intelligent management of the community was effectively
promoted, and the management and control efficiency and quality experience
were improved, which further optimized the Group’s operation costs and
improved the operating efficiency while providing a more convenient and

comfortable living environment for property owners.

12 M EE AR A Zhenro Services Group Limited
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OUTLOOK

In 2023, with the adjustment of domestic policies and the introduction of
multiple economic recovery policies, the property management industry will
start a new development cycle in 2023. The positioning of the property industry
will become clearer, and the development logic will shift from extensive
development to refined development. The property enterprises will continuously
strengthen their independent expansion capacities, and will continue to explore
the track and business space in line with their development segments. The

service offerings of the property industry are expected to continue to expand.

In the face of new market opportunities and challenges, the Group will continue
to take a more active strategic attitude, continue to adhere to the provision of
quality services, and consolidate the fundamentals of basic business; strengthen
coordination with the government in deep engagement areas, actively explore
innovative cooperation models, improve the business coordination of business
management and property management so as to strengthen its own market-
oriented expansion capability and independent development capacity, actively
explore and expand business categories, and stabilize the foundation of
independent and sustainable development; meanwhile, in order to unswervingly
promote the development of intelligent properties and steadily improve its
operational efficiency, the Group will implement the technology strategy, set up

a digital platform, and build core competitiveness.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express our sincere appreciation
to all shareholders, investors, business partners and customers for their support,
and all employees for their dedication and hard work. We will continue to
uphold our service philosophy of “providing heartfelt and personalized services
for your well-being” (“NRFH L » SERE LR, create a beautiful life for our

customers, and continue our efforts on contributing to the prosperity of society.

Zhenro Services Group Limited
Liu Weiliang
Chairman of the Board
31 March 2023
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Business model of the Group

The Group has four business lines, namely, (i) property management services,
(ii) value-added services to non-property owners, (iii) community value-added
services, and (iv) commercial operational management services, forming an
offering of integrated services to its customers that cover the entire value chain

of property management.

. Property management services. The Group provides a wide range of
property management services to property developers, property owners,
residents and commercial property tenants. The Group’s property
management services primarily include (i) cleaning services, (ii) security
services, (iii) landscaping services, and (iv) repair and maintenance services
for both residential and non-residential properties and commercial

properties.

J Value-added services to non-property owners. The Group offers a
comprehensive range of property-related business solutions to non-
property owners, which primarily include property developers. The
Group's value-added services to non-property owners primarily consist of
(i) sales assistance services (involving assistance to property developers in
showcasing and marketing their properties, cleaning and maintenance,
security and visitor management), (ii) additional tailored services
customised to meet specific needs of customers on an as-needed basis and
sales of goods, (iii) housing repair services, (iv) preliminary planning and

design consultancy services, and (v) pre-delivery inspection services.

U Community value-added services. The Group provides community value-
added services to property owners and residents. The community value-
added services primarily include (i) home-living services, (ii) car park
management, leasing assistance and other services and (iii) common area
value-added services to improve the living experience of customers and to

maintain and enhance the value of their properties.

. Commercial operational management services. The Group provides
commercial operational management services to the tenants and the
customers, which primarily include (i) brand and management output

services; and (ii) sublease services.

14 IERMFEEEG AT Zhenro Services Group Limited
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The Group believes that its property management service business line serves
as the basis for the Group to generate revenue, expand its business scale, and
increase its customer base for its community value-added services to property
owners and residents. The Group’s provision of value-added services to non-
property owners enables it to gain early access to property development projects
and establish and cultivate business relationships with the property developers,
giving the Group a competitive advantage in securing engagements for property
management services. The comprehensive range of the Group’s community
value-added services business line helps to enhance its relationship with
customers and improve their satisfaction and loyalty. The Group believes that
its four business lines will continue to enable it to gain greater market shares

and expand its business presence in China.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Continuous quality growth in both area and scale

The Group adhered to the strategic target of rapid and quality expansion on
management coverage area, and has achieved speedy growth in contracted GFA
and GFA under management through its diversified business development. As
of 31 December 2022, the Group’s contracted GFA amounted to approximately
109.1 million sq.m., and the number of contracted projects totalled 462,
representing an increase of 4.8% and 4.1%, respectively as compared with
those as at 31 December 2021. For the year ended 31 December 2022, GFA
under management reached approximately 80.1 million sq.m., and the number
of projects under management totalled 372, representing an increase of
approximately 12.9% and 3.9%, respectively as compared with those as at 31
December 2021.
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TREINBE ZF AR ZFE 4+ The table below indicates the movement in the Group’s contracted GFA and
TAEtT - HIREEALEN SRR GFA under management for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:
T B R A 2 S )

REFZA=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
TR I S

2022 2021
aH 1 A Zi
o€ i e T fee g e il
Contracted GFA under Contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA management
(T-FIK) (T-FIK) (TFIrK) (TFIK)
(000 sq.m.) (000 sq.m.) ('000 sq.m.) (000 sq.m.)
A As of the beginning of the period 104,055 70,982 87,397 41,277
HET &0 New engagements” 5,475 9,481 15,631 28,678
g Acquisitions? - - 1,490 1,490
ko Terminations® (437) (335) (463) (463)
AR As of the end of the period 109,093 80,128 104,055 70,982

FftaE - Notes:

(1) HEAEBEMNETHE S BT EEah 1) With respect to residential communities that the Group managed, new engagements

9y S R 2 S B S 2 O A R A R AR primarily included preliminary management contracts for new properties developed by
AR A D S A SRS AR AL B 0 1 A I A property developers and property management service contracts for residential communities
HRRHS A [ o replacing their previous property management service providers.

) SIEEMEEMARAR ([IERFHEFE]) (h (2) This represented the GFA of 1.49 million sq.m. under the management of Zhenro

AEER R —AENH T IJUH ) s Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (*Zhenro Commercial Management”), which was
HEMA 498 BT K - acquired by the Group on 29 June 2021.

(3) PR EARE BN T A A SA Y 3) These terminations included the Group’s voluntary non-renewal of certain property

WA AT > H T i AR 48 B E i T AR SR B B management service contracts as it reallocated its resources to more profitable engagements
WA BRI BN TR FT4 » DB LA LY in an effort to optimise its property management portfolio.

A o

B
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Geographic presence of the Group

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has expanded its geographic presence to 55

cities in China.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s total GFA under

management as of the dates indicated and total revenue generated from property

management services by geographic location for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 respectively:

RtA=+—HE®&E+T A=+ —HIEEE

As at 31 December or for the year ended 31 December

. S CE T F
2022 2021
1% 1EE
S iy KA ji iy WA
GFA GFA
under under
management Revenue management Revenue
(FFik) AREFL % (TTFirk) ARETL %
(000sq.m.)  RMB000 %  (000sq.m.)  RMB000 %
RZAMMIED  Yangtze River Delta Region® 26,403 326,023 46.1 22,754 336,610 51.1
RN Bohai Rim Region® 2,755 44,617 6.3 4,575 38,819 5.9
HIPEERAREES  Midwest Region® 25,403 154,690 21.9 21,310 124,841 19.0
I PI MU Western Straits Region® 25,567 181,183 25.7 22,343 158,058 24.0
At Total 80,128 706,513 100.0 70,982 658,328 100.0

Ff &k Notes:

(1) AR BITE R = A W S T A 0y S S ) P el (1) Cities in which the Group has property management projects in the Yangtze River Delta

AR B BN AR FEL - B R Region include Shanghai, Nanjing, Suzhou, Hefei, Jiaxing, Taizhou, Chuzhou, Lu'an,
M N~ FEW RN TEM - B N B Wuhu, Changzhou, Suzhou, Xuancheng, Chaohu, Fuyang, Hangzhou, Taizhou, Nantong,
B~ BUM ~ BN T - R ERE M - B Xuzhou, Sugian, Chizhou, Zhenjiang and Wuxi.

RIS -

(2) 7 A [ 7 i v i [ A 0 2 R TE T B 2) Cities in which the Group has property management projects in the Bohai Rim Region
FERAE  WEE -~ WG RO - include Tianjin, Jinan, Luoyang and Zhengzhou.

() ARSRITE G A I B W S UH 9 ST )

BFEEE - BHE R R W% B W
M Al R R B R E L
M BT - R - R

(4) R VI G o A 0 S R A
AR~ T SR FE s B =8
M FHE Al B R -

)

Cities in which the Group has property management projects in the Midwest Region
include Nanchang, Yichun, Changsha, Wuhan, Xi'an, Ganzhou, Suizhou, Shiyan,
Xiangyang, Yueyang, Chongqing, Chengdu, Ji'an, Huanggang, Guangyuan, Baoji,
Kunming and Xianyang.

Cities in which the Group has property management projects in the Western Straits Region

include Fuzhou, Putian, Pingtan, Nanping, Quanzhou, Sanming, Zhangzhou, Yunfu,

Zhongshan, Xiamen and Foshan.
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VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO NON-PROPERTY
OWNERS

The Group provides value-added services to non-property owners, which mainly
comprise (i) sales assistance services (involving assistance to property developers
in showcasing and marketing their properties, cleaning and maintenance,
security and visitor management), (ii) additional tailored services customised to
meet specific needs of its customers on an as-needed basis, and sales of goods,
(iii) housing repair services, (iv) preliminary planning and design consultancy
services, and (v) pre-delivery inspection services. Most of these non-property

owners are property developers.

In 2022, revenue from value-added services to non-property owners decreased
by 49.8% to approximately RMB186.5 million as compared to approximately
RMB371.2 million in the same period of 2021, mainly due to the decreased
demand for services such as sales assistance services and additional tailored
services in the projects developed by the Group and the partner property
developers. The revenue from value-added services to non-property owners

accounted for 16.3% of the Group's total revenue.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue generated from

{BAR 5 78 A S A B A its value-added services to non-property owners for the period indicated:
BETA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December
TR TET AR
2022 2021
AEHTTT % ARETI %
RMB’000 % RMB000 %
T EH IR Sales assistance services 95,011 50.8 217,679 58.6
BEAME i IRBs B Additional tailored services and
7R A 8 B sale of goods 62,081 33.3 102,791 27.7
5 EAEE IR Housing repair services 19,714 10.6 32,671 8.8
GIESEE AV & & Preliminary planning and design
e consultancy services 5,694 3.1 10,340 2.8
S AT T Ak R Pre-delivery inspection services 4,017 2.2 7,740 2.1
At Total 186,517 100.0 371,221 100.0
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COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

The Group provides community value-added services to property owners and
residents under management, which mainly comprise (i) home-living services, (ii)
car park management, rental assistance and other services, and (iii) common area

value-added services.

In 2022, the revenue from community value-added services decreased by 45.8%
to approximately RMB143.5 million compared to approximately RMB264.5
million in the same period of 2021, mainly due to the decrease in demand for
real estate brokerage services related to parking spaces in the projects under
management due to the impact of the economic environment. In 2022, revenue

from community value-added services accounted for 12.6% of total revenue.

The following table sets forth the revenue breakdown of community value-
added services for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

BRETAST—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
TR TR

2022 2021
ANR¥ T % ARWF %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
FIEHE G g Home-living services" 108,684 75.7 125,646 475
HAE I B Car park management, leasing
A A @ assistance and other services? 21,324 14.9 119,946 45.4
N FLm R R Common area value-added services® 13,466 9.4 18,902 7.1
At Total 143,474 100.0 264,494 100.0
FfE Notes:
(1) HIETORmEE - B RS - ZaiE (1) It mainly includes services such as cleaning, group purchase, turnkey furnishing, home

s B S SR B R -

) HEEGFEM LG EE AT - m TR
A0y 2 T {67 AT IR 9 5 A4 R R A A
o

() HEEAIER IR R AL R I I R TR
BUA -

maintenance and utility fee collection services.
(2) It mainly includes income from the management of and assistance provided in relation
to parking lot leasing, provision of real estate brokerage services related to properties and

parking spaces to property owners and other services.

(3) It mainly includes common area advertising space and service income from common area

leasing.
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COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

Since the acquisition of Zhenro Commercial Management by the Group in
2021, the Group provides commercial operational management services to the
tenants and the customers, which primarily include (i) brand and management

output services; and (ii) sublease services.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of commercial operation projects under
management of the Group reached 28, and the total GFA under management
of the Group was approximately 1.7 million sq.m. The commercial operation
projects under management are located in Fuzhou, Changsha, Putian,
Changzhou and Taixing. During the Reporting Period, the revenue from
commercial operational management services was approximately RMB104.8

million.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from four major businesses: (i) property
management services; (ii) value-added services to non-property owners; (iii)
community value-added services; and (iv) commercial operational management
business. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately RMB1,141.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
14.6% compared with RMB1,335.8 million in the same period of 2021.
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The following table sets out the revenue contribution of each business segment

during the period indicated:

RETZH=T—HI4EE
For the year ended 31 December

“ERCTH B —F A PALE B HRE
Percentage Percentage Growth
2022 of revenue 2021 of revenue rate
AEH T % ARWTT % %
RMB000 % RMB 000 % %
VS HIRE Property management services 706,513 61.9 658,328 49.3 73
I3 T (S Value-added setvices to
non-property owners 186,517 16.3 371,221 27.8 -49.8
Al 3 A B Community value-added
services 143,474 12.6 264,494 19.8 -45.8
T S0 7 A T R Commercial operational
management services 104,789 9.2 41,745 3.1 151.0
A5t Total 1,141,293 100.0 1,335,788 100.0 -14.6

L/E -8 Y& PR N PN
BeB2_F__H+-HA=1t—HIL%#
BE > W EE IR IR A A AR 706.5
HEG o EAREEMARANG1.9% - HH
WA RS A ERELRREY R
I T 7 A A ] L O % b A A R AR A
B B EBUH A B K5 = 07 % 5 SR T 8K -
JE 2 TR MRS 0D > TG 32 2 e A W
IR 355 B R A0 7 il IR 355 4 IR 365 14 75 oK B K i
T RERTE o A A I 1S (B RS Ui A 9 Tk D
Ty A E B TE E A LA AR B Y B A RS A
IR 35 5 oK 468 s B 5 5 28l 2D T 3

A

A 1) B A AL G B TR ~
BWEM - A R B RA ~ KBRS~ B
TE MR ~ TS R - W =B S
168 155 B A

Property management services are still the largest source of income for
the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from property
management services reached approximately RMB706.5 million, accounting for
61.9% of the total revenue of the Group. Such revenue growth was attributable
to the rapid growth of GFA under management, which was due to the Group's
continuous cooperation with Zhenro Properties Group and its commitment
to expanding the third-party customers base. The decrease in value-added
services to non-property owners was mainly due to the substantial decrease in
the demand for services such as sales assistance services and additional tailored
services. The decrease in revenue from community value-added services was
mainly due to the decrease in demand for real estate brokerage services related
to parking spaces in the projects under management due to the impact of the

economic environment.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group mainly includes staff costs, subcontracting
charges, greening and landscaping costs, utilities expenses, taxes and surcharges,

depreciation and amortisation, office expenses and community activity costs.
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During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately
RMBS888.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 2.1% as compared
with approximately RMB907.7 million in the same period of 2021.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s gross profit decreased by
approximately 40.9% from approximately RMB428.1 million for the same
period in 2021 to approximately RMB252.9 million.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of the Group decreased by
9.8 percentage points to 22.2% from 32.0% for the same period in 2021.

The gross profit margin of the Group by business line is as follows:

BETZH=t—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December
TR CECE Stk 1)

Changes in
gross profit
2022 2021 margin
L EFIF F 15

Gross Gross
profit profit Percentage
margin margin points

% %
YIEE IR Property management services 229 24.3 -1.4
I T 1B MR Value-added services to non-property owners 3.6 18.5 -14.9
A 488 (R Community value-added services 28.4 67.0 -38.6
P E IR Commercial operational management services 41.6 52.9 -11.3
At Total 22.2 32.0 9.8
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Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the administrative expenses of the Group
increased by approximately 8.5% from approximately RMB145.4 million for
the same period in 2021 to approximately RMB157.7 million, mainly due to
the increase in marketing personnel costs and related expenses arising from the

Group's efforts in expanding third-party customers.

Impairment losses on financial assets, net

During the Reporting Period, the impairment losses on financial assets, net
of the Group was approximately RMB126.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately 359.2% as compared with approximately RMB27.6 million
for the same period in 2021. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
impairment provision made by the Group for receivables arising from related
parties, based on the principle of prudence, taking into consideration the change
in the credit risk resulting from the continuous downturn of the real estate

industry.

Impairment of goodwill

During the Reporting Period, the goodwill impairment of the Group was
approximately RMB228.8 million (2021: RMB nil). Due to the fierce market
competition and the cyclical fluctuations of the real estate market, the future
revenue growth rate and gross profit margin of Zhenro Commercial Management
decreased compared with the forecast, resulting in the corresponding goodwill

impairment of the Group.

Income tax credit/expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded income tax credit of
approximately RMB22.2 million as compared to income tax expenses of
approximately RMB55.6 million for the same period in 2021, primarily due to

the reversal of deferred income tax of approximately RMB54.7 million in 2022.

Loss attributable to owners of the parent company

During the Reporting Period, the loss attributable to owners of the parent
company for the year was approximately RMB281.3 million as compared with

the profit of approximately RMB174.6 million for the same period in 2021.
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Property and equipment

The property and equipment of the Group mainly included machinery,
electronic equipment, motor vehicles, leasehold improvements and other
equipment. As of 31 December 2022, the property and equipment of the Group
was approximately RMB5.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
21.7% as compared with approximately RMB7.6 million as at 31 December
2021.

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables mainly derive from revenue from property
management services, value-added services to non-property owners and brand
and management output services. As of 31 December 2022, the Group's trade
receivables amounted to approximately RMB282.7 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 9.1% compared with approximately RMB310.8
million as of 31 December 2021. The increase was due to the Company’s active

collection of receivables.

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

The Group’s prepayments, other receivables and other assets primarily consist of
payments made on behalf of the property owners such as payments for the utility
bills and public facility maintenance fund, as well as security deposits with local
authorities and deposits in relation to the public biddings. As of 31 December
2022, the Group’s prepayments, other receivables and other assets amounted to
approximately RMB127.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
126.8% as compared with approximately RMB56.4 million as of 31 December
2021. The increase was due to the growth of the Group's business scale, which
has led to the increase in deposits, security deposits and reserve funds required

in the daily operations and transactions payments with business units.

Trade payables
As of 31 December 2022, the Group's trade payables amounted to

approximately RMB149.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
26.0% from approximately RMB202.1 million as of 31 December 2021. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the business size of the Group’s
value-added services to non-property owners and the decrease in the purchase of

goods from independent third-party providers.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards
its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet the funding requirements of the Group in the

foreseeable future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's principal use of cash was working
capital and deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries, which was mainly funded
from cash flow generated from operations and proceeds raised from the initial

public offering of the Company.

The Group’s interest-bearing and other borrowings are all denominated in RMB
and bore interests at fixed rates. As at 31 December 2022, the borrowings of
the Group amounted to RMB100.1 million, as compared to RMB118.1 million
as at 31 December 2021. From the respective drawdown dates, the Group’s
interest-bearing and other borrowings repayable within one year were RMB85.0
million and those repayable over one year were RMB15.1 million as at 31
December 2022, while those repayable within one year were RMB87.5 million
and those repayable over one year were RMB30.6 million as at 31 December
2021. Except as disclosed herein and apart from intra-group liabilities, the
Group did not have any outstanding loan capital, bank overdrafts and liabilities,
or other similar indebtedness, debentures, mortgages, charges or loans as at 31
December 2022.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings in the amount of
RMB21,140,000 were secured by the pledge of 70% equity interest in a
subsidiary, Jiangsu Sutie Property Management Co., Ltd. (31 December 2021:
RMB27,180,000).
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FINANCIAL RISKS

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. All of the Group's

bank borrowings are obtained with fixed interest rates.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. The currency in which
the Group denominates and settles its transactions is mainly RMB. Any
depreciation of RMB would adversely affect the value of any dividends the
Group pays to shareholders outside of the PRC. The Group currently does not
engage in hedging activities designed or intended to manage foreign exchange

rate risk.

Debt to asset ratio

The Group's debt to asset ratio calculated as total interest-bearing bank
borrowings divided by total equity at the end of the respective period was
approximately 0.09 times as of 31 December 2022 (as of 31 December 2021:
approximately 0.08 times). Debt to asset ratio equals interest-bearing bank

borrowings divided by total equity.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures during the Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2022, save as disclosed in this annual

report, there was no significant investment held by the Group.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed under “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING” below, the Group had no plan for any

material investments or capital assets.

EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 4,197 employees (as
of 31 December 2021: approximately 5,034 employees). During the Reporting
Period, the total staff costs were approximately RMB446.3 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB499.4 million).

In terms of talent training, the Group will further enhance its employee training
program with internal and external resources. The employee training programs
primarily cover key areas in the Group’s business operations, which provide
continuous training to its existing employees at different levels to specialise and

strengthen their skill sets.

The Group adopts remuneration policies similar to its peers in the industry.
The remuneration payable to its staff is fixed by reference to the duties and
the prevailing market rates in the region. Discretionary performance bonus
after assessments is paid to employees to reward their contributions. The
Group is subject to social insurance contribution plans or other pension
schemes prescribed by the local governments and is required to pay on behalf
of its employees, a monthly social insurance fund covering pension fund,
medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and
unemployment insurance, and the housing provident fund, or to contribute

regularly to mandatory provident fund schemes on behalf of its employees.

In determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management, the Group will take into account salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors

and performance of the Group.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The net proceeds raised in connection with the initial public offering of the
Company’s shares in July 2020 (including the exercise of the over-allotment
options) amounted to approximately HK$1,267.7 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,141.7 million) (the “Net Proceeds”).

The proposed use of the Net Proceeds (as reallocated and announced on 19 May

2021) and the actual usage of the Net Proceeds up to 31 December 2022 are set

AR A = BB IS RO R R out below:
ikz 27 R
REZF°0F
clfme  +oA=t-H
BBk Proposed use of EHAREKN ERCHA W LY WABA B
il Net Proceeds sk P st T e
Utilised Net Unutilised Net
Net Proceeds Proceeds Total Proceedsasof ~ Expected
after during Utilised 31 December  time of full
Reallocation the year Net Proceeds 2022 utilisation

AREEET ARFGErT  AREGET  ARFGEL
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

FE AL BN Development of the Group's 2283 320 87.2 1411 R-EZ=
REEHRY information management TTAZ—H
system Before 31 December 2023
5 Eﬁ?’xﬁ:m&:@ ff Further development of the 171.2 27.0 714 99.8 A
(AR | IRtk Group's “Rong Wisdom” T AZ A
(B E) service software Before 31 December 2023
— MR R General business opetations 114.2 - 114.2 - A
BEES and working capital Not applicable
PR EATEER Acquisition of Zhenro 628.0 - 628.0 - MR
Commercial Management Not applicable
it Total LI4L7 9. 900.8 2409

BIGE : ZCOVID-199 G w8 » R - ZAEMATHR
R AR SRR A BTY o TR R G 4
IR TR - BURERIRN R T BT A
FOEET DA HATEREE A -

Note:  As a result of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, there had been a decrease in
marketing activities such as industry exhibitions and forums and delay in undertaking
large-scale contracts in 2022, and it is currently expected that the remaining Net Proceeds
will be fully utilised before 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Xiaotong (FKEEY), aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 6 November 2020. He is also a member of the Remuneration

Committee.

Mr. Lin has more than 31 years of experience in engineering management
and company operation management related matters. From August 1983 to
March 1997, Mr. Lin assumed the role of a teacher at the Fujian University
of Technology, which is a full-time undergraduate college in Fujian province
and one of the first batch of pilot universities for the “Outstanding Engineer
Education and Training Program” by the Ministry of Education of the PRC.
During this period, Mr. Lin was in charge of the teaching of engineering
management. From March 1997 to October 2002, Mr. Lin served as the head
of the real estate development station of Fuzhou Construction Bureau, which
is a functional department established by the Fuzhou Municipal Government.
From October 2003 to March 2012, Mr. Lin had taken up positions such as the
branch general manager and the vice president of Fujian Jindi Group, a private
enterprise engaged in property development in the PRC. Mr. Lin further served
as the general manager of Fuzhou Shiou Property Development Co., Ltd. (f&M]
R o 7E 2E 72 7)) from March 2012 to May 2014. In May 2014, Mr. Lin
joined Zhenro Properties, and held various senior management positions within
its subsidiaries. During the period from May 2014 to February 2018, Mr. Lin
acted as the general manager of Zhenro (Fuzhou) Real Estate Development Co.,
Led. (1IE4E (FRM) B 23R A BR/A Al). From February 2018 to July 2018,
he was an assistant to the president at Zhenro Properties Holdings and he was
also a general manager at Zhenro (Tianjin) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(ESE (RE) BEEREARAAD. From July 2018 and until immediately
prior to joining the Company in November 2020, Mr. Lin had served as the vice
president of Zhenro Properties Holdings and later as the general manager of the

Bohai Rim Region of Zhenro Properties Holdings.

Mr. Lin graduated from the Fujian University of Technology located in Fuzhou
city, Fujian province in the PRC in July 1983. He also obtained an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from Tsinghua University in the PRC
in July 2010.
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Mr. KANG Hong (FE’E), aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director on
5 February 2021.

Mr. Kang joined Zhenro Properties Group in October 2018, and held various
senior management positions within its subsidiaries. From October 2018 to
December 2020, he served as a secretary to the board and the chief financial
officer of Zhenro Properties Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhenro
Properties Group in the PRC. He has also concurrently served as a general
manager of the strategic operation center at Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (“Zhenro
Group”) since May 2020. Since January 2021, he has served as an assistant to
the president of Zhenro Group and is responsible for the financial management
and strategic operation center at Zhenro Group. Prior to joining Zhenro Group,
Mr. Kang held financial management related positions in various corporations.
From 2005 to 2012, Mr. Kang assumed the roles of financial manager and
financial director at AP Oil International Limited (BREKA A PR A, a
company headquartered in Singapore. From 2013 to August 2014, Mr. Kang
served as a regional deputy general finance manager at Dalian Wanda Group
Co., Ltd. (R A 3 SR 18 A A PR/ 7). From September 2014 to December
2016, Mr. Kang successively served as an executive deputy general manager at
Sincere Property Holding Group (1 fe HuZE #E /B 4E M) and a general manager
of the finance department at Tusincere Technology City Investment Group Co.,
Led. RS 0 (5 BB S B A FRZA AD), a group company in the PRC
co-invested by Sincere Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Ih{E#EM (%EE) AR
F]) (“Sincere Holding Group”) and Tus-Holdings Co., Ltd. RSt 22 FRE i
A BRZAF]) which is principally engaged in the development of technology
cities. From the beginning of 2017 to September 2018, Mr. Kang served as an
assistant to the president, the chief financial officer and an executive director
at Chongqing Sincere Industrial Co., Ltd. (EEMEEANEEARARA),
a large-scale property developer in the PRC co-invested by Sincere Holding
Group and Greenland Holdings Group Company Limited (fk 4% % 4E 8 4 R
).

Mr. Kang obtained a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from
the University of Birmingham in the United Kingdom in July 2013. Mr. Kang
is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) and the Association of International Accountants (AIA).
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (GE{lIE), aged 54, was appointed as the chairman of the

Board and non-executive Director on 6 December 2019. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee of the Board. Mr. Huang was resigned as the
chairman of the Board, non-executive Director and chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board on 20 January 2023. He is primarily responsible
for providing strategic advice and recommendations on the operations and
management of the Group. Mr. Huang has over 20 years of experience in the
PRC real estate industry. Prior to joining the Group, from October 1998
to October 2014, Mr. Huang served in various positions in Zhenro Group,
including the chief financial officer, the assistant to the chief executive officer,
the vice president primarily responsible for financial affairs and the executive
vice president where he was responsible for overall management, consecutively.
He has been a director and president of Zhenro Group since November 2014.
Mr. Huang has served as an executive director and the chairman of the board
of Zhenro Properties Holdings, a subsidiary of Zhenro Properties, since March
2016. Since September 2017, he has served as an executive director and
chairman of the board in Zhenro Properties primarily responsible for the overall
management of the investment strategies and business development. He has also

acted as the chief executive officer of Zhenro Properties since November 2019.

Mr. Huang graduated from Jimei Advanced Specialized Institute of Finance and
Economics (555 BB 55 BRHEAY) (now known as Jimei University (45
KE)) in the PRC in July 1989, where he majored in investment economics.
He also obtained a master’s degree in business administration from The Open
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2012. Mr. Huang was
conferred the accountant qualification in December 1997 by MOF.

Mr. Huang was awarded the “Outstanding Professional Manager in China for
the Year of 2008” (2008 4F & H g 5 H Bk SE 45 2 ) by the International
Human Resources Management Association (F%U\jj %%%@Tﬁl@),
Editorial Department of Business Reviews of Peking University (LK%
T A ¥ ) and Professional Magazine of the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security (N JTE PRI Er (R EE M 584 in October 2008,
and “Chief Accountant in China for the Year of 2011”7 (2011 B8 48 & & Fifi
iy 7)) by China Association of Chief Financial Officers (*@?@@ﬁ%fﬁl
) in December 2011. He was awarded “Figure with Contributions to China
Real Estate Brands in 2015 (2015 B 7 1 7 5 BB RR A 4) joincly by
Enterprise Research Institute of the Development Research Center of the State
Council (%5 Bt 58 JEWF T AR FEWFFEIT), Property Research Institute of
Tsinghua University (15 3 K £ 5 #i & B 72 T) and CIA in September 2015.
He received “Top 100 Figures with Contributions to China Real Estate Industry
in 2016”7 (2016 EFE'?W%E?@E%A%) award from China Real Estate
TOP10 Research Group ("FEIE HLE TOP10 W5 41) in March 2016. In
September 2018, he was awarded “Leaders in the China Real Estate Industry
for the Year of 2018” (2018 ™[ 5 15 $8 % A¥J) by China Real Estate
Association (11 7 b SE €.
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Mr. Liu Weiliang (BIfEFE) (‘M. Liu”), aged 39, was appointed non-executive
Director on 11 November 2022 and Chairman of the Board on 20 January
2023. He is also Chairman of the Nominating Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. He is also the Executive Director
and Chairman of the Board of Zhengrong Property Group Limited, whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6158).

Mr. Liu has over 14 years of experience in the real estate industry. He obtained
a bachelor’s degree in engineering management from Changsha University of
Science & Technology in 2007. Mr. Liu joined Zhenro Properties Group Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively “Zhenro Property Group”) in June 2016 and
has held various key positions successively, including: (i) the deputy general
manager of Zhenro (Changsha) Real Estate Co., Ltd. (LT:% (1) BEHRA
7) and the project manager for Yichun project of Zhenro Properties Holdings
from June 2016 to August 2017; (ii) the general manager of the merger
department of the strategic investment centre and subsequently the general
manager of the strategic investment centre of Zhenro Properties Holdings
from August 2017 to May 2019; (iii) the vice president of Zhenro Properties
Holdings from May 2019 to January 2021; and (iv) a director of Zhenro
Properties Holdings since November 2019. Mr. Liu has held several positions
in Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. since November 2018. He served successively as the
deputy general manager of the strategic operation centre, the general manager of
the human resources department, the assistant to the chief executive officer and

the executive vice president.

Before joining Zhenro Property Group, Mr. Liu worked in several real estate
companies in the PRC, including (i) the development manager of Evergrande
Properties Changsha Real Estate Co., Led. (IR RHERIPE /A F]) and the
deputy general manager of Chenzhou Real Estate Co., Led. (HEMI & 3£/ 7))
successively from July 2008 to May 2012; and (ii) the deputy general manager
of Heneng Properties Changsha Real Estate Co., Ltd. (A REHEE R VP B 3E/A F])
from May 2012 to June 2016.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. MA Haiyue (F5i#§#), aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 June 2020. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the nomination committee of the Board. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of the Group. Mr. Ma has over 19 years of experiences in financing and
auditing. Prior to joining the Group, from May 2002 to November 2004, Mr.
Ma worked at Ernst & Young Da Hua. From November 2004 to July 2017,
Mr. Ma held various positions at KPMG Huazhen LLP, including as an audit
manager from November 2004 to June 2007, an audit senior manager from
July 2007 to September 2011 and an audit partner from October 2011 to July
2017. From July 2017 to June 2018, Mr. Ma served as an executive director
at the investment banking division of Morgan Stanley Huaxin Securities Co.,
Led.. He has worked at Venus Medtech (Hangzhou) Inc. CHLN BB B R 2
JieAn A B2 Al), a company principally engaged in manufacture and research
and development of medical device and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2500), where he has served as chief financial officer
mainly responsible for its finance management since June 2018 and also a joint

company sectretary since July 2019.

Mr. Ma obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics (ﬁ/@ﬁj?&ﬁkﬁ) in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Ma is a

member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Name of company Principal business

B HE L PR PR ) TR 46 A o LA
Powerlong Real Estate & MEEEER
Holdings Limited T 1% bR

(B HEH AR IR A IR A )

development and

Commercial real estate

and Senior Management

Mr. AU Yeung Po Fung (BB, aged 55, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 10 June 2020. He is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the nomination committee of
the Board. He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice on
the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Au Yeung has extensive
work experience in the real estate industry. He held various senior management

positions in the following companies in the real estate industry:

L R e AREE A e Ll

Place of listing and

investment, property

management and

hotel development

I E A S A PR )
Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited GHFIE 4 2 B 8%
A7)

B

Development of
properties for sale

and investment

1R e P P PR BHREHERE
(T B A IR R ) AT

—KME L)

Fosun Industrial Holdings
Limited (15 /2 1 7€ P
ﬁﬁﬁ/l}ﬁ]) (a subsidiary of

Fosun International Limited

(18 BB FE A PR 7))

Global real estate
investment and

management

BB SE LA 1

stock code Position Period of service
W32 Bl HIEMBEE “EFELE—
(B 5% - 1238)  Chief financial officer ARZ%F——
Main Board of the 1A
Stock Exchange November 2007 to
(stock code: 1238) October 2011
W32 Bl T TR A AR TR :?—~$+ﬂ
(e ARaE - 16) O3 ) G A e s
Main Board of the BH 8 A BR 2 m A ‘f‘_ﬂ
Stock Exchange BT B E A October 2011 to
(stock code: 16) BE (W) December 2013
Chief financial officer
at Sun Hung Kai
Real Estate Agency
Led. (gL
REAFRA ),
a subsidiary of Sun
Hung Kai Properties
Limited (Mainland
operations)
W32 Bl T4 RlEGkERMEE —F-WNEA
(AR - 656)  Vice president and F R
Main Board of the chief financial officer A
Stock Exchange February 2014 to
(stock code: 656) August 2014
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Name of company

ZRRPE (SR M) AIRA TR
Sansheng Holdings (Group)
Co. Led. (AR (42 )

HIRAH)

L HEE A () AR

AT

FEEEH
Principal business

Ve R B LB K

Property development

and investment

YR 5

Property development

i R B A A%

Place of listing and

L 4A

Jies 2

Shanghai Huadong Properties
(Group) Limited (LigEEE
U (R ARAF)
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stock code Position Period of service
WA B 1A HREMBEER=EL =T LEAA
(RS - 2183)  EEERIAER FF—)\F
Main Board of the Chief financial officer —H
Stock Exchange and vice president of  August 2017 to
(stock code: 2183) Sansheng Real Estate January 2018
Group
AR Rl “E-NETNA
N/A Vice president roF T~
—H
February 2019 to
January 2021

Mr. Au Yeung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in Hong Kong in November 1990
with a bachelor’s degree in business studies. He was admitted as a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in November 2000, a fellow of
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)) in May 2003, and a fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in July 2015.
Mr. Au Yeung was also certified as a chartered financial analyst (CFA) of the
CFA Institute in September 2006.

During the period between 1998 and 2001, Mr. Au Yeung was a director of
Uniford Asia Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and dissolved by
striking off pursuant to section 291 of the then Companies Ordinance (Chapter
32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (as in force before 3 March 2014) on 18 May
2001. Mr. Au Yeung has confirmed that such company was not in operation and
was solvent at the time of dissolution. Mr. Au Yeung has further confirmed that
there was no fraudulent act or misfeasance on his part leading to the striking off
of such company and he is not aware of any actual or potential claim that had

been or will be made against him as a result of the striking off of such company.
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R

AR

Name of company

e R 2 PR AT PR 2 )

Kiu Hung International

Holdings Limited

(R B A AT R 22 D)

R R IR SR P AT PR
China LNG Group Limited
(FEIR AR A R

YNEID)

o 5 4 7 A PR )
GR Properties Limited
(BB A R )

A A R Bt
AR

Shanshan Brand Management
Co., Led. (A2 fh R

Bt AR 2 )

AR5 3 E A PR AT PR A )
Redsun Properties Group

Limited (345 0 2 4 [

A BRZ )

FHEEH
Principal business

70 = < ¢/ WS LN |
il e

Toys, resources and
leisure-related

business

SN E i
b3

Asset management
and new energy

development

ES Y SR
Property development

and management

it~ TR )

S T LB LS

PUNGES
Design, marketing

and sales of formal

and casual business

menswear

7 M E B %

Real estate

development
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Place of listing and

stock code

W32 Bl T4
(RARAEE - 381)
Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 381)

W32 Bl T
(BRARAEE - 931)

Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 931)

W32 Bl T4
(et k- 108)
Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 108)

W22 Bl T4
(B RE%E - 1749)
Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1749)

W22 BT AR
(et AREE = 1996)
Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1996)

ek or
Position

BT ES
Independent non-

executive director

B AT ES
Independent non-

executive director

BT E R
Independent non-

executive director

BT E R
Independent non-

executive director

BT S
Independent non-

executive director

Mr. Au Yeung holds or had held directorships in the following listed companies:

i
Period of service

ZER-RELH
TR
LA
May 2016 to
September 2016

ﬁﬁ*/\ @JCH
—JUE
RH
July 2016 to
September 2019

—F—LHEEA
S S <o
|
July 2017 to
February 2020

—F-NERA

R AE
avs

May 2018 to June
2021

R )R H
%4
June 2018 to

present
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kA Bt LR AR Bk
Place of listing and
Name of company Principal business stock code Position
BT RO EEARL A SRBMMRITR  BCHTGEM B FTES
eBroker Group Limited L RE RS (MeAn 5% - 8036)  Independent non-
(BFXHEBEABAF)  Financial technology GEM of the Stock executive director
solution provider Exchange (stock
code: 8036)
HGR P AR B R YSERES - WIE  BTER B FRTES
Zhongliang Holdings Group W YERE RE (MeAn 5% = 2772)  Independent non-
Company Limited (H1% Wk Main Board of the executive director
Ve SE A PR Al Property development, Stock Exchange
property (stock code: 2772)
management,

property leasing

and management

consulting
UESEEIYLYE Siik= B S

H R () AR B2 fir 4

Sinic Holdings (Group) Property development (5% : 2103)  Independent non-
Company Limited (8 /] and property leasing i executive director
Vel (SE) ARRA T Main Board of the

Stock Exchange

(stock code: 2103)Nere

bt AR AR A PREERIGE LT BhaCHr £k BT ES
HIPER A 7] (BeffRH% - 6900)
Sunkwan Properties Group A holding company Main Board of the Independent non-
Limited that develops and Stock Exchange executive director

sells residential (stock code: 6900)

property

Note:  Delisting on 13 April 2023

i REFTEENA T = HRGE BT

s 4 14
Period of service

AV
e
June 2018 to

present

“E A
w4
June 2019 to

present

—Z-NEAA
EXS
August 2019 to

present

“E R
=4
October 2020 to

present
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Mr. ZHANG Wei (ikf#), aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 June 2020. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, from December 2011 to January
2015, he served as director at asset management department at Legend Holdings
Corporation (BHREFEME 47 BR/A ), a company principally engaged in
strategic investment business, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3396). From January 2015 to February 2019, he
worked as the general manager of legal department at China Vanke Co., Ltd.
(BB SER AN A PR/ ), a joint stock company principally engaged in the
property development and property services whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (H share stock code: 2202) and on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (A share stock code: 00002). Since July 2018, he has served as
an independent director at Appotronics Corporation Limited (FEYINEIERHE
JBeAR AT R 7)), a company principally engaged in laser display technology
development, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 688007). From February 2019 to September 2021, he has worked at
360 Security Technology Inc. (CEAFLRRHERAABRA T, an internet
and mobile security product and service provider listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601360), where he served as the vice president and
chief legal consultant mainly responsible for legal affairs, investment and
urban industry segment. Since December 2021, he has served at Appotronics
Corporation Limited (ARYIDEWERML R A B A), a laser display
technology development company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 688007), where he has served as a director and vice president mainly

responsible for legal affairs, human resources, administration, infrastructure.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a master’s degree in civil and
commercial law from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (" g F 8B
N ) (formerly known as Zhongnan University of Law (FRFBIEKER)), in
the PRC in July 1996 and June 2000, respectively. He also obtained a master’s
degree and a juris doctor’s degree from the Indiana University McKinney School
of Law, in the United States in May 2004 and August 2007, respectively.
Mr. Zhang also holds the New York qualification certificate to practice as
an attorney and counselor at law, conferred by the Appellate Division of the

Supreme Court of the State of New York in the United States in April 2008.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wang Yi and Ms. Lin Sio Ngo are joint company secretaries of the
Company.

Mr. WANG Yi (£28), aged 41, has over 15 years of experience in financial
management, internal control and risk management, as well as audit related
matters. From May 2005 to December 2012, Mr. Wang worked as regional
financial controller at China United Travel Co., Ltd. (B ik A B A PR
), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600358)
during which he was mainly responsible for financial management, financial
and auditing related matters. From December 2012 to August 2014, he served
as financial manager of Qoros Automotive Co. Ltd. (BIEGRHE A BRA ).
From August 2014 to April 2016, Mr. Wang served as audit director at Dalian
Wanda Group Co., Ltd. (R 8 2 4R B A A7 IR /A7), a multinational
conglomerate headquartered in Beijing, PRC. Mr. Wang joined Zhenro
Properties, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6158) in
September 2016 and had held various senior management positions within
its subsidiaries. From September 2016 to April 2017, he served as the chief
financial officer of the finance department at Zhenro Properties Holdings.
From April 2017 to December 2017, he served as the chief financial officer
of Zhengzhou Zhenro Real Estate Development Co., Led. (P IE 48 8 4%
JEABR/AF]). From December 2017 until immediately prior to joining the
Company in August 2020, he served successively as deputy general manager and

general manager of the finance department at Zhenro Properties Holdings.

Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing Audit University in the PRC with a

bachelor’s degree in management in 2002.
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Ms. Lin Sio Ngo (#4ik) was appointed as the joint company secretary on 24
December 2021.

Ms. Lin is a manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited with over 20 years of working experience in corporate secretarial and
administration areas. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Institute of

Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).

Ms. Lin holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and a master’s

degree in corporate governance.

She currently also serves as the joint company secretary of other several listed

companies.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has four business lines, namely, (i) property management services;
(ii) value-added services to non-property owners; (iii) community value-added
services; and (iv) commercial operational management services, forming an
integrated service offering to its customers that cover the entire value chain of

property management.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and

Analysis” of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement,
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 13 and
pages 14 to 28, respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 28 of this
annual report. The Group has no significant events after the end of the financial

year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) its future growth
may not materialize as planned; (ii) uncertainty as to securing new or renewing
the existing property management service agreements on favourable terms, or at
all; (iii) uncertainty related to acquisitions which may not be successful and the
Group may face difficulties in integrating acquired operations with its existing
operations; (iv) no control over a majority of revenue generate from connected
persons of the Company; (v) risks related to development in the government
policies and regulations regarding the PRC property management services; and

(vi) risks related to the increasing raw materials price and labor costs.

£ Annual Report2022 41



R RS

Directors’ Report

7 £ [ Sif 40 1 i K MR P LB B O B
JEBGE o A A E] ) B 75 JEL g 2 5 A1 I e %
JE o H R A B ) AR A SE A A R (B 4
i AN R BERHE o AN 5 EEaFIL
B b B A R R AT B A (LA T
METFHE) - R _F - HFTF A=
—H > EEIFEARMWERE LU ITFHER
He kLSS E NRTo.04F 8t XU
FICRHEM B 4 LB &5 AR %0.002
T EIE o AR LN () FE S0 Bh W] A Y
TR A AR [ 1 A8 S o AR AR ) B I I A b
e Set b IBOSRE o T 20 208 ) 5 71 R R A
) 5 F LA S

% S B 5 JE B DA % A AR T T 6 R L
B PO B R R AR AR AR A S R
BEFRE 3 S T35 Ja B e 2 RS B BB ) o il

i o

BRETBUR KB

R HE T R A TR A R R R BR B R AR AR
B A 2 Rt g AT - HAE B3
RE R AR LR BT S 2 > 38 7 8 BRI 1
Bk B o A SR B O AE SE 05 i 7R P BRI
LG - DUE S P RUE - B A
EH B VEE > A RS A UR I
HOR WY BR I ST IR B B A A

A2 [ 70 Y ST 0 P B AR 1 R 3 BT R I
ROFE B LG ¢ )R] D 58 35 0 6 Il HE A B
FeW) B T 0 R M ERAESE 51 0 RGiB
1% BF ) BR AR S B et o

WEE_FZ -+ _A=+—H I
BE > A 45 NI 4 i 3] AT ] B A& 7 AT AT R AR
PR A A B R E KR -

SRR AL R I
T -

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
financial risks of the Group is mainly foreign exchange rate risk. As substantial
portion of the Group'’s businesses are conducted in the PRC and denominated
in RMB. Foreign currency transaction included mainly receipts of proceeds
from the Listing and payment of professional fees which are dominated in
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. As at 31 December 2022, major non-RMB
assets are cash and cash equivalents denominated in Hong Kong dollars in the
amount of RMB0.04 million and cash and cash equivalents denominated in US
dollars in the amount of RMB0.002 million. Fluctuation of the exchange rates
of RMB against foreign currency could affect the Group’s results of operations.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy, and
manage its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of foreign

currency rate.

These financial risks, and the related risk management policies and practices
used by the Group are discussed in note 35 headed “Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

It is the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable
and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives to minimize its
environmental impact and comply with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations. The Group has implemented reasonable measures in the operation
of its businesses to comply with all applicable requirements. Given the nature of
the Group's operations, it is believed that the Group is not subject to material

environmental liability risk or compliance costs.

The measures the Group took to ensure compliance with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations include: (i) formulating and improving
management measures and operational guidelines for energy conservation,
emission reduction and waste management; and (ii) actively adopting

environmentally friendly equipment and designs.

The Group had not received any material fines or penalties associated with
the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group will be

published separately.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. The Group had
complied with all relevant laws and regulations in all material aspects and have
obtained all applicable material licenses, approvals and permits from relevant
regulatory authorities. During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
material breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws and regulations by

the Group.

Relationship with Employees

The Group believes that high-quality employees who value its corporate culture
are essential elements to promote the Group's sustainable growth. The Group
intends to attract and retain skilled and talented employees from reputable
universities of PRC through various initiatives, including its creative trainee

programs, competitive compensation packages and effective incentive system.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument policy of the
Group, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — Employees and

Remuneration Policy”.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as long-term
business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s businesses. We reinforce
business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing communication in a proactive

and effective manner.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the section

headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

Customers’ satisfaction with our services and products has a profound effect on
our profitability. Our dedicated sales team is in constant communication with
our customers and potential customers to uncover and create customer needs
and help customers make informed decisions. Identification of customers’ pain
points alongside grasping the market trend are critical for the Group to timely

adjust the Group's operating strategies to fit the market requirement.

For details regarding the Group’s major customers, please refer to the sections

headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the state
of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 103 to 235.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: nil).

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Friday, 16 June 2023. A notice convening the
AGM will be published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules in due course. For the purpose of
determination of eligibility to attend, speak and vote at the AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 13 June 2023 to
Friday, 16 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to attend, speak and vote at
the AGM to be held on Friday, 16 June 2023, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
Monday, 12 June 2023.
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RESERVES

Details of movement in reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

and note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are set out in

note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022

amounted to approximately nil.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 236 of this annual report.
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Directors Name

PRI SEAE
Mr. Lin Xiaotong

R e
Mr. Kang Hong

Blffse st

Mr. Liu Weiliang

FAIESEE
Mr. Huang Xianzhi

BRAR (e
Mr. Chan Wai Kin

it
Mr. Ma Haiyue

B R E e
Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung

sRffIeE
Mr. Zhang Wei

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the

Company.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up

to the date of this annual report are:

BkAir

Position

ITHA RN TES

Chief executive officer and executive Director

HiTES

Executive Director

ERGERAEUTES R _F A+ BRI AL
FHEP T = AT AERERERG TR

Chairman of the Board and non-executive Director (appointed as non-executive
Director on 11 November 2022 and Chairman of the Board on 20 January
2023)

EHRGERFFUTES R _F = AT HEMD
Chairman of the Board and non-executive Director (resigned on 20 January
2023)

FEATES (R -F A+ HEHTD)

Non-executive Director (resigned on 11 November 2022)

B FES

Independent non-executive Director

B FES

Independent non-executive Director

B FES

Independent non-executive Director
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In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors will retire by rotation at every annual general meeting (provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years) and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Liu Weiliang,
Mr. Ma Haiyue and Mr. Lin Xiaotong will retire from the Board by rotation at
the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than under normal

statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management”

in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors has waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year ended 31 December 2022 or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO:

RS A RERR MR FrARMEHEY  BERMATE O
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held” interest)
BfoR S SeEe X B AR 403,207,332 (L) 38.86%
Mr. ZR Ou® Interest in a controlled corporation
MR & 10 FL A £ 403,207,332 (L) 38.86%
Ms. Lin Shuying® Interest of spouse
I o S Y R A 57,712,500 (L) 5.56%
Mr. GQ Ou® Interest in a controlled corporation
FEALO TC B HE i 57,712,500 (L) 5.56%
Ms. Li Xi® Interest of spouse
fRIE Haifif A 260,707,332 (L) 25.13%
WeiZheng Beneficial owner
R j 8ok PN 71,250,000 (L) 6.87%
WeiYao Beneficial owner
(EPN [ € ZUN 71,250,000 (L) 6.87%
WeiTian Beneficial owner
(e HaREAA 57,712,500 (L) 5.56%
WeiQiang Beneficial owner
HEHE 5 AR 7 j 8ok PN 253,141,168 (L) 24.40%

Wide China Trading Limited

Beneficial owner
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Notes:

1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. The calculation is based on
the total number of 1,037,500,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.

(2) Each of WeiZheng, WeiYao and WeiTian is wholly-owned by Mr. ZR Ou. By virtue of Part
XV of the SFO, Mr. ZR Ou is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which WeiZheng,

WeiYao and WeiTian are interested in.

3) Ms. Lin Shuying is the spouse of Mr. ZR Ou. By virtue of Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Lin

Shuying is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. ZR Ou is interested in.

(4) WeiQiang is wholly-owned by Mr. GQ Ou. By virtue of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. GQ Ou

is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which WeiQiang is interested in.

5) Ms. Li Xi is the spouse of Mr. GQ Ou. By virtue of Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Li Xi is

deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. GQ Ou is interested in.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors or chief executive
are not aware of any other person, not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company, who has an interest or short position in the Shares or the underlying
Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors was a director or employee of
a company which had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue derived from its top five
customers accounted for 15.4% of the Group’s total revenue (31 December
2021: 30.3%) and the revenue amount from the Group's single largest customer,
Zhenro Properties Group, accounted for 12.3% of the Group’s total revenue (31
December 2021: 20.8%).

Other than Zhenro Group and Zhenro Properties Group, or their joint ventures
or associates, the Group's customers during the year ended 31 December 2022

were all independent third parties.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in any of the Group's five

largest customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from its top five suppliers
accounted for 9.5% of the Group’s total purchase cost (31 December 2021:
19.3%) and the purchases amount from the Group's single largest supplier,
Guangdong Blue Shield Security Service Limited, accounted for 3.3% of the
Group’s total purchases (31 December 2021: 1.8%).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Group’s major suppliers
was also the Group’s customer and all of the Group’s major suppliers were

independent third parties.

None of the Directors, supervisors, their close associates or any Shareholders
who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s

issued share capital, had any interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group and discussed the Group's risk management, internal controls and
financial reporting matters with the management. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and considered that such statements have been
prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and requirements

with sufficient disclosure.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the

Cayman Islands.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 4,197 employees (as
of 31 December 2021: approximately 5,034 employees). During the Reporting
Period, the total staff costs were approximately RMB446.3 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB499.4 million).

In terms of talent training, the Group will further enhance its employee training
program with internal and external resources. The employee training programs
primarily cover key areas in the Group’s business operations, which provide
continuous training to its existing employees at different levels to specialise and

strengthen their skill sets.
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The Group adopts a formal and transparent remuneration policy to determine
the remuneration packages of Directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries as the Group believes that the successful implementation of its
growth and business strategies rests on a team of experienced, motivated and

well-trained managers and employees at all levels.

U The Remuneration Committee is mandated to formulate the
Group’s remuneration policy for the Board’s approval, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s annual salary adjustment,

the annual performance bonus and share award.

o The objective of remunerating Directors is to ensure that there is an
appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the Group's business and development.
Their remuneration is reviewed annually with reference to companies of
comparable business or scale, and any changes are subject to Shareholders’

approval.

. Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to the
Group’s success. In terms of talent training, the Group will further
enhance its employee training program with internal and external
resources. The employee training programs primarily cover key areas in
the Group’s business operations, which provide continuous training to its
existing employees at different levels to specialise and strengthen their

skill sets.

J The remuneration payable to the Group’s employees is fixed by reference
to the duties and the prevailing market rates in the region. Discretionary
petformance bonus after assessments is paid to employees to reward their

contributions.

. In determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors and senior management, the Group will take into account
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.
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. In general, the Group determines employee salaries based on each
employee’s qualification, position and seniority. As required by relevant
regulations, the Group is subject to social insurance contribution plans
or other pension schemes prescribed by the local governments and is
required to pay on behalf of its employees, a monthly social insurance
funds covering pension fund, medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance and unemployment insurance, and
the housing provident fund, or to contribute regularly to mandatory

provident fund schemes on behalf of its employees.

The Company enters into labor contracts with all of its employees. The
Company offers its employees competitive remuneration packages that include
basic salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. To incentivize its employees and promote the long-term growth of the
Company, the Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the

sections headed “Director’s report — Share Option Scheme”.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not experience any

significant labour disputes or any difficulty in recruiting employees.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group does not have any employee who is required to participate in the

Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The employees
of the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. The Company is not allowed
to use the contributions to the state-managed retirement benefits scheme which

have been forfeited to reduce the current level of contributions.

Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out in note

6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 15 June 2020, the Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved and
adopted by the then shareholders of the Company and it becomes effective
from the Listing Date. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a means to motivate the Participants (as defined below) and
retain employees of the Group, and to encourage employees to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and promote the long-term growth of the

Company.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall have the right
to grant options to any director or employee of the Group (the “Participant”)
who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group at any time after the date on which the option is deemed to have been
granted and accepted and for a period of 10 years from that date (not exceeding
10 years from the Listing Date). As of 31 December 2022, the remaining life of

the Share Option Scheme is approximately 7 years and 5 months.

No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any Participant in
circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Participant
would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules
or by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may be
granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding the
earlier of (i) the date of the meeting of the Board of Directors (i.e. the date of
first notification to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules)
approving the Group's results for any annual, half-year, quarterly or other
interim period (whether in compliance with the Listing Rules or not); and
(i) the deadline for the Company to publish its results announcement for any
annual, half-year, quarterly or any other interim period (whether in accordance
with the Listing Rules or not) until the date of actual publication of the relevant
announcements for annual, half-year, quarterly or interim results, as the case

may be.
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The maximum number of shares involved in the share options that may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 100,000,000 shares in total, which is equivalent
to 10% of the total number of shares issued after the completion of the Global
Offering and approximately 9.64% of the total number of Shares issued as at the
date of this annual report (“Scheme Mandate Limit"). During any 12-month
period up to the grant date, the total number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each eligible Participant shall not exceed
1% of the issued shares on the grant date, unless otherwise separately approved
by Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant and his associates

abstaining from voting.

Share options can be exercised at any time during the period after the date on
which the options are deemed to have been granted and accepted in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and before the expiration of ten
years from that date. The exercise period of the share options is determined by
the Board at its sole discretion, but it shall not exceed 10 years from the Listing
Date. No share options may be granted after 10 years from the date of the Share
Option Scheme was approved. Subject to earlier terminations by the Company
in general meetings or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.

Subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may determine, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
and no performance target needs to be achieved by the grantee before the

options can be exercised.

The exercise price for each share involved in any particular share option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board at its sole

discretion, provided that the price must be at least the highest of the following:

U the official closing price of the shares as reported in the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the share options (which
must be the day when the Stock Exchange opens for securities trading

business);

o the average of the official closing prices of the shares quoted in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the five business days

immediately before the date of grant of the share options; and

U par value of a share.
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Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of

an option granted to them.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in

the Prospectus.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date of this annual
report, no option had been granted or agreed to be granted by the Company

pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report and based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the minimum public float of 25% as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditors since the Listing Date. The financial
statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who shall retire at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A

resolution for the re-appointment of auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the reserves of the Company available for distribution
to Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,033.6 million.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

As of 31 December 2022, the Group has total outstanding interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings of RMB100.1 million, compared with RMB118.1 million
as of 31 December 2021. The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in

Renminbi.

Details of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are set out in note 25

to the consolidated financial statements.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2022 was the Company, or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the
SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company enter into any

equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in businesses,
which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Mr. Liu Weiliang has been appointed as non-executive Director and member of
the Audit Committee with effect from 11 November 2022. He has been further
appointed as the chairman of the Board and the chairman of the nomination

committee with effect from 20 January 2023.

Mr. Huang Xianzhi has resigned as non-executive Director, chairman of the
Board and chairman of the nomination committee of the Company with effect

from 20 January 2023 due to his plan to retire.

Mr. Chan Wai Kin has resigned as non-executive Director and member of the
Audit Committee of the Company with effect from 11 November 2022 due to

the intention to pursue his other personal affairs.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management”, there is no other change in Directors” biographical details which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
during reporting period of the Company.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, the Controlling
Shareholders, namely Mr. ZR Ou, WeiZheng, WeiYao and WeiTian, entered
into the Deed of Non-competition in favor of the Company on 15 June 2020.
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Controlling Shareholders have
undertaken, among others, not to compete with the business of the Group,
and details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the sub-section
headed “Deed of Non-competition” in the section headed “Relationship with

Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation to the
Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the Deed of

Non-competition (the “Undertakings”) during the Reporting Period.

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling Shareholder
had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Reporting Period for the
annual assessment, the independent non-executive Directors noted that: (a)
the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had fully complied with
the Undertakings in the Reporting Period; (b) no new competing business
was reported by the Controlling Shareholders during the Reporting Period;
and (c) there was no particular situation rendering the full compliance of
the Undertakings being questionable. In view of the above, the independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, all of the
Undertakings were complied with by the Controlling Shareholders in the
Reporting Period.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective

offices, pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the

Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022, which are subject to the reporting

and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. Pre-Delivery Property Management Services

(i)  Zhenro Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management

Services

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a pre-delivery
property management services framework agreement (the “Zhenro
Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management Services
Framework Agreement”) with Zhenro Properties, pursuant
to which, the Group agreed to provide pre-delivery property
management services for its residential property projects before the
delivery of such properties to property owners, including but not
limited to security, cleaning, landscaping, repair and maintenance
of common area and shared facilities (the “Zhenro Properties
Pre-Delivery Property Management Services”), for a term of

three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

43 Annual Reporc 2022 59



R RS

Directors’ Report

60

(ii)

MEER-E T A=
I Ji P L 4% b S8 A I
W) S AR S A 2 e o T
Tt ATRE S AR
] BEL I € b 7 A0 AR 4R o] i) I 2
b E 4 2 3t I 2 3t 7 S AN i
UE SR o VA S

ACASH I S A B ES Tk 0 B
SEFCEFE A -HBEDE
THAETZA=Z+T-H A=
4 o

a8 E L4 +2H
=t —HIEFEE - ESME
45 [ 3 F 56 M AN R A S
PR 5 I A A 42 [ e v IR S
LEFEATHRARY 2404
Bt BE_F T H
=+ —HILERE - AEFKE
2 3 73 A2 A HIT ) S IR S
i/ MEAT IR 75 22 2y N W 0.2
HETT

B o7% 4% 5 A 22 AR i 4 3 B R
¥

N EFAENATNE S R
N ) BRLER 55 A e 2E R T ST 58 A5 i
P 35 IR TS HE 28 ah k(T Ik
R B A A A i S A B IR
MESR Gk 1) - PR > AL EF
BIEABWEL TEER -
Bk S A ) A E ) R
M B AN CRALIE IE &
b SR > (H AL RS L)
(B3 JNIE LSS E/E
AR > A AEAH A PR 2R -
HE - RBEL - AERE K
F T R 0 A R PR AR (T K
IR AR A A A T A 34 PR
B MIRAR LT EREE
SR T H=—HIE-

EZ B M A R/ Zhenro Services Group Limited

(i)

In order to renew the Zhenro Properties Pre-Delivery Property
Management Services Framework Agreement which expired on
31 December 2022, on 15 November 2022, the Company and
Zhenro Properties entered into the 2023 Pre-Delivery Property
Management Services Agreement in relation to the provision of
Zhenro Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management Services by
the Group to the Zhenro Properties Group, for the terms of three
years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

It was estimated that the maximum amount of service fees payable
by Zhenro Properties Group to the Group in relation to the Zhenro
Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management Services for the year
ended 31 December 2022 would not exceed RMB24.0 million.
The service fees paid/payable by the Group under the Zhenro
Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management Services for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was RMBO0.2 million.

Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management Services

On 18 June 2020, the Company entered into a pre-delivery
property management services framework agreement with Mr.
ZR Ou (the “Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which, the
Group agreed to provide to Mr. ZR Ou’s associates (excluding
Zhenro Properties Group but including its associates) (the
“Associates”) pre-delivery property management services for their
residential property projects before the delivery of such properties
to property owners including but not limited to security, cleaning,
landscaping, repair and maintenance of common area and shared
facilities (the “Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management
Services”), for a term commencing on the Listing Date and ending
on 31 December 2022.
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In order to renew the Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property
Management Services Framework Agreement which expired on 31
December 2022, on 15 November 2022, the Company and Mr.
ZR Ou entered into the 2023 Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property
Management Services Framework Agreement in relation to the
provision of Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management
Services, for a term commencing on 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.

It was estimated that the maximum amount of service fees payable
by the Associates to the Group in relation to the Mr. ZR Ou
Pre-Delivery Property Management Services the year ending 31
December 2022 would not exceed RMB3.1 million. The amount
of service fees payable by the Associates to the Group under the
Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management Services for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was RMBO0.2 million.

2. Management Services

@@

Zhenro Properties Management Services

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a management
services framework agreement with Zhenro Properties (the “Zhenro
Properties Management Services Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which, the Group agreed to provide to Zhenro
Properties Group management and related services including
but not limited to cleaning, landscaping, concierge, maintenance
of public order, security services, and other related value-added
services to the residential property projects of Zhenro Properties
Group and their display units, sales offices and community
clubhouses as well as commercial properties operated by Zhenro
Properties Group (the “Zhenro Properties Management
Services”), for a term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022.
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EZ B M A R/ Zhenro Services Group Limited

(i)

In order to renew the Zhenro Properties Management Services
Framework Agreement which expired on 31 December 2022, on
15 November 2022, the Company and Zhenro Properties entered
into the 2023 Management Services Agreement in relation to the
provision of Zhenro Properties Management Services by the Group
to the Zhenro Properties Group, for a term of three years from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

It was estimated that the maximum amount of service fees payable
by Zhenro Properties Group to the Group in relation to the Zhenro
Properties Management Services for the year ended 31 December
2022 would not exceed RMB310.0 million. The amount of service
fees payable by Zhenro Properties Group to the Group under the
Zhenro Properties Management Services for the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB111.4 million.

Mr. ZR Ou Management Services

On 18 June 2020, the Company entered into a management
services framework agreement with Mr. ZR Ou (the “Mr. ZR Ou
Management Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which, the Group agreed to provide to the Associates management
and related services including but not limited to cleaning,
landscaping, concierge, maintenance of public order, security
services, and other related value-added services to the residential
property projects of the Associates and their display units, sales
offices and community clubhouses as well as commercial properties
(including office) operated or occupied by them and other
properties held by them for potential projects (the “Mr. ZR Ou
Management Services”), for a term commencing on the Listing
Date and ending on 31 December 2022.
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In order to renew the Mr. ZR Ou Management Services Framework
Agreement which expired on 31 December 2022, on 15 November
2022, the Company and Mr. ZR Ou entered into the 2023 Mr.
ZR Ou Management Services Framework Agreement in relation
to the provision of Mr. ZR Ou Management Services, for a term

commencing on 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

It was estimated that the maximum amount of service fees payable
by the Associates to the Group in relation to the Mr. ZR Ou
Management Services for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
not exceed RMB176.0 million. The amount of service fees payable
by the Associates to the Group under the Mr. ZR Ou Management
Services for the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB33.7

million.

Consultancy Services

On 19 May 2021, Zhenro Commercial Management entered into a
consultancy agreement with Zhenro Properties (the “Consultancy
Agreement”) pursuant to which Zhenro Commercial Management has
agreed to provide commercial property operational and consultancy
services (the “Consultancy Services”) to Zhenro Properties Group,
including but not limited to: (i) pre-acquisition services in respect of
land for commercial properties, office buildings, apartments and hotels
(including but not limited to commercial land researches, commercial
related consultancy and studies); (ii) early-stage services for commercial
property projects having been obtained (including but not limited to
project positioning, business planning, store location, architectural
design, optimisation of mechanical and electrical engineering technology,
planning for tenant sourcing and opening, commercial lease planning,
management fee estimation and preparation of lease decision documents);
(iii) opening preparation services for commercial property projects having
been obtained (including but not limited to tenant sourcing, marketing
and promotion, pre-opening, renovation construction); (iv) management
services for property projects that have commenced operations; and (v)
specialised consultancy services. The Consultancy Agreement commenced
from 28 June 2021 and ends on 31 December 2022.
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EZ B M A R/ Zhenro Services Group Limited

In order to renew the Consultancy Agreement which expired on
31 December 2022, on 15 November 2022, Zhenro Commercial
Management (being a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Zhenro Properties entered into the 2023 Consultancy Services
Agreement in relation to the provision of Consultancy Services by
the Zhenro Commercial Group to the Zhenro Properties Group (the
“2023 Consultancy Agreement”). The 2023 Consultancy Agreement

commenced from 1 January 2023 and ends on 31 December 2025.

Zhenro Commercial Management has become the Company’s indirect-
owned subsidiary upon the Group completed the acquisition of 99%

equity interest in Zhenro Commercial Management on 29 June 2021.

The proposed annual caps of the Consultancy Services for the year ended
31 December 2022 are RMB90 million. The amount of the Consultancy
Service fees received by the Group under the Consultancy Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB28.8 million.

Lease Agreements

As a result of the Group's acquisition of Zhenro Commercial Management
in June 2021, the transactions contemplated under the Xi'an Lease
Agreement (as defined below) have become continuing connected

transactions for the Group.

On 10 May 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhenro Commercial
Management (“Zhenro Commercial Management (Xi'an)”) entered into
a lease agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhenro Properties
(“Xi’an Jingheng Real Estate”) (the “Xi’an Lease Agreement”)
pursuant to which Xi'an Jingheng Real Estate would lease Xi'an Rainbow
Valley (FEFHULE) to Zhenro Commercial Management (Xi'an) for a
term commencing from 10 May 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.
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The proposed annual caps under the Xi'an Lease Agreement for each of
the year ended 31 December 2022 and the two years ending 31 December
2023 is RMB10 million for each year. Zhenro Properties disposed its
100% of equity interests in Xi'an Jingheng Real Estate in January 2022
so that Xi'an Jingheng Real Estate is no longer the subsidiary of Zhenro
Properties since the end of January 2022. The rental fee paid/payable
by the Group under the Xi'an Lease Agreement for the period from 1
January 2022 to 30 January 2022 was nil.

Zhenro Properties is indirectly owned by Mr. ZR Ou, one of the Controlling
Shareholders and is therefore an associate of Mr. ZR Ou. Mr. ZR Ou and his
associates are thus connected persons of the Company upon Listing. As at 31
December 2022, Mr. ZR Ou held approximately 45.73% issued shares of

Zhenro Properties.

Accordingly, the transactions under the Zhenro Properties Pre-Delivery
Property Management Services Framework Agreement, the Mr. ZR Ou Pre-
Delivery Property Management Services Framework Agreement, the Zhenro
Properties Management Services Framework Agreement, the Mr. ZR Ou
Management Services Framework Agreement, the Consultancy Agreement and
the Xi'an Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the

Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the relevant agreements governing the transactions on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor of the
Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions mentioned above (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii)
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the

respective annual cap.
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Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
not entered into any other connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant to

the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2022 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 32 to consolidated financial
statements include related party transactions disclosed under accounting
standards and some of related party transactions which also constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of
Directors and chief executives of the Company constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, these
transactions are exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of key management
personnel (other than directors and chief executives) of the Company did not
fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed
under the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Connected
Transaction” in this annual report, the Directors believe, all other related party
transactions set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall within the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (as the case may be). The
Company confirmed that it was in compliance with the disclosure requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, “Connected Transaction”, “Related Party Transactions” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2022 or subsisted at the end of the year and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31

December 2022 or subsisted at the end of the year.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report form

part of this annual report.

By order of the Board
Liu Weiliang
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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The Group is committed to maintaining and strengthening high standards of
corporate governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness, in order to safeguard
and protect the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability system. The Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as in force from time to time as

the basis of the Company’s corporate governance practices.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code. The Board will
continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for the purpose
of complying with the Corporate Governance Code and maintaining a high

standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes on the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company and is charged with promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers for the
management and conduct of the Company’s business. The day-to-day operations
and management are delegated by the Board to the management of the
Company, who will implement the strategy and direction as determined by the
Board.

The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from time to
time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard

of corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Company has also adopted a board diversity
policy which sets out the objective and approach to achieve diversity of the
Board.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises two executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up

to the date of this annual report is as follows:
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Executive Directors

M:r. Lin Xiaotong (Chief Executive Officer)
M:r. Kang Hong

Non-executive Directors

Mzr. Liu Weiliang (Chairman)

(appointed as non-executive Director on

11 November 2022 and

chairman of the Board on 20 January 2023)
Mr. Huang Xianzhi

(resigned on 20_January 2023)
Mzr. Chan Wai Kin

(resigned on 11 November 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Haiyue
Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung
Mzr. Zhang Wei

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 29 to 40 of this annual

report.

No Board member has other relationship with the other Board members and the

chief executive officer of the Company.

Code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code states that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The chairman, Mr. Huang Xianzhi (for
the period from 6 December 2019 to 20 January 2023) and Mr. Liu Weiliang
(for the period since 20 January 2023), focuses on the overall management of
the investment strategies and business development of the Group. The chief
executive officer, Mr. Lin Xiaotong, is responsible for day-to-day business and
management of the Group. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce

their independence and to ensure a balance of power and authority.
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Remuneration to the senior management by band

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Lin Xiaotong and Mr. Kang Hong,
has entered into a service contract with the Company on 6 November 2020
and 5 February 2021, respectively, and each of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into their respective letters of
appointment. The principal particulars of these service contracts and the letters
of appointment are (a) for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from
6 November 2020 (for the executive Director Mr. Lin Xiaotong), 5 February
2021 (for the executive Director Mr. Kang Hong), 6 December 2019 (for the
non-executive Directors) or 10 June 2020 (for the independent non-executive
Directors), and (b) are subject to termination in accordance with their respective
terms. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with the Articles of

Association and the applicable rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to pension
schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary bonuses, housing and
other allowances and other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors for the year

ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB6.4 million.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management for 2022 are set
out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the annual
remuneration of members of the senior management by band for the year ended

31 December 2022 is set out below:

TR A B A\
Number of

senior management

1,000,001%%%1,500,0007‘%% HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1
st Total 1

BEF - HFE+ A=+ —HILFEE
A £ ) SNf7 4 i) o 2 R B s N
FHTATEN 4 > VB A I A AR 45 [ 80 A A 42
V15 1) 2 B 11 2 T A 1

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no remuneration was paid by the
Group to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has three independent
non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement of the Listing Rules
that the number of independent non-executive directors must represent at least

one-third of the Board and should not be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules, and considers them to be independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures are followed. During the year ended 31 December
2022, Mr. Wang Yi was one of the joint company secretaries. The Company
has engaged Ms. Lin Sio Ngo, a manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as another joint
company secretary since 24 December 2021 to assist Mr. Wang in discharging
his duties as company secretary of the Company. Ms. Lin’s primary contact

person at the Company was Mr. Wang Yi.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Wang and Ms. Lin have
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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On the first occasion of each Director’s appointment, the Company has
arranged a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business and is fully aware
of the director’s responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
statutory requirements. The Company will arrange suitable training for all
Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of
their continuous professional development. The training records of the Directors

during the year ended 31 December 2022 are summarized as follows:

ELEE L ES
B J i

Participated
in continuous
professional
development™!
Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Xiaotong v
Mr. Kang Hong v
Non-executive Director
Mr. Liu Weiliang (appointed on 11 November 2022) 4
Mr. Huang Xianzhi (resigned on 20 _January 2023) v
Mr. Chan Wai Kin (resigned on 11 November 2022) v
Independent non-executive Director
Mr. Ma Haiyue v/
Mt. Ou Yeung Po Fung v/
Mr. Zhang Wei v/
Note:
1. Attended briefings, trainings or seminars and reading materials.
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Code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of the majority of the Directors, either in

person or through electronic means of communications.

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31 December 2022 for
reviewing and approving the audited annual results of the Company together
with its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021; the connected
transaction of Zhenro Properties and the Company details of which are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 15 November 2022 and circular
dated 29 December 2022; the interim results of the Company together with
its subsidiaries for the six months ended 30 June 2022; the change of the
members of the Board. The Directors expects to convene at least four regular
Board meetings in each financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in

accordance with code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

Code provision F.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that board
should obtain communication with the shareholders, especially through

participation of the annual general meeting.
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TRESIREE _F - EF =t The table below sets out the details of Board meetings and annual general
ENISECE R R AN ok oo Y Y G meeting attendance of each Director during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to
attend Board attend annual
meeting general meeting
WES Executive Directors
Mg S Mr. Lin Xiaotong 414 11
i ¥y e Mr. Kang Hong 4/4 1
FoTES Non-executive Directors
PUESe (F0) (R =% Mr. Liu Weiliang (Chairman) 11 0/0
FT—H T —HEFFLFATEE (appointed as non-executive Director on
MR ZF == HEZF 11 November 2022 and chairman of
BEFELIE) the Board on 20 January 2023)
RS, (R F = —H =T HEHE) Mr. Huang Xianzhi (resigned on 4/4 !
20 January 2023)
BRg(RIEE: (K ZF 4 —H 1 —HEHF)  Mr. Chan Wai Kin (resigned on 3/3 !
11 November 2022)
BT ESR Independent non-executive directors
tiegeyve Mr. Ma Haiyue 404 11
Ak Bivea M. Au Yeung Po Fung 4/4 /1
s e Mr. Zhang Wei 4/4 11
BE_F-__F+TA=1T—HILFE The chairman of the Company held meeting with the independent non-executive
AR ) W BB ST IR AT SRR — IR Directors once during the year ended 31 December 2022 without the other
i o HALE IR o Directors present.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management during the
Reporting Period, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
written employee guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate

Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the nomination committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each
of the Board committees operates under its terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are available on the website of the Company

and that of the Stock Exchange.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expense.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Zhang Wei and Mr. Ma Haiyue, independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Chan Wai Kin (resigned on 11 November 2022) and Mr. Liu Weiliang
(appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 11 November 2022), non-
executive Directors. Mr. Zhang Wei has been appointed as the chairman of
the Audit Committee, and Mr. Ma Haiyue has the appropriate professional
qualifications or related financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to,
(i) reviewing and supervising financial reporting process, internal control
system, risk management and internal audit of the Group; (ii) providing
recommendations and advices to the Board; (iii) performing other duties and
responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board; (iv) reviewing the Company’s
financial information; and (v) performing the Company’s corporate governance
functions in order to comply with the Corporate Governance Code and the
disclosure requirements in the corporate governance report as contained in

Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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During the Reporting Period, 2 meetings of the Audit Committee was held and

the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out in the table

below:
R
kB
Attended/Eligible
wHH Directors to attend
ey e Mr. Liu Weiliang 0/0
(W ZFEZ A —H T —HEZEE (appointed as non-executive Director on
FHATEFNR —FE - =F—H_1+H 11 November 2022 and chairman of the Board on
EZE(HEFGLE) 20 January 2023)
AR () Mr. Zhang Wei (Chairman) 2/2
RSB A Mr. Ma Haiyue 2/2
BRAgfeR etk (= F = 4 f—H +— HFHE) Mr. Chan Wai Kin (resigned on 11 November 2022) 2/2

FatE B wOmE MBS R A SRR
JPoo R E (BEEREN LS - BT
B S KRB AN F R B B A AR
(1 55 G E )~ Jml B A B AR A - A
2 ) AP A R RE B AT AR B R A K
AT A A% B o S S 3 R (i A
% B G AN AL BT R U - BAT - AR
B M A P £t B AT ] A o

it & B @ IR BIAS L m B 2w
Hh B e B A BE 1 R ) e B A A A
B A% S AL R A R P R R IH K R
LR s SIE TR O

REZAE

EANSIEIS ) o SRS ) A R SR
NAANEETI) R A = R R DR
ZAE > B SL IR AT I R T S
Mz e K B SE AE DA K IR AT HE AL B G
e WAIREAE RS T B g R (R
SECEFE AT HEHE) KBRS
R FZ=F A T AR AR
HEAGER) o

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions) and risk management systems,
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function and processes and the
reappointment of the external auditor. The Board had not deviated from any
recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,

resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed interim and final results of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the interim period and the fiscal year as well as the audit
report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues and major

findings in the course of audit.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. The nomination
committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung and Mr.
Ma Haiyue, independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Huang Xianzhi,
non-executive Director. Mr. Huang Xianzhi has resigned as the chairman of
the nomination committee on 20 January 2023 and Mr. Liu Weiliang has been

appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee on 20 January 2023.
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The primary duties of the nomination committee include, but are not limited
to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspective) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (ii) identifying, selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship, and
ensuring the diversity of the Board members; (iii) assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; (iv) making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors (in particular
the chairman and chief executive); and (v) reviewing the policy of the board
diversity (the “Board Diversity Policy”), including any measurable objectives
for implementing such Board Diversity Policy as may be adopted by the Board

from time to time, and the progress on achieving the objective.

During the Reporting Period, 2 meetings of the nomination committee were
held and the attendance record of the nomination committee members is set out

in the table below:

W HE

LF e
Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
Mr. Liu Weiliang (Chairman) 0/0
(appointed as non-executive Director on
11 November 2022 and chairman of the Board on
20 January 2023)
Mr. Huang Xianzhi (resigned on 20 January 2023) 212
Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung 2/2
Mr. Ma Haiyue 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the nomination committee has
reviewed the nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy; assessed
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and made
recommendation to the Board in relation to appointment of the Director and

re-election of retiring Directors at the annual general meeting.

The nomination committee has conducted an annual assessment of the
independence of each independent non-executive Director and made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and senior

management of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Zhang Wei and Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung, independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Lin Xiaotong, executive Director. Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung,
the independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman of

the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not limited
to (i) establishing, reviewing and providing advices to the Board on the Group's
policy and structure concerning remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies concerning such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each Director and senior management
member; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time
to time; and (iv) reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes

under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in code

provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Corporate Governance Code in its terms of reference.

During the Reporting Period, 2 meetings of the Remuneration Committee were
held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members is set

out in the table below:

R HE R
TR H

Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Zhang Wei 2/2
Mr. Lin Xiaotong 2/2

78 IEZRMBEHEMA R /A W Zhenro Services Group Limited



15 5 iR ol

Corporate Governance Report

B % B O At SRR A A ml S
AAE B 9 B BS e - 2 A BR % 3B I EC
R Sl 2 A AT o R R B Y
s tih ik~ A bR S N 7 28 1) S S f

;AT T 2 S R A ]

AL FEPRANEEYE ST I > 1F A B S
FTa8 528 o AT I sP A o B BRI B 2
RSP IEAT SR AT Ry SF RIS A
Bl B A F] o BEA L F AR
HEAWEK  SRERRED > HECRE
18 29 A S R ST A

RAYR

AT E AR — T R B D
8 4% L6 % O I R R S PR R K
S 5 R 2 -

i 8% v HY

P2 % B G 8 DT R 3 DAl B R
BARGHEE - (DR QINAERRE
SETS 1 I S AR 5 (3) AT AR A IR ] 1o 3
AHBER 45 R IE 5 (HFEF G5 Z 7T
b > BFEEARRA R R ~ MR - FE (18
MDA )~ BB R HELE - Hiak
FRFATHA 5 (5) & JRE (L35 BLA A w] 25
Fo A JE R A B R B LG R - HRE - AEk
FASHR) 5 (6) H AT AT i) 38 I 2 M HiAth
e B B RYE 5 () ESE S RE L
T B3 BN A B 2 AT 8 57 9F AT 7 S R e I
2 08 17 R B0 58 3 0 3 A0 T IR % 9 ST A 5 1R
FE T AR N B WL ST ()RR
Fl B G 2 UL BUR MRS Z B G tEs
HEGZ UL RN Z ATl A 512 H A
Je (o) B A A2y w) 2R 1 HoAth 1

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the service agreement,
appointment letter and remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, and made recommendations to the Board on the
service agreement, appointment letter and remuneration packages of individual

executive Directors and senior management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY

DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. The provisions under the Listing Rules
in relation to compliance with the Model Code by the Directors regarding
securities transactions have been applicable to the Company since the Listing
Date. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,

that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board nomination policy for the nomination
committee to consider and make recommendations to Shareholders for election

as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

SELECTION CRITERIA

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the nomination
committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate: (1) reputation
for integrity; (2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in; (3) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; (4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race, gender,
age (18 years or above), educational background, professional experience, skills
and length of service; (5) qualifications which include professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy; (6) the number of existing directorships and other
commitments that may demand the attention of the candidate; (7) requirement
for the Board to have independent non-executive Directors in accordance with
the Listing Rules and whether the candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules; (8) Board diversity policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the nomination committee for achieving diversity on the

Board; and (9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION PROCEDURE

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company and the
Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need for an additional Director or a

member of the senior management, the following procedure will be followed:

(1) the nomination committee and/or Board will identify potential candidates
based on the criteria as set out in the selection criteria, possibly with assistance
from external agencies and/or advisors; (2) the nomination committee and/or
the company secretary of the Company will then provide the Board with the
biographical details and details of the relationship between the candidate and
the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills and experience, other
positions which involve significant time commitment and any other particulars
required by the Listing Rules, the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and
other regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to the Board;
(3) the nomination committee would then make recommendation to the Board
on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and conditions of the appointment;
(4) the nomination committee should ensure that the proposed candidate(s) will
enhance the diversity of the Board, being particularly mindful of gender balance;
(5) in the case of the appointment of an independent non-executive Director,
the nomination committee and/or the Board should obtain all information in
relation to the proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess the
independence of the Director in accordance with the factors set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and (6) the Board will then deliberate and
decide on the appointment based upon the recommendation of the nomination

committee.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders,
provided that the declaration and distribution of dividends is not in excess of

the amount recommended by the Board.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the discretion
of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall also take into account, among other things, the Group’s financial results,
Shareholders’ interests; general business conditions and strategies, financial
condition, capital requirements, taxation considerations, contractual, statutory
and regulatory restriction (if any), and any other conditions the Directors may
deem relevant at such time. Any payment of the dividend by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands

and the Articles of Association.
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The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no

assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to

waive any dividend.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out the

approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises the benefits
of having a diversified Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of the Group's strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Group seeks to achieve diversity of
the Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, education background,
gender, age and ethnicity. The Directors have a balanced mix of experiences,
including overall management, brand improvement, business development,
legal, finance, auditing and accounting experiences. Furthermore, the ages of the
Directors range from 41 years old to 54 years old. The education background of
the Directors ranges from economics and business administration to law, with
degrees awarded by education institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong to the
United States.

The Directors recognize the particular importance of gender diversity and
that gender diversity at the Board level can be improved given its current
composition of all-male Directors. In order to ensure gender diversity at the
Board level, the nomination committee is currently in the process of identifying
at least one suitable female candidate who has necessary skills and experience
to the Board for its consideration of Director with an ultimate aim to achieve
a target of at least 20% female representation in the Board. The Company has
adopted the Board Diversity Policy with the aim of achieving an appropriate
level of diversity among Board members according to the circumstances of
the Group from time to time. In summary, the Board Diversity Policy sets
out that when considering the nomination and appointment of a Director,
with the assistance of the nomination committee, the Board would consider a
range of diversity of perspectives, including but not limited to the professional
experience, skills, knowledge, education background, gender, age and ethnicity,
in order to better serve the needs and development of the Company. All Board
appointments will be based on merits and candidates will be considered against

objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board.
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The nomination committee will discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to
the Board for adoption. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy
and shall be taken full account of the benefits of diversity on the Board when
considering candidates.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. As
a measurable objective for the implementation of the Board diversity policy,
all Board appointments shall be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against the aforementioned criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect.
Currently, the Board has male members only. In order to ensure gender diversity
at the Board level, the nomination committee is in the process of identifying
suitable female candidates who have the necessary skills and experience to the
Board. The Board targets to appoint at least one suitable female Board member
by 31 December 2024. The Board also targets to have at least one female Board
member at all time, representing not less than 10% of the Board composition,
and will continue to seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members over time as and when suitable candidates are identified.

As at 31 December 2022, diversity of Board members in terms of gender and
age group is as follows: approximately 100% are male employees and 0% are
female employees. Meanwhile, approximately 0% are below 30, 14.3% are age
31-40, 42.9% are age 41-50, and 42.9% are above 50.

EMPLOYEES DIVERSITY

Employees are key drivers to the sustainable development of an enterprise.
The Group adheres to the people-oriented principle and the talent philosophy
of “cherishing, developing and giving full play to talents”, improving the
recruitment standards and creating a diverse and high-quality talent team.
We have developed sound recruitment management measures to ensure a
high quality workforce. In addition, we continue to improve the remuneration
package for employees, providing a better working platform for employees
to promote the realization of employee value and support the sustainable
development of the company. We adhere to the principle of equal employment
and are committed to create an equal and diversified working environment,
prohibit discrimination in employment, and respect and equally treat employees
of different genders, races, religious beliefs and cultural backgrounds.

As of 31 December 2022, the number of female employees in the Group
was approximately 1,961 (including senior management), representing
approximately 46.7% of the total workforce of the Group. The Group is
committed to maintaining a 50% female membership in senior management
and overall staff.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
The Group has adopted all applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate

Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own corporate governance code. The Board is the highest governance body
of the Group and undertakes the ultimate responsibility for the sustainable
development of the Group. The Group includes several work groups, which
assist the Group to formulate and review the responsibilities, vision, strategy,
framework, principles and policies of the Group’s ESG, and monitor main
ESG trends and related risks and opportunities, in order to ensure the effective

execution and implementation of ESG policies passed by the Board.

The company identifies and evaluates ESG issues through regular internal
and external communication channels and research of a third-party agency.
The relevant issues shall be reviewed by the Board and implemented by
related functional departments. Meanwhile, the Company shall monitor
the development trend of international ESG governance regularly, emulate
governance standards of the counterparts, and continually enhance the
establishment, management and progress review of ESG-related goals to

continuously enhance our governance.
The Governance structure and responsibilities are as follows:

The Board The Board, as the highest governing body for the
management and public disclosure of ESG matters of the

Company, mainly performs the following functions:

1. Review the risks and importance related to the
Company’s ESG matters

2. Considering and approval of the Company’s ESG
strategy and goals

3. Supervise and review of the Company’s ESG-related
policies, management, performance and progress of

related goals

4. Considering and approval of ESG-related
disclosures of the Company

5. The Board shall hold meetings about ESG
governance at least twice a year to monitor and

review progress of ESG governance
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ESG work groups

Relevant functional

departments

The ESG work groups, established by the Board, shall assist

the performance of the Board’s duties and promote the

implementation and co-organization of the Company’s ESG

policy, detailed as follows:

formulating sustainable development strategy
and targets for the Company, and providing
recommendations and advices to the Board on

relevant sustainable development

identifying and determining the risks and
opportunities related to ESG matters of the
Company, and regularly reporting the assessment

results to the Board

examining and validating ESG-related policies,
management, performance and progress of related

goals of the Company

supervising and overseeing all functional
departments to comprehensive implement
sustainable development strategy and related
actions of the Company, and coordinating and
promoting the implementation of ESG-related

matters

checking and reviewing the public disclosure of the
Company'’s performance on ESG-related matters,
and taking charge of the overall planning and

preparation of the ESG reports

the ESG work groups shall report ESG work
progress to the Board regularly for other matters

authorized by the Board

implementing ESG-related strategies and

management measures of the Company

assisting ESG work groups with data collection and

providing feedback
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the external auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2022. There was no change in the external auditor of the

Company for the three years preceding the date of this annual report.

Details of the fees paid/payable in respect of the audit and non-audit services
provided by Ernst & Young for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
the table below:

(AR¥F)

P $ 48t i i Services rendered (RMB’000)
Fenh s Audit services:

SEP AR A [ DB AR 1 A P T Annual audit of the financial statements of the Group 1,700,000

IRy Non-audit services 900,000

2,600,000

5 B it
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow during the Reporting Period. A statement
from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out on pages 93 to 102 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial

statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group's assets and
Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control and risk management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are adequate. The
Company also has an internal audit function which primarily carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
issuer’s risk management and internal control systems, and reports their findings

to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group's internal control and risk management systems include a
well-established organizational structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are
entrusted to individual department which is accountable for its own conduct
and performance and is required to operate its own department’s business within
the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly adhere to the
strategies and policies set by the Company from time to time. Each department
is also required to keep the Board informed of material developments of the
department’s business and implementation of the policies and strategies set by
the Board on a regular basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide

reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the Group
to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the management
in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The review was made by discussions with the management of the Company,
its external and internal auditors and the assessment conducted by the Audit
Committee. The Board believes that the existing internal control system is
adequate and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance.
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Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems and to Resolve Material Internal

Control Deficiency

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted to the
Audit Committee and the Board annually. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Board had performed a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system by Audit Committee, including,
but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extend of significant
risk (including ESG risks) and the Company’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment; (ii) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risk (including ESG risks) and the internal
control systems; (iii) the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results between the Audit Committee and the Board which enable them to
assess the internal control of Company and the effectiveness of risk management;
(iv) the significant control failures or weaknesses that have been identified;
and (v) the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting and
Listing Rules compliance. The Audit Committee and the Board confirmed that
the risk management and internal control system were effective and adequate for
the year ended 31 December 2022. No significant areas of concern that might
affect the financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified by the Audit Committee and the Board.
The scope of such review covers the adequacy of resources, qualification and
experience of staff performing the Group's accounting and financial reporting
functions and their attitude on the internal control of the Group. The Board will
continue to work with the management to discuss and follow-up on the status
of remediation of the internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the

Group in the future.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under the new Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The
Company has adopted a continuous disclosure compliance policy which sets out
guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure
inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner. Briefing session is held regularly for officers to facilitate their

understanding and compliance with the policy.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings by Shareholders

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company of any one or more members of
the Company holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

To safeguard Shareholder’s interests and rights, separate resolutions are and will
be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the election

of individual Directors.

The procedutes for Shareholder to propose a person for election as a Director is
available on the Company’s website (http://www.zhenrowy.com). Shareholders
may lodge written notice to the joint company secretaries of the Company at
40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such
written notice is given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that the lodgment
of such notice shall commence no eatlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice
will be verified with the joint company secretaries of the Company and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, they will ask the
nomination committee and the Board to consider to include the resolution in
the agenda for the general meeting proposing such person to be elected as a

Director.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association for the Shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to put
forward proposals may request the Company to convene an extraordinary general

meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the above paragraph.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting the
Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting. The contact details of the Company are set out in

the Company’s website (http://www.zhenrowy.com).

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the

following:

T AT A 5 A2 8 R AT B 666 7 LA TE 5% 007 R
Building No.7, Honggiao Zhenro Center, Lane 666, Shenhong Road,

Honggiao Business Core District, Minhang District, Shanghai

Hdk

Address:

T RE PR (+86) 21-61258655
Telephone: (+86) 21-61258655
EE L

E-mail address:

JGe S AT B 42 ) AR ) s 7 S B RO R
s PR S O PR E (i 5y A
AT 2 R KIE R 1839 G L1771 2-
1716554 R IHE

Sl B SR 00 B B B B 1
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chenxy9@zhenro.com/mengnal @zhenro.com

chenxy9@zhenro.com/mengnal @zhenro.com

Shareholders may also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the forthcoming annual
general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available to

meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy which
encourages all forms of communication and welcomes feedback, questions, or
concerns from Shareholders and aims to ensures that shareholders are provided

with timely access to the Company’s information.
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The policy sets out various channels to communicate with its Shareholders.
Shareholders may at any time make enquiries to the Board in writing or through
the Company’s website at hetp://www.zhenrowy.com/ or directly by raising

questions at general meetings.

Shareholders are also encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company. Sufficient notice of general meetings will be given to the Shareholders
in accordance with the Articles and applicable rules and regulations. The
chairman of the Board, chairman of each board committee, management of
the Company and, if appropriate, the external auditors, will attend the general

meetings and answer questions raised by Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the Directors attended the annual
general meeting on 17 June 2022 to communicate with the Shareholders. All
corporate communications and regulatory announcements were published by
the Company on its website and the website of the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner. The Board considers that the shareholders communication policy was

effective during the year ended 31 December 2022.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as

appropriate) will be available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE MECHANISMS

The Company has in place existing practices and mechanisms to ensure the
independence of the Board. The Board reviews the implementation and

effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Boatd shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-executive
Directors that represent at least one-third of the Board, such that there is always
a strong element of independence on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. The Company has received annual confirmation made
by each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The nomination committee is responsible to assess
the independence and time commitment of each independent non-executive

Director at least annually.
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The independent non-executive Directors have actively participated meetings
of the Board and board committees to provide independent opinions. When
performing their duties, they will make significant decisions after discussions
with senior management of the Company and on some occasions, with reference
to professional advice received from external agents at the Company’s expense
and upon reasonable request. The chairman of the Board will also hold meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of other

Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the aforementioned mechanisms
are effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the
Board during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company has been amended
and restated with effect from the Listing Date, and it is available on the
respective website of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, there was no change to the Company’s constitutional

documents.

Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Listing Regime for Overseas
Issuers published by the Stock Exchange in November 2021, the Listing Rules
have been amended with effect from 1 January 2022 which requires, among
others, the listed issuers to adopt a uniform set of 14 “Core Standards” for
shareholder protections for the issuers. As such, on 31 March 2023, the Board
proposed to amend the existing Memorandum and Articles of Association (the
“Existing Memorandum and Articles”) to (i) bring the Existing Memorandum
and Articles in line with the latest requirements under the Listing Rules,
including the amendments to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which took effect
on 1 January 2022; (ii) reflect the prevailing requirements under applicable
laws of the Cayman Islands; and (iii) incorporate certain corresponding and

housekeeping amendments (the “Proposed Amendments”).
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The Board proposed to effect the Proposed Amendments by way of adoption
of the amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association (the
“Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles”) in substitution for,

and to the exclusion of, the Existing Memorandum and Articles.

The proposed adoption of the Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles
are subject to the approval of the Shareholders by way of a special resolution
at the AGM and shall take effect upon passing of the special resolution at the
AGM to be convened and held on 16 June 2023. Prior to the passing of such
special resolution at the AGM, the existing Memorandum and Articles shall

remain valid.
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Zhenro Services Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhenro Services Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
103 to 235, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs") issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.
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Key audit matter

PRI A A

Goodwill impairment assessment
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BRARMS38HET

As at 31 December 2022, the goodwill of the Group
amounted to RMB538 million.

BB
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SEAERN ([BlEEERM]) o EHEER
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Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. The
goodwill is allocated to various cash generating
units (“CGUs”). Management assessed impairment
of goodwill with the assistance of an independent
external valuer (the “External Valuer”) and
determined the recoverable amounts based on a
value-in-use (“VIU”) calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management. The key assumptions considered
primarily include (i) annual revenue growth rate, (ii)
gross profit margin, (iii) terminal growth rate, and

(iv) discount rate.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

T SR R T oy i L ) A O

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

F 2 A LR B 14 B 9l (0l o A 0 4 A A A o P (P
RO

Our audit procedures to evaluate the impairment test carried out by

management and assess the value-in-use of the CGUs included:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

T8 i AL 6 o B3 5 1 07 T ] < B D O £l
{E 75 BB 5

involving internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
valuation methodologies and discount rates used for determining the

recoverable amounts;

2 B0 T FH A R R - ) B R S R AR M B K SE AR T
W MERWERE—F " _F+ A=t HILFEABE
EE A BT Y A R B

examining the underlying data used, such as management’s projection
on the future revenues and operating results by investigating checking
the financial performance of each CGU during the year ended 31
December 2022;

7 A 45 B < A LG 0 S R TR AR ) SO AR AR B R - LR
KB e ELRAHERE
examining the business development plans and historical annual

growth of each CGU to evaluate the growth rate of each CGU;
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Key audit matter

P B A (4

Goodwill impairment assessment (Continued)

F AR BT a2 S T ey A B A AR A
S B A e B B R A

We focused on this area because of the complex
and subjective management estimation made by

management on the key assumptions.

R B 8 A 5 6 A R B 5 2.4,3 )16
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and

16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(iv)

)

(vi)

AL SNEB RS (AT 2 BT 0 ~ RE) B
Evaluated the competency, capabilities and objectivity of the External

Valuer;

Pl 2 I (s AT () UK BE AT DA T ARG 5 2
SCB I S HLE s K&

Evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed by management on the
key assumptions to understand the impact of the reasonable changes

in assumptions on the recoverable amount; and

ATl B P B U (E ARG B R R R R 0
Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to impairment

assessment of goodwill.
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Key audit matter

V- Co) LY st

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
MREFZHEFTAZF—H BEEES
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As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount
of trade receivables of the Group was RMB282.7
million, including the gross amount of RMB325.3
million and the allowance for impairment of
RMB42.6 million.

T 55 M B 5 B WSO B oS o A e A 2 —
THBR S IH > A Htai & MBIk =
HASBRE R - HAE G R hHE 5 IR R
HMGERER (BFRSAEME - BT
ALBk  RTBENER R AT RER B NG Bk
AR AT HA ] 75 0B ) IR A0 ) BRI o

We identified the recoverability assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements and the significant judgement
exercised by management in estimating the expected
credit losses for trade receivables including, the
existence of disputes, historical payment records,
forward-looking factors and any other available
information that may impact the estimated expected

credit losses.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

T TR AR T o oy i L o S O

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

F 4 ATl o SR T W ] o ) B A P B4

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade receivables

included:

(@)

(if)

(iii)

T AR B A B RESGRIE TRS B 1R A0 7 DA R R A
o] S B LT W [ 44 ) B S 2 1 0

obtaining an understanding of how management assessed the expected
credit losses for trade receivables, and evaluating the key controls

relating to the monitoring of the recoverability of trade receivables;

AL R B B BT O R R S (R RTEEIRE
K HTRESER R LB ER)

evaluating and testing the methodologies and data/parameters used by
management, including historical loss information, forward-looking

factors and the expected loss rate;

AT T IEE R > ik B B R v R AR BRI B 5 JE
WCHTE R B B L 5
executing analytical review procedures by analysing the fluctuations of

significant outstanding balances and trade receivable turnover days;
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B SR

Key audit matter

B 5 WA 5 B 1R (A7)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

T AR IR T o o i P R S A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables (Continued)

PR B 0 A 5 A R B 3 B 20
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 20

to the consolidated financial statements.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

TR PRAREE RS LB SR A I 8 SO Bt B 22 B M T Y
BHEfR &AL
testing, on a sampling basis, the subsequent settlement of trade

receivables to cash receipts and the related supporting documentation;

S L 0 S DR R S 3 P A R B M Rl (A
W —F T = HE SRR R RIS E T bR
Hat s &

testing the ageing profile of trade receivables as at 31 December
2022 used in the calculation of the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables, on a sampling basis, to sales invoices and other relevant

documents; and

Al REFRMBREZMELER L -
assessing the adequacy of the Group'’s disclosures in the financial

statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.
The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

U Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

U Conclude on the appropriateness of directors” use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

U Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
31 March 2023
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WE_Z-HF+ A=A
Year ended 31 December 2022

i3 B “E T
Notes 2022 2021
AR NRBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BA REVENUE 5 1,141,293 1,335,788
S LA Cost of sales (888,437) (907,677)
Ecy il GROSS PROFIT 252,856 428,111
HABUA B i Other income and gains 5 33,040 15,980
FTUBE 3L Administrative expenses (157,732) (145,359)
4 7 (s 1R R AR Impairment losses on financial assets, net (126,897) (27,636)
2 el (E Impairment of goodwill 16 (228,849) -
REWENTEER Fair value losses on investment properties 15 (63,600) (27,700)
& R A Finance costs 7 (11,719) (10,109)
BRBERT (B4 #Al (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 (302,901) 233,287
RES Income tax expense 10 22,152 (55,646)
N (BR),/ wF (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (280,749) 177,641
AR A LS - Attributable to:
(E/NIE XN Owners of the parent (281,326) 174,578
JE e I £ Non-controlling interests 577 3,063
(280,749) 177,641
BN FIEE R A AN (LOSSYEARNINGS PER SHARE
B (B518) /2 ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
NN ARKE
RMB RMB
A T Basic and diluted 12 0.27) 0.17
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WE-Z- A=+ —HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2022

L S —E—

2022 2021
ARBTI ARWFIC
RMB 000 RMB 000
N (ER) ik (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (280,749) 177,641
HAbZTERA  (EH) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
AR ER T EE Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be
sz HAh 2 ERA reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(J518) -
AN T AR E B 251 Translation difference of the financial statements of
W1 T B 2 AR group companies into presentation currency 8 (14,379)
AERERBHER 2B EHE  Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that
wz Hf2mRA B will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
o] subsequent periods 8 (14,379)
FENHAMETRA (E#H) >  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR
ERBLIH THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 8 (14,379)
ENLE () WA  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR
THE YEAR (280,741) 163,262
DN W/ Attributable to:
(SYNCIEZEUN Owners of the parent (281,318) 160,199
P B Non-controlling interests 577 3,063
(280,741) 163,262
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RS A=T—H
31 December 2022

WaE e SIS e S
Notes 2022 2021
NRWFIT ANR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB000
FeHy NON-CURRENT ASSETS
EN G Property and equipment 13 5,926 7,570
il R Right-of-use assets 14(a) 4,382 8,194
Ei'a-CyES Investment properties 15 86,190 166,490
7 2 Goodwill 16 537,777 766,626
HAh ey & = Other intangible assets 17 44,697 52,127
i =N E’Jﬁg Investment in associates 18 1,180 980
Tl A B R OA Finance lease receivables 19 - 53,718
R HER T & Deferred tax assets 26 53,383 20,321
I i e A Total non-current assets 733,535 1,076,026
B E CURRENT ASSETS
Tl U R Finance lease receivables 19 35,880 58,795
B 5 e R IA Trade receivables 20 282,667 310,832
WH&IE%JE&% AR Due from related companies 32 110,004 275,024
BT E /\ﬁﬂ%q&%klﬁ Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
B A 21 127,836 56,361
4 RARTT 4L Cash and bank balances 22 691,627 741,530
T G Total current assets 1,248,014 1,442,542
B EE CURRENT LIABILITIES
4 5 AT K IE Trade payables 23 149,479 202,118
HoAth A} IE&WE M Other payables and accruals 24 417,958 479,932
Jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ NEIF- Due to related companies 32 2,040 2,594
e &/ﬁ\ﬁi’.ﬁ%ﬁ Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 25 85,017 87,544
FS@HWE Tax payable 40,566 37,365
HEAE Lease liabilities 14(b) 69,412 70,596
RN R Total current liabilities 764,472 880,149
B A NET CURRENT ASSETS 483,542 562,393
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“E -+ A=+—H
31 December 2022

it 5 B S —ER T
Notes 2022 2021
ARIEFIT ANRBTIL
RMB000 RMB’000
7 LR I Y £ £ TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,217,077 1,638,419
TR B A NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FHERAT S Hopth 3k Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 25 15,100 30,555
HEAE Lease liabilities 14(b) 2,976 79,808
AR TH A K Deferred tax liabilities 26 18,596 44,578
oA AT 3K IH Other payables 24 11,114 10,177
FETiE) A (A Total non-current liabilities 47,786 165,118
T E NET ASSETS 1,169,291 1,473,301
oS EQUITY
B R BEA N\ RE AN BE 22 Equity attributable to owners of the parent
A Share capital 27 7,867 7,867
filitts Reserves 28 1,155,776 1,443,273
1,163,643 1,451,140
RS Non-controlling interests 5,648 22,161
HERERS TOTAL EQUITY 1,169,291 1,473,301
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WEZR A= HIMEE
Year ended 31 December 2022

BB AR

Attributable to owners of the parent

wE B
CHMRE Rl SRR AORG REGGE WBGG RN

M3t R

Statutory  Exchange Non-

Issued Share  Capital ~ Merger  surplus fluctuation  Retained controlling
capital premium*  reserve*  reserve® reserves®  reserves®  profits* Total ~interests

g

Total
equity

NRHTT NRRT AR T ARBTR NBR T ARRT T ARKTH ARRTT ARB T ARN T

RUBUDO  RMBUQO ~ RMBUWO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOY  RMBUO)  RMBUO  RMBUGO  RMBUO
Wik Witsa  Mibse)  Mibso  Wibso)
Note 27 Note28() Note28(b) Note 28(c) Note 28(d)
R=F=—-A-H At 1 January 2021 7867 1,134,189 275 (40488) 21543 (61290) 299570 1363566 20070 17383636
EREH Profit o for e year - - - - - - AT U4 308 IME
FRi2mER Other comprehensive loss for the
L Jar
BEMBREEENEAER  Exchange diferences on
translation of the financial
statements = = = = - (143719 - (143719 - (143719
ER2miGEs Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - - - (4319 174578 160,199 3063 163,262
BAEERRES Transfer to statutory surplus
- funds - - - -0 - ) - - -
ERCE RERMEE  Final 2020 dividend decared - ) - - - - - (D) - ()
Wﬁl‘ﬁ%/& ﬂ Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 1858 1858
B2l lia Capital injection from non-
‘ controlling interests = = = = = - = = 2450 2450
RIS UL Dividends paid to non-
controlling shareholders = - - - - - - - (9,280) (5,280)
REFZEFTAZF=R A3l December 2021 7867 L0656 2015 (dodss) BN (56) 4269 1ALD ;060 1473300
REFZEFZA=4=H Ac31 December 2021 and |
&:?::@%HQH January 2022 79607 LOGL3GE 2075 (d0488) 43012 (15660) 452679 I45LI40 22061 1473301
E (B8) /A (Lossprofic for for the year - - - - - - 8L 083 ST (280749)
LN LTI Other comprehensive income for
the year
BRHRFEEENER AR Exchange diferences on
translation of the financial
statement - - - - - 8 - § - 8
ERZEIA/ (BB 48 Toul comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - = = § (2813200 (281318) 577 (280,741)
EEZOE STl Dividends paid to non-
controlling shareholders = = = = - - - - (1,750) (1,750)
BAEERRES Transfer to statutory surplus
‘ funds - - - - 8,011 - @ - - -
i 2y 4} Acquisition of non-controlling
interests = = (6,179) - - - - 6,179 (15340)  (21,519)
REFZZEFZAZ4—H A3l December 2022 7867 L06LS64 (4004  (40488) 51023 (75,66) 163342 1,163,643 5048 1,169,291

* FEMERIAER-Z - _F+ A=+ *
— H & A MBI DR K & A R AR A
R#1,155,776,00070 (=& = —4 : AR#
1,443,273,0007C) ©

2022.

These reserve accounts comprise the total consolidated reserves of RMB1,155,776,000 (2021:

RMB1,443,273,000) in the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December
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HEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HWE-F - —HFEt-H=1—HILEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

it 5 TR T4 R
Notes 2022 2021
ANRWFIT ANRH T
RMB’000 RMB000
REmE R CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BRBEAT (518, Y6 A (Loss)/Profit before tax (302,901) 233,287
TR Adjustments for:
S5 LA AR Finance costs, net 7 11,719 10,109
FLEWA Interest income (2,264) (1,062)
BOEWISE NP EEE Fair value losses on investment properties 15 63,600 27,700
EN &Y KN Depreciation of property and equipment 6,13 5,201 5,861
S E T Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,14 3,552 3,352
ey HA Y Amortisation of other intangible assets 6,17 7,157 6,342
T B S R Impairment of finance lease receivables 6,19 (766) 2,932
B 5 RENGR A (E Impairment of trade receivables 6,20 16,850 11,100
JRE W B e ) S (L Impairment of due from related companies 6,32 108,836 12,707
HoAth W R IE 8 E Impairment of other receivables 6,21 1,977 897
P A (E Impairment of goodwill 6,16 228,849 -
141,810 313,225
EEJ%W%}(E\@W / Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
() 10,843 (46,739)
FEATIH » HABESCKIE  Increase in prepayments, other receivables and
B A S other assets (72,389) (19,329)
JRRE W B ) R SEL A4 Increase in amounts due from related companies (12,114) (155,765)
JREAST R /A ) S TR Bk Decrease in amounts due to related companies (490) (2,270)
B 5 AT sE () (Decrease)/increase in trade payables
4 (51,230) 30,119
HAbRERTKIE R ERT 2 (Decrease)/increase in other payables and
(D), Hahn accruals (44,472) 144,027
LW/ () Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 1,720 (1,616)
% P B 4 1 Increase in restricted cash (3,640) =
il L 5 R A 2 sl Decrease in finance lease receivable 64,453 17,718
R A Bl 4 Cash generated from operations 34,491 279,370
B Interest received 2,264 1,062
EAFLE Interest paid (5,659) (5,585)
EATBIIHE Tax paid (28,274) (79,266)
RETHRH BB Net cash flows from operating activities
i 2,822 195,581
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HABESHER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEZ - HF+-A=1+—HItEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

Bifsl e s —F A
Notes 2022 2021
AR T ANBWHTFIT
RMB’000 RMB 000
BREWHHHABAERNE  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
HERWZE - WUB BRI Purchases of items of property, plant and

H equipment 13 (4,012) (6,549)
HEIE - BB KEMHIE  Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

EPRCE e plant and equipment 260 877
WS E AT B Purchase of other intangible assets 17 “) (2,081)
HE MY EE I3 Proceeds from disposal of other intangible

JH assets 124 191
HEEUCHE— BB /A AN Settlement of payables for acquisition of a

JRE A+t IE subsidiary - (9,800)
W B A I ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 29 - (847,955)
8 — [HT B A W Disposal of a subsidiary 30 (4,551) =
NS A RN IE Investment in associates (200) (980)
BREEH B SR E Net cash flows used in investing activities

i (8,383) (866,297)
REEB B EHE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Iv) BRI ) 2 K Repayment to related companies — (21)
HERIT R New bank loans 89,957 127,366
B RAT S A Bk Repayment of bank and other loans (107,939) (45,142)
1] B8 A R FEFE R L. Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

;1958 of a subsidiary (1,750) (5,280)
JEPE e £ Capital injection from non-controlling interests - 2,450
Wi i I e A Acquisition of non-controlling interests (21,519) -
HIRAIIE Final dividend declared - (72,625)
M (FHBFE) Lease payments including related interests (5,019) (36,253)
R Y P A B i Net cash flows from financing activities

T (46,270) (29,505)
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HEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZZ- A=t HIREE
Year ended 31 December 2022

WaE e I S e Saa:
Notes 2022 2021
ANRWFIT ANRH T
RMB’000 RMB000
RERBESEYWA  NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
| EQUIVALENTS (51,831) (700,221)
FENB S KBRS FEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 736,914 1,451,514
HFE 2 At ) o 28 R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 8 (14,379)
ERBIE R B EE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 685,091 736,914
BERBESEYASR  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
ki AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bl RARAT S R Cash and bank balances 22 691,627 741,530
o % Ko Less: Pledged deposits 2,896 4,616
2 PR B 4 Restricted cash 3,640 _
B&eRBRMNHB4E LI  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS
SEEY STATED IN THE STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS 685,091 736,914
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Notes to Financial Statements
—EZ - F+-H=1+—H
31 December 2022

1.

ol B SR

AANABR -F—/NFE+ZA+LHE
B & BF 5 GE A L B S | o A
R GRS BE (74 190 Elgin Avenue,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008,

Cayman Islands °

AR AR B A ) AR N RIE A
B ([P, ok A = A 5
RV EREEE M - FETH
(B RS B At T 16 (B AR 5 LA T v R 8
R o

AAARBHR-F_FFELATH (L
i H ) RS S A R
(1B 2P ) EM LT -

ANFEBER L AL BRI

A5 P 24 6 Y
A A EBIEA AT -

4

Name

HRA -
Directly held:

Future Prosperity Holdings Limited
([ Future Prosperity (BVI)])

Future Prosperity Holdings Limited
(“Future Prosperity (BVI)")

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 December 2018. The registered office address of the
Company is 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
9008, Cayman Islands.

The Company's subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
property management services, value-added services to non-property
owners, community value-added services for residential and non-
residential properties, commercial operational management services in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC")/Mainland China.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10
July 2020 (the “Listing Date”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate controlling

shareholder of the Group is Mr. Ou Zongrong.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AL/ it
DREER/ KNS
Al NI BRI TERE
Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity
registered attributable to  Principal

share capital the Company  activities

FRAETRS LO00ETE 1007 SRER
(EEERRED/
e SNy g
British Virgin USD1,000 100%  Investment holding
Islands (‘BVI")/
22 January 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

“E - HF+—HA=+—H

31 December 2022

1. 2 REEER @ 1.
A BA K A 7 W& R (4

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL/ ot
WERRH CHmER / AR
a4 DREEHY AR REEA  FEEH
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
establishment ordinary/ equity
and place of registered attributable to  Principal
Name operations share capital the Company  activities
BRI ()
Directly held: (Continued)
ERRBHEARA (ERRHHE)) RERRE/ 1E 100 BEER
ZE-N\ETZATAR
Zhenro Services China Limited BVI/ UsD1 100%  Investment holding
(“Zhento Services (BVI)') 19 December 2018
A,
Indirectly held:
Future Prosperity (HK) Limited wib/ 1T 1009 fEHR
([ Future Prosperiy (HK)) “F-NEZAZFH
Future Prosperity (HK) Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 100%  Investment holding
(“Future Prosperity (HK)") 20 February 2018
ERRHFEARA (TERRERE]) B/ 1T 100%  BEHER
- MNEHZAZ TR
Zhenro Services Hong Kong Hong Kong/ HKS$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited ("Zhenro Services (HK)") 24 December 2018
RMEECEERAARA AR B H1,0000000007C 1007  EHER
(RMESE]) « (TeB) /sl /
“E-NE-AZtR
Fuzhou Huihua Corporate People’s Republic RMB1,000,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Management Consultancy of China (‘PRC’)
Co., Ltd. (‘Fuzhou Huihua")* Mainland China/
31 January 2019
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E——ft-A=+—H
31 December 2022

Lo 2 SRR ) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
A e N w) B R (4 Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
AL/ it
WERAH CEfEER/ AN
4 NREEHY AR AT REEA  FEEH
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
establishment ordinary/ equity
and place of registered attributable to ~ Principal
Name operations share capital the Company  activities

R « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

FRERERBARA E /R, NRHEL052,640,000 7 1007 HEER
ZE-CRZAAR
Fujian Zhenro Property Setvice Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMBI,052,640,000 100%  Property management
8 March 2013
ERERIARA B/ R,/ 50,000,000 00 WEER
(TEMERH]) “ZREECACH
Zhenro Property Services Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100%  Property management
(“Zhenro Property Services) 2 February 2000
FHERDEERARAR B/ R/ NBH1,000,000 70 1007 WEER
“E-TELATER
Fuzhou Zhento Property Management Co., Lid. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB,000,000 100%  Property management
17 September 2010
IREERERERLARAR B/ R/ NRH2,000,0007C 007 FHERE/ L
“F-NERARH
Jiangxi Meishi Property Brokerage Co., Led. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 100%  Property agency /brokerage
6 June 2019
BRI ERRRT A RA E / AR/ AR 5,000,007 s PEER
“F-MFLAZTH
Hubei Changfang Zhenro PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000 51%  Property management
Property Services Co., Lid. 30 July 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

“E - HF+—HA=+—H

31 December 2022

1. v REEER @ 1.
A BA K A 7 W& R (4

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL/ ot
WERRH BRfbER / KA
4 DREEHY kA BRI LR
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
establishment ordinary/ equity
and place of registered attributable to  Principal
Name operations share capital the Company  activities
IR« (4
Indirectly held: (Continued)
ERPERIARA R/ HER,/ AR H50,000,0007C 00 HEER
(R [ RE R RAA ) e % S i g p
Zhenro Enterprise Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100%  Property management
(formerly known as “Jiangsu 21 February 2001
Aitao Property Management Co., Ltd.”)
RUTESHLIERIARAT R/ HER,/ RS 000,0007C 00 HEER
(IR RUERIEERARAT) - NEZARH
Changsha Zhengwu Commercial PRC/Mainland China/ RMB3,000,000 100%  Property management
Enterprise Property Service Co., Led. 6 March 2018
(formerly known as “Changsha Aitao
Property Services Co., Led.”)
THEBANFENAREL L TR/ R/ IR 11,000,007 1007 HEER
(NTARgR ) ~F%-4—HNA
Jiangsu Sutie Property Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB11,000,000 100%  Property management
Co., Ltd. (*Jiangsu Sutie”) 4 January 2001
EREEBRE AR E /HER,/ AR H50,000,0007C 00 HEER
“E-NERAZHIA
Zhenro Property Management Setvices Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100%  Property management
24 April 2019
ML EERLARAR 8/ B,/ NBH1,000,000 70 1007 FERERE
“ENELATH
Suzhou Keli Property Brokerage Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Property agency services
10 July 2019
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Notes to Financial Statements

—®——f+—A=+—H

31 December 2022

1. 2v REBER @ 1.
A BA K A 7 BB (4

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL/ it
WERAH CEfEER/ KA
4 NREEHY AR AT REEA  FEEH
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
establishment ordinary/ equity
and place of registered attributable to ~ Principal
Name operations share capital the Company  activities
PR - ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BHESESHRA R/ R/ NBRHEL,000,000 70 100% HEES
“F-NET-R1HA
Guangzhou Zhengwu Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Commercial trading
14 November 2018
HEEREFHEARAT B/ R,/ B H20,000,0007C 100%  HEES
i e &IV |
Shanghai Zhengzhi Electronic PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100%  Commercial trading
Commerce Co., Led. 12 August 2020
EHEERRREELARAR /B NBH1,000,000 70 0% FEAL
“ECTEAACE-R
Fuzhou Rongguanjia Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Real estate brokerage
Brokerage Co., Led. 21 September 2020
ERRFHEERARAA /s, R 100,000,007 0% HEER
“ETELATCA
Zhenro Rongxiang Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100%  Property management
Management Co., Led. 12 October 2020
B ERE A RA E /AR ARHEL000,0007C 1007 WEER
“RTEERATLH
Xiamen Zhento Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB,000,000 100%  Property management
Management Co., Led. 17 June 2020
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Notes to Financial Statements
“E - HF+—HA=+—H
31 December 2022

1.

2] BAEBIE B )
A BA K E A 7 R (4

4

Name

EERA « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

RN RHEL RS A RAA

Fuzhou High Tech Zone Zhenro
Property Service Co., Led.

ERFEERARAT

Zhenro Business Management Co., Ltd.

HEREAEERARAA

Shanghai Rongjue Apartment
Management Co., Led.

BRI RBH A RAR

Qidong Zhento Property Setvice Co., Ltd.

R AR

Hubei Rongshi Property Service Co., Led.

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL/ ot
WHRAH
DREEHY
Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations

il / PR,/
“EZ-FE=RZANA
PRC/Mainland China/

24 March 2021

/R
i S 2y o
PRC/Mainland China/
30 June 2021

B/ B,/
“ET-BARCHER
PRC/Mainland China/

23 August 2021

I/ R,/
“EEAZEER
PRC/Mainland China/

23 August 2021

HE /PR
N
PRC/Mainland China/

21 October 2021
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CEmEER /
kBB
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

NE®612244 900

RMB612,244,900

B B50,505,0007

RMB50,505,000

NE81,000,0007

RMB1,000,000

NERH6.000,0007C

RMB6,000,000

NEH1.000,0007C

RMB1,000,000

KA
R

Percentage of
equity

attributable to
the Company

100%

100%

9%

9%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

FEEH

Principal
activities

ESE

Property management

VESE

Property management

ES

Property management

WEER

Property management

WEER

Property management
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E——ft-A=+—H
31 December 2022

1.

Al RAEBER 2
A A K A F R (4

4

Name

IR« (4

Indirectly held: (Continued)

HREERSHAARAT

Shanghai Rongzun Business
Consulting Co., Led.

SRR RA

Shanghai Rongcong Business

Consulting Co., Ltd.

LAHERARA

Shanghai Rongkehui Technology Co., Ltd.

HEEBRENEBARAA

Shanghai Rongzhijia Decotation Co., Ltd.

IE% (BH) BEERARAR

Zhenro (Putian) Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL/ it
WHRAH
NREEHY
Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations

&/ B,/
“E-ERATIA
PRC/Mainland China/
14 May 2021

il / R,/
BC S5 Iy
PRC/Mainland China/
20 May 2021

il / B/
e Sl v o2
PRC/Mainland China/
20 July 2021

0l /HEN/
“R-ERAZHER
PRC/Mainland China/

23 June 2021

/R,
B S i Eon ol
PRC/Mainland China/
30 June 2021

CEfEER/
AR AT
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

NRHEL,000,0007C

RMB1,000,000

A 81,0000007

RMB,000,000

AE88,000,0007
RMBS,000,000

R 15,000,0007C

RMB15,000,000

NRH10,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000

KA
RBER 21

Percentage of
equity

attributable to
the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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TEEH

Principal
activities

i ke

Business consulting

i il

Business consulting

Bl

Technical services

kil

Decoration

HEER

Commercial management
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Notes to Financial Statements

“E - HF+—HA=+—H

31 December 2022

1. v REEER @ 1.
A BA K A 7 W& R (4

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

FAL1 VA A
WHR RS eRfGER / A
A UREELS AR AR [ GY A
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
establishment ordinary/ equity
and place of registered attributable to  Principal
Name operations share capital the Company  activities
FEeAEAs < (4)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BT EREEAHEERERAT e/ R/ AEHEL,000,0007C 00%  HEEH
“EZERAETH
Fuzhou Mawei Zhenro PRC/Mainland China/ RMBI,000,000 100%  Commercial management
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. 30 June 2021
HRERREERARA o,/ PR/ B 81,000,000 100% HEEH
“ET-ERA=ETH
Nanjing Zhenro Commercial PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Commercial management
Management Co., Led. 30 June 2021
ERMETHEERARA o/ A,/ R H50,000,0007C 100%  HEEH
TR T
Zhenro Neighborhood Commercial PRC/Mainland China/ RMB30,000,000 100%  Commercial management
Management Co., Led. 30 June 2021
ERRRREERARAA & /A NEHL,000,0007C 007 HEER
“ECERAETH
Zhenro Taixing Commercial PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Commercial management
Management Co., Led. 30 June 2021
BxEAHEERERAT il / L/ AEHEL000,0007E 100%  PEEH
“R_ERAZTH
Xi'an Zhenro Commercial PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Commercial management
Management Co., Ltd. 30 June 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements

CERCCEFZA=ET—H
31 December 2022

1. A REEER »
A BA K A 7 BB (4

4

Name

R « ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)

HEERHERRREARAR

Shanghai Zhento Commercial

Management Co., Ltd.
TN ERMEE AR

Fuzhou Zhenro Commetcial

Management Co., Ltd.
BEFIME LRI R AR AR

Nanchang Qingshanhu District

Zhenro Chengdong Property Services Co., Led.

IR AR A

Jiangxi Zhengyun Property
Services Co., Ltd.

AW RS ARAR

Putian Zhengxin City Services Co., Ld.

* AR TR A4 o I 2 A 2 1 8

23 o

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL/ Bt
WHRAH CEREEHER / AN
UREERS BB Rirp  FEER
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
establishment ordinary/ equity
and place of registered attributable to ~ Principal
operations share capital the Company  activities
/R, NRH1,000,0007C 005 HEEE
B S,y o ol
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Commercial management
30 June 2021
/s / NRH1,000,0007C 1007 HEEE
I 7 R
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Commercial management
30 June 2021
/B M 00000070 s PEER
“ECTERATER
PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS,000,000 51%  Property management
13 June 2022
/s NS 000,000 70 s YEER
B S
PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS,000,000 51%  Property management
17 February 2022
E /AR R ,000,000 78 s PERER
i Sl e
PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS,000,000 51%  Property management
25 February 2022
& Fuzhou Huihua is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

43R Annual Report 2022 119



B 5 A B
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“E - HF+—HA=+—H
31 December 2022

2.1

2] BAEBE B )
A BA K A 7 R RE (4)

A% S T v B R A6 A R A
ARFAERAT

P S w0 A 4 B 8 ) 9 38 304 R
Ty AL FE HE R RRE G E N
AR XA REER RS - TR
AL MHE e 1E AL 4 A8

A B3 A R R P o e ) 2
SR LA Y I RS o T U B A
AR B 38 8 ML SE > i R T A S
RS DL AR 5 I B W R - AT
TRE A 3B i R o T 5 S R R 0 B2 ) A
MR > DA AR S M B IR A AE
E B 7 35 TR o S T 2 A B K R B
it o

iy

i ke

AR A B R AR A ) R B 4 F
(M A%H]) B2 —F "+ "H
=t — HILEEN B ®RE o BB AR
T — [H o A% ) 4 T 4 42 o
(EEAHIEEE) - EAEEH2HE
B G EH I T B [ ORI R B
LDV S iz ok Eve e E L MINGIES
ALEMERMARN UL EREH S
T B B0 AR ) 5% 5 e Ry - BT
TR E -

2.1

0 IEAMRHEEA R /AF Zhenro Services Group Limited

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are all limited liability

companies.

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company to
directly translate the Chinese names of these companies as they have not

registered any official English names.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value
of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed

of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendment to TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to the

Group are described below:

a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that occurred
on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no business combinations
during the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

b)

)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by IAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after 1 January 2021.
Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the property,
plant and equipment being available for use, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the

Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all
its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were
identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have any impact on

the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

d)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are applicable to

the Group are as follows:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022.
As there was no modification or exchange of the Group's
financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of

the Group.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making a detailed assessment of the impact
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Group
considers that these new and revised IFRSs may result in changes in
certain accounting policies and are unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial performance and financial position in the period

of initial application.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of

the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group'’s share of net assets under the

equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment
in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group'’s investment in

an associate.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that

together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after

reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets

or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and

the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act

in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,

either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of year.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than deferred tax assets, financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-

generating units.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Coatinued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of year as to whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person
(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

or
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

134 EXRRHEEEAE R AF Zhenro Services Group Limited

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

@

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the patent of the Group.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property and equipment is
classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to

its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property and equipment over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose ate as follows:

Machinery 10%
Electronic equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Leasehold improvements 33%

Wherte parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method ate reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties include car park spaces held to earn rental income
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes or for sale in the ordinary course of business, and
leased commercial properties which are being recognised as right-of-use
assets and subleased by the Group under operating leases. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair

value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. A leased property
which is recognised as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or

disposal.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of other intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Other intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
other intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each

financial year end.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5

years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in business combinations is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Customer relationship has a finite useful
life and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected useful
lives, taking into account the prior experience of the renewal pattern of

property management contracts, which is 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

a)

138 EZE M 4 B A B A 7] Zhenro Services Group Limited

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Leased office buildings 3 to 5 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the

asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

b)

19)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g. a change
to future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of buildings and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are considered

to be of low value.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease

or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income
in profit or loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they

are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance

leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the lease payments and related payments (including
the initial direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of profit or loss so

as to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption, the Group

classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Rental income derived from the Group’s sublease services is presented
as revenue and rental income derived from leasing of car park spaces is

presented as other income.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the
Group applies IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(“IFRS 157) to allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease component

on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial

recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the
original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of

rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease

payments for the new lease.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently

measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit

or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value through profit or

loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that

the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or

impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed

from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). The Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are

more than 90 days past due.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and

forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss

allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and note receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-

looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and

borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies and interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included

in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts

is recognised in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks which are not

restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided

that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of year of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of year, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of year between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business consolidation and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business consolidation and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of year
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of year and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of year.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected

to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that

the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange

for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently

resolved.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or setvices is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the

practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a)  Property management services

For property management setvices, the Group bills a fixed amount
for services provided on a monthly or quarterly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice
and that corresponds directly with the value of performance

completed.

The Group charged property management fees in respect of the
property management services on a lump sum basis and on a

commission basis.

For property management services income from properties managed
on a lump sum basis, where the Group acts as principal and is
primarily responsible for providing the property management
services to the property owners, the Group recognises the fees
received or receivable from property owners as its revenue and all

related property management costs as its cost of services.

For property management services income from properties
managed on a commission basis, the Group recognises the revenue,
which is calculated by a certain percentage of the total property
management fees received or receivable from the property units on
behalf of the property owners, for arranging and monitoring the

services as provided by other suppliers to the property owners.



485 e i

Notes to Financial Statements
~E - HF+—HA=1+—H
31 December 2022

2.4 HRERHBORBEE &)

W AHER. (48)
KREHWN (48)

(b)

(c)

F KL IR

556 = 0 (B 5 0 95 160 0 S B B
LR T S MBS - BEANE M -
T 5 SR AR RS K AL Al
i g A 5 LA % T et
o

1) ) 3 B B 2 3L B 8 S~
SNE MRS ~ 5 A MBS B AL
AR B8 5 4 I 356 2 3 (e M s e A
RO (F ) BE o 5 2R e i 2 )
BB A7 e M s A 4 B T R A A

IS ) Bt R 1 2 A M AT
SROBUA B R Hs SR R W g ]
TSR, o T 0 81 T AR T IR 7
i S A R AR -

I IR

Ak [ 94 (R 0 99 50 Dt 2 0 M
S ER - A B S AR
B/ 3 e S (B R

PR Tl NS )
I 5 IR e 8, o 32 5 ot B TR £ A4
b D 3 (L5 B S B S AT

HE AT~ A B B B HEA RS LA
B 3 [ S (AR5 7 A RO MR AT
SRR B AR Hs 2 % 5 R A5 16 1
RO [ P 22 {16 9 M) 2 R e T

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

)

(c)

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners include sales
assistance services, additional tailored services, sales of goods,
housing repair services, pre-delivery inspection services to property

developers, preliminary planning and design consultancy services.

Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners
including sales assistance services, additional tailored services
customised, housing repair services, and pre-delivery inspection
services to property developers, which are billed on a monthly or
quarterly basis and are recognised as revenue over time when the

relevant services are rendered.

Revenue from preliminary planning and design consultancy
services is recognised at the point in time when such services are
rendered and accepted by the customer. Revenue from sales of

goods is recognised when the goods have been delivered.

Community value-added services

Community value-added services include home-living services,
car park management, rental assistance and other services, and

common area value-added services.

Revenue from home-living services is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered. Payment of the transaction is
due immediately when the community value-added services are

rendered.

Revenue from car park management, leasing assistance and other
services, and common area value-added services is recognised when
the related services are rendered and the customer simultaneously

receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(d)  Brand and management output services

Brand management output services are provided to property owners

and include consultancy services and tenant sourcing setvices.

Consultancy services include market positioning, business planning
consultancy services and design and construction consultancy
services, which are billed on a monthly basis and are recognised as

revenue over time when the relevant services are rendered.

For tenant sourcing services, the Group charges a pre-agreed
amount in respect of each lease agreement entered and the revenue
is recognized at a point in time when a tenant enters into a lease

agreement with the property owner.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income derived from leasing of car park spaces is recognised on
a time proportion basis over the lease terms. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of

the dividend can be measured reliably.
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A contract liability is recognised when the payment is received or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers

control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property and
equipment and other intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria

are met:

(a)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract

that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance

obligations in the future.
() The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the statement
of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other

contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. The subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Interim dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately

as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the

functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of year.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) until the net investment is disposed of, at which time the
cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax
charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary

items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also

recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The functional currency of the Company is HKD and certain subsidiaries’
functional currencies are currencies other than RMB. These financial
statements are presented in RMB because the Group’s business is mainly
conducted in the PRC. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each of the reporting period and their profits
or losses are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate
to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular

foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfolio which mainly includes the car park spaces in note
15. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting
a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to
substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of these properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as

operating leases.

Principal versus agent consideration for revenue from contracts

with customers

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those services to be provided by the

other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Principal versus agent consideration for revenue from contracts

with customers (Continued)

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified service before that

service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of the specified service by another party. In this case, the Group
does not control the specified service provided by another party before
that service is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified

services to be provided by the other party.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill was
RMB537,777,000. Further details are given in note 16.

£ Annual Report 2022 159



785 e i

Notes to Financial Statements
“E - HF+—HA=+—H
31 December 2022

LS Eig:l- VTN d

i A S
B 5 M WOsKOH U s R

A% SR T ) 988 A0 4 B 51 5 0 B MO
TR SR 1R o AR T B A B
FEEEARZEEF 28 (M 5EEF 8
Fl) 938 B0 K A5 1 o B R R i A
SEEE B L B KRG o AEEHE
A IE A DA 5 B EL AT B 1k R I JEE s
5 BB 1R A o SRS o i T 00 A8 97
AR DL TR S R — A 2 T T i 2 K
BAEH M A ETREREAE .
RE-FZZZHFFA=+—H > ELE
SRR BT o 0 AR A
() -

APAG I S B AR BBAERIR UL &
TH I 5 s 4R 2 TR A B O B R KA
Al o B BB E N S HA 5 Z R0
HRA PR 2B R - AL
CRER FEE W ES ENTRiR D) A
REEFRARNEBEZARI - AR
AL H o KA R R ERE
FHIEER I B 20

BESE B B

O S T4 T E ) g T I B 2 AR DA
AR B B IR S B oK B R B T s 15 10 45
T AR - o W LA A SR i A T
JHAEG B TS 100 ey 2~ R I BLIA
KRB ARB MBI E RN SRR - &
K R A B T LR E T AR G
TEBLIE G G > IR AR A HE SR B i
B BT e T I3 0 IRy THD B 7K <28 ] o 2R B
BB o ARAEME 5B
K TEL PR 0 A I 48 88 1 R 26

)

160 1E4% M7 4 B4 A 7] Zhenro Services Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type).
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical default
rates are adjusted. As at 31 December 2022, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates

are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs

on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 20.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
information about the deferred tax on the Group’s trade receivables is

disclosed in note 26.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial long-term assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets, including right-of-use assets, property and
equipment and other intangible assets at the end of year. These non-
financial long-term assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales or lease
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of

those cash flows.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including car park spaces and the leased
commercial properties held as a right-of-use asset, are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value, details
of which are disclosed in note 15. The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by reference to valuations conducted on these
properties by an independent and professionally qualified valuer using
property valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
prevailing market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
these assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties included in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Details of the fair
value of investment properties are disclosed in note 15 to the financial

statements.
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st A e E M (48) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
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The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, value-added services to non-property owners,
community value-added services and commercial operational management
services. Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s
resources are integrated and no discrete operating segment information is

available. Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

During the year, the Group operated within one geographical location
because all of its revenue was generated in Mainland China and all of its
long-term assets/capital expenditure were located/incurred in Mainland

China. Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.
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4. BBHTWER @) 4,

AREEEFWER

RN R FIE 4 E AR A BR A B K
HMEAR (TIE4MmESEE ] ik A
WAEBMIARKI23% (ZF —4F

20.8%) ° HN > BRIR A IE 45 Hh 7 5 1)
We A SN > [ B — % B E ] — R R —
KT 8 S A I8 R A AR 4R B A Y

10% 8D L o

5. A > JLABMON B 5.

WA T8 T A TR 90 56 LA ~ R S R
(RS~ AL I 9 B AR5 DA 2 it i B A 2
A 114 MR 7 AR RO

A ~ A A Bz A

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

During the year, revenue from Zhenro Properties Group Limited and
its subsidiaries (“Zhenro Properties Group”) contributed 12.3% (2021:
20.8%) to the Group's revenue. Other than the revenue from Zhenro
Properties Group, no revenue derived from sales to a single customer or a
group of customers under common control accounted for 10% or more of

the Group's revenue for the year.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents income from property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners, community value-added services

and brand and management output services during the year.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as follows:

B S e i

2022 2021

ARBTIT ARFIC

RMB 000 RMB 000

EE XA Revenue from contracts with customers 1,099,036 1,313,955
HAbAIE A Revenue from other sources

— AR — Sublease services 42,257 21,833

1,141,293 1,335,788
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5.

BOA ~ JEABOA B et

BEPEAHWA
G AHBAER

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)  Disaggregated revenue information

WG EEME MEME  AMRER
etk etk Wt bR ot
Value-added Brand and
Property  servicesto  Community — management
management  non-property  value-added output
services owners services services Total
ANR¥TE  ARBTL  AREFr AREFT ARETI
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
Y i 2022
T g B Type of goods or services
BN Rendering of services 706,513 186,517 143,474 62532 1,099,036
Wi Geographical market
st Mainland China 706,513 186,517 143,474 62532 1,099,036
W AR e Timing of revenue recognition
HEs A Revenue recognised over time 706,513 161,645 34,790 55,435 958,383
R~ B RE A Revenue recognised at a point in time = 24,872 108,684 7,097 140,653
EREMASHE Total revenue from contracts with
customers 706,513 186,517 143,474 62,532 1,099,036
e a3 2021
T g B Type of goods or setvices
RN Rendering of services 658,328 371,221 264,494 19,912 1,313,995
R Geographical market
" Mainland China 658,328 371,21 264,494 19912 131395
O Timing of revenue recognition
B T ERR A Revenue recognised over time 658,328 360,881 138,348 10205 1,168,260
R ERER A Revenue recognised at a point in time = 10,340 125,646 9,709 145,69
FRENIASH Total revenue from contracts with
customers 658,328 371,221 264,494 19,912 1,313,995
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5. WA > JeAbBOA Bl R ) 5,
BREAERWN (41)
G AHBRAER )

TRBGRAHE B wE AL
P 16 B 5 40 B R C TSR &

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in

the current reporting period that was included in the contract

# liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
e S TR
2022 2021
AW T ANBWT T
RMB 000 RMB000
RERFEA G KB EMN Revenue recognised that was
EHERRIRA included in contract liabilities at
beginning of year:
W) 3 TR DA B b Property management setvices,
i By e s and brand and management
output services 151,277 136,253

Gi) JBHEMLE

A S B A SEAT A9 OB ABEAE
T

V/ES LY W EE T Y
%

SRS R S I I 3 (E RS
ME o AEEEAERLEZNE
BB > 2 R AL
&4 Mk A SR [ K F B A
E(EARERE o ASE M O EE T 1T
BTk AR A KR
BB A A -

Ft i 1 (R

SIS T T AR > R
B —4F > HLR %4 10 45 o e I e
KBITHB L BT o

(ii)  Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Property management services and value-added services to non-

property owners

For property management services and value-added services to
non-property owners, the Group recognises revenue in the amount
that equals the right to invoice which corresponds directly with
the value to the customer of the Group’s performance to date on
a monthly or quarterly basis. The Group has elected the practical
expedient for not disclosing the remaining performance obligations

for these types of contracts.

Community value-added services

The services are rendered in a short period of time which is
generally less than a year and there was no unsatisfied performance

obligation at the end of each of the reporting period.
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5. WOA - JCABON B i ) 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)
REEHWN () Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(i) BHEE (E) (ii)  Performance obligations (Continued)
i R B 1 IR Brand and management outpur services
BUSE T O R R RO T S For brand and management output services to property owners,
25 B A B R e R R the Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals the right
oA > ZUA B ERALE @A 5 to invoice which corresponds directly with the value to property
1R A B 28 v 25 5 8 40 9 B (E AR owners of the Group’s performance to date on a monthly or
HE o ALEFCEREBEATHET Y quarterly basis. The Group has elected the practical expedient for
% NPER SRS AR R not disclosing the remaining performance obligations for these
AL - types of contracts.
HAtfg A Other income
e i SR
2022 2021
ARH T ANRTFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
FEHA Interest income 2,264 1,062
U A Bl Government grants* 18,167 3,866
iEEA N Rental income 1,999 2,966
S (R 0T BB Value added tax additional deduction 2,753 3,048
R B TS RE A Finance income from finance leases 5,969 3,292
HAts Others 1,888 1,746
33,040 15,980
* BE-F-"HF+-H=1+—H * During the year ended 31 December 2022, various government grants
IR > BAMEH N A have been received for operation in Fujian province and Shanghai,
N T B AR AR 2 TE U A Mainland China, to reward business performance and support operational
B RSB 2 R B development of enterprises in that area. There are no unfulfilled conditions
ol A SE A B BRI o AR or contingencies relating to these grants.
N 45 16 A 2 RO A% 1 B s R T
H -
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6. BRBiw ), %A 6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AAEE GBI (&18) A TR/ The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(REA) BT S IR

LiFid i S SR
Notes 2022 2021
ANRIWFFIT ANRHTT
RMB’000 RMB000
WIZE - R Rk it es Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 13 5,201 5,861
ff ARG E Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14(a) 3,552 3,352
HAbSRTY o Amortisation of other intangible
assets 17 7,157 6,342
Kt AHEAEFTEHERF Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities 14(c) 3,007 5,075
1% BAFTT 5 Auditor’s remuneration 3,100 3,463
S 0 RV A Impairment of financial assets, net
il L R R T Bl 1 3 4 Impairment of finance lease
receivables, net 19 (766) 2,932
& 5 RS IR W5 (1 4 Impairment of trade receivables,
net 20 16,850 11,100
JRE ST R B 7 X T A V5 A Impairment of due from related
parties, net 32 108,836 12,707
JFL A R AR T Bk 3 A Impairment of other receivables,
net 21 1,977 897
[ 2R Impairment of goodwill 16 228,849 -
1B BAR AP X (R F K Employee benefit expense
Y ON=F L] (including directors’ and chief
(Fff3E8)) - executive’s remuneration
(note 8)):
TE -~ #ra KHAMmER Wages, salaries and other
allowances 382,475 431,137
RIRE B R AL g taF Pension scheme contributions and
social welfare 63,820 68,279
446,295 499,416
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7. BB 7. FINANCE COSTS

& AT An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
TR Y S
2022 2021
ABRHToC ANRHTF
RMB’000 RMB000
SRAT S FL A FOF B Interest on bank and other borrowings 5,659 5,585
&R EFE B X Interest expense on lease liabilities 6,060 4,524
11,719 10,109
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8. MY Kl mAT N B

M BT - A AR B4 383(1)
(@) (b)* () R(OB LA T (B EFHF
i ERE) LSS 20 4 R 11 A 4 R
REATEABHM T

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:
TR TF TR A
2022 2021
AR AR¥Fr
RMB000 RMB 000
e Fees 600 600
HoAth i 4 Other emoluments:

e B REWEA Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,543 4,715
BERACAT Performance related bonuses 1,020 2,214

RIREFTE 3k Bt & fa Al Pension scheme contributions and social
welfare 253 238
6,416 7,767

@ MBIEPfTEF
AW B~ iR R
AR ZFTEANA T HEZE
BARFBLFRTES - FRX
MPELFATERNREIT

(a) Independent non-executive directors

Mzr. Au Yeung Po Fung, Mr. Ma Haiyue and Mr. Zhang Wei were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 10 June 2020. The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

- S S

2022 2021
AR¥F ANRBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B FPATESF Independent non-executive directors:
Bk o5 M S M. Au Yeung Po Fung 200 200
A A Mr. Zhang Wei 200 200
R B A Mr. Ma Haiyue 200 200
600 600
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8. M REMITBAHFM s

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(4E) REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) HITEFENEHFEE (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
I i 2022
4 R RIS H
Ha EA BRAEAL BER R EREA PR
Salaries, Pension scheme
allowances and Performance- contributions and Total
Fees benefitsinkind  related bonuses social welfare remuneration
ANRETLE  AREFT  ARETZ  AREFT  ARETZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
WirES Executive directors:
R e Mr. Kang Hong’ - 1,873 750 153 2,776
MY 6 A2 Mr. Lin Xiaotong? - 2,270 270 100 2,640
- 4,143 1,020 253 5,416
FanEE Non-executive directors:
B Mr. Huang Xianzhi - 200 - - 200
PR MR e Mr. Chan Wai Kin* - 183 - - 183
Bkt Mr. Liu Wei Liang’ - 17 - - 17
- 400 - - 400
- 4,543 1,020 253 5,816
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8. HHFREMITBAHHM s

(#)

(b) BUTHESERFERTES @

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

(Continued)
TR 2021
e W R BRIk H
6 WA Buiea kM e Fri A A
Salaries, Pension scheme
allowances and Performance-  contributions and Total
Fees  benefitsinkind  related bonuses social welfare remuneration
ANREFT  AREFT  ARETFT  AREFI ANRET
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
WirEH Executive directors:
LUt Mr. Huang Liang' - 210 - 11 21
RS Mr. Kang Hong® - 1,817 1,080 139 3,036
MY Fek> Mr. Lin Xiaotong’ - 2,288 1,134 88 3,510
- 4315 2,214 238 6,767
FfrEE Non-executive directors:
A Mr. Huang Xianzhi - 200 - - 200
BRS¢ Mr. Chan Wai Kin* - 200 - - 200
- 400 - - 400
= 4715 2,214 238 7,167

! HREERE - —FE AR
Bt A AR 2 A B4 22 23 AT BO
# o

2 MEE SR R R+ — A
ANHERTHWTES Wit =
T A R HERE BT
Mg o

g FRESRENR - EF = —FE_AHH
BZAE R PTES -

‘ BRAEMESEER —F =+ —H
T HERHMERATES -

2 BB RAER —E =+
+— ARSI ATE R
R EE-AC T AERAR
HFHELRE -

Mr. Huang Liang has resigned as an executive director and the chief

executive officer of the Company with effect from 5 February 2021.

M. Lin Xiaotong has been appointed as an executive director with effect
from 6 November 2020 and has been appointed as the chief executive
officer with effect from 5 February 2021.

Mr. Kang Hong has been appointed as an executive director with effect
from 5 February 2021.

Mr. Chan Wai Kin has resigned as a non-executive with effect from 11
November 2022.

Mr. Liu Wei Liang has been appointed as a non-executive director with
effect from 11 November 2022 and appointed as chairman of the board

with effect from 20 January 2023.
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9. hAREHHMEER 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

A TN 4 fi e BN R B2 B L4 A
F(ZEZF - MAEF) > HENH
P 155 7 b SC B RES o BEJE A A RIS
INFEREATIN BB F =4 (ZF = —
B =) A B AR A B Y
FEEIR

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
(2021: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2021: three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company, are as follows:

R B

2022 2021

AREF NREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Ha o R EYEA Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,338 2,308

BERACAT Performance related bonuses 284 2,132
RIREFHE K S At & A Al Pension scheme contributions and social

welfare 271 325

2,893 4,765

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

B e LT S0 R R B 2 R e AT
IONESIEE S UN ‘SN

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

BB ¥ Number of employees
R TR
2022 2021
500,001 % 75 £ 1,000,000 TG HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 1 -
1,000,001 #5765 1,500,000% 7 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 -
1,500,001 #5 70 2,000,000%7C  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 2
2,000,001 ¥#IC £ 2,500,000 70 HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
o Total 3 3
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10. Pif3si 10.

INCOME TAX

A% S [ RO A 4 B A B W RE I R A
T A B 5 ) i M I A TR L
R E MR TSR o AR S S
BB AE R R R IR AR A SR
TA B 2 T Iy e 5% A B B R M AL 1Y
Wif B 2 ) B LA A T BT 5B » A SR T
A 78 8 R M RSS2 F A 2 ) B8k 2R A
DL R A FL i 5 N 0 A o0
AL fo] HERRBL i 71 -

HE Y — A TR R 25 o A
25 T B A A = A /N R 4 2 (17
TAGHORI A 36 1) B A5 B0 08 B AR > BT B
HF20% > WA B I RERLRL M A
125% 3 50% 7 HHLBLIE o AL —
FT o 28 B 2 ) 457 77 P B 7 4 Y JRE G AL
B AR R 5 6 9% I TSR
%o

The Group is entitled to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group's subsidiary incorporated in Hong
Kong was not liable for income tax as it did not have any assessable

profits arising in Hong Kong during the reporting period.

The general corporate income tax rate in PRC is 25%. Certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries enjoy the preferential income tax treatment for
Small and Micro Enterprise (“SLE”) with the income tax rate of 20% and
are eligible to have their tax calculated based on 25% or 50% of their
taxable income. One of the Group’s subsidiaries is located in Economic
Area of GuangXi North Bay in western regions of China and enjoy the

preferential income tax rate of 9%.

e S B i
2022 2021
ANBR# T ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
RV — e A - Current — Mainland China:
FERX Charge for the year 32,510 58,916
TR A (Ff3E26) Deferred tax (note 26) (54,662) (3,270)
AR NI S A Total tax charge for the year (22,152) 55,646
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10. Bif3Bt )

1.

AR - AR R W B 4 7
AL M BT 7E ] i I i R B R A L B
T T 6 7 2 £ L i S 4 R
A B B A B B SCR R AT

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at the

effective tax rate for the reporting period is as follows:

-~y —E
2022 2021
ARIFTIL ANRIT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
BRBLHT (B4R i A (Loss)/profit before tax (302,901) 233,287
Ik EBRGTE At the statutory tax rate (75,725) 58,322
FrE A s 7 B P AR BB Lower tax rate for specific provinces or enacted
Fi % by local authority (7,158) (7,502)
AT B X Expenses not deductible for tax 57,831 842
AR B B B O BUE E 1R Tax losses utilised from previous years (660) (558)
KRB 1R Tax losses not recognised 3,560 4,542
A SR B B B Y Tax charge at the Group's effective rate
BUAS (22,152) 55,646

JBe B

AR A B IR AR AR T
HHIERRBIRE -

11. DIVIDENDS

respective of the period/year.

174 M4 E A B 7] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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12. BARMEMEE A A 12, (LOSSYEARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

B Osi8), B ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
B I LA B ) 4 40 T AR 1B BN 7] 0 ik The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
FiA A 39 P i A1) S 48 4 B 84T 8 profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
BN HEF- 15 %81,037,500,000 % (=% —— and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,037,500,000
£ 11,037,500,000 %) 515 o (2021: 1,037,500,000) in issue during the year.
AEBRBE-F - —HFRFE_—F The Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
T H = — Bk AT T year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
TEHE L -
I P A T 2 R T AL DU JE R The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:
(=N
TR B i
2022 2021
ARIFTFIT ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
BF Earnings
FHA R AR A BT R BEAF] (Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity
TR ARELS (B1R) holders of the parent, used in the basic
i earnings per share calculation (281,326) 174,578
JBeAr i H
Number of shares
7 Sotat S S
2022 2021
JBe Shares

FIE A 2 R BT I Weighted average number of ordinary shares
FENTEA TS E BN in issue during the year used in the basic and

diluted earnings per share calculation

1,037,500,000 1,037,500,000
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13. W2 Bkt 13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
W ErRd HE Uity HEMREEE At
Electronic Motor Other Leasehold
Machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements Total

ANERWTZ ARBTE AERTZ ARETE ARWTT ARKTZ
RMBUOO  RMB000O ~ RMBUO) ~ RMBUO ~ RMBUOO  RMBUOD

ZZ ="+ H=4—H 31 December 2022
REZZZE—H—H  Acl January 2022

FRA Cost 1,207 10,624 1,031 1,761 7,155 21,778
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (685) (6,624) (465) (348) (6,086  (14,208)
i T A Net cartying amount 522 4,000 566 1413 1,069 7,570

RZZBZZHE—H—H> A1 January 2022, net of

I it accumulated depreciation 522 4,000 566 1,413 1,069 7,570
e Additions 198 1,494 79 1,100 1,141 4,012
HE—FREAR Disposal of a subsidiary

(WaE30) (note 30) = (76) - (119) - (195)
e Disposals - (16) (229) (15) - (260)
E NI (Wiko) Depreciation provided during the

year (note 6) (173) (1,964) (103) (1,246) (1,715) (5,201)

REZZTHEFTA Ac31 December 2022, net of
=t—H: accumulated depreciation

b it 547 3,438 313 1,133 495 5,926

/S S o Y | At 31 December 2022:

=t—H:

FRA Cost 1,405 11,674 694 2,604 8,205 24,762
it Accumulated depreciation (858) (8,236) (381) (1,561) (7,8000  (18,836)
i A Net carrying amount 547 3,438 313 1,133 495 5,926
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13. P38 Bkt o) 13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Wl ETE i ety HEWEEE Mt
Electronic Motor Other Leasehold
Machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment  improvements Total

ANBBTE AEWTT ANRKTT ARKTT ARNTT ARKTT
RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO

ZRZAEFZAZEY 31 December 2021
H

RoFE-—E—H—H At 1 January 2021
A Cost 899 9,160 988 48 4350 154
Zitihg Accumulated depreciation (309) 4,675) (363) 3) (,075) (8425)
JRE (A Net carrying amount 590 4485 625 45 1,275 7,020

MEZFZZ—%—H—H>  Ac1 January 2021, net of

bR 25T E accumulated depreciation 590 4,485 625 45 1,275 7,020
E Additions 381 1,200 146 2,077 2,745 6,549
YRR A ] (M3E29)  Acquisition of subsidiaries

(note 29) 1 363 1 314 60 739
e Disposals (74) (33) (104) (666) - 877)
ERFHETE (ko) Depreciation provided during the

year (note 6) (376) (2,015) (102) (357) (3,011) (5,861)

MEEZ—HF+TH=F  At31 December 2021, net of
—H > JIREFHE accumulated depreciation 522 4,000 566 1413 1,069 7,570

REZ %+ A At 31 December 2021:

= =1 ¢

AR Cost 1,207 10,624 1,031 1,761 7,155 21,778
it Accumulated depreciation (685) (6,624) 465) (348) (6,086)  (14,208)
FRIE A Net carrying amount 522 4,000 566 1413 1,069 7,570
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14. M
AR B B AN

A S TR B T A M T SR R
REW > HAMMF=20F -

WBRE LS BT s » AR _F ——4F
— A ESEE (B4 B0 B ) AR
A v B 1 3 0 D S S S o TR SE R
B34 o AEERTEE I H R A 4%
B RAE A RS E -

(a) MEFHMERE
A JEE A 52 1 o P RE L 2 A R

14. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases certain units in buildings as its office spaces, and lease

terms range from three to five years.

As disclosed in note 15, the Group leased four commercial properties
located in Mainland China from property owners, which are related
parties of the Group, in January 2021 for a fixed term of 3 years.
The Group recognised right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment properties and lease liabilities at the lease commencement

date.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the

R EEINT - movements during the year are as follows:
TR e s
2022 2021
AREH T ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB000
WAKE Office building
A—H—H At 1 January 8,194 6,856
DRI B B J 8 RIS (FEE29)  Additions as a result of acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 29) = 4,690
8 — [ F 2 w9 Decrease as a result of disposal of a
(Fi¥5E30) subsidiary (note 30) (260) -
PresE H (ffatoe) Depreciation charge (note 6) (3,552) (3,352)
wt+—HA=1+—H At 31 December 4,382 8,194
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14. B ) 14. LEASES (Continued)
AR fE R AN (4) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) MEHMR (b)  Lease liabilities
A AL A £ 1 R R (L S 2 The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
me : the year are as follows:
- i ZE AR
2022 2021
ANRWFIT ANBWHTF T
RMB’000 RMB000
i—H— A IR EE Carrying amount at 1 January 150,404 10,722
K] i B A RO B Additions as a result of acquisition of
(Ff5E29) subsidiaries (note 29) - 171,411
A A RERR B LS, Accretion of interest recognised during
the year 6,060 4,524
Hh 8 — [ F g 2 m] i) Decrease as a result of disposal of a
(Fi5E30) subsidiary (note 30) (10,790) -
BES Payments (5,019) (36,253)
S SH R A GRIE Offsetting with amounts due from the
lessors (68,267) =
wt A=+ — BRI {E Carrying amount at 31 December 72,388 150,404
iR Analysed into:
B 5 £ £ Current lease liabilities 69,412 70,596
JEENHFH & Bk Non-current lease liabilities 2,976 79,808
GEN=S=L Gk RGN = e 79 i The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 35.
35 °
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14. M@ 14. LEASES (Continued)
AREEERAMA () The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(0 MNEXEIANEHEMENSHE (¢)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
mF : are as follows:
TR xR T
2022 2021
AR¥Fr ARBF
RMB 000 RMB 000
HE A EFLE Interest on lease liabilities 6,060 4,524
EAEEENITEER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 3,552 3,352
A BRI AR Y BH S Expense relating to short-term leases
(FEAFTELBAZ) (included in administrative expenses) 3,007 5,075
T 1 £ TR A AR B AR Total amount recognised in profit or loss 12,619 12,951
(d) FEZ B AU W AR H DS R B (d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) to
BHEMRE310) the financial statements
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14. A& @) 14.

LEASES (Continued)

ARG H AR AL

AR [ Fe A 2 P b A — JE R P B A
AR B AR N T B R TR RS 2
FEEHDRA S A » ZEIEHE
REREEHEMNZR (85 FHHE
FFk > TR B AR P HERR Y 6 B A I T
JEToh 8 T 4 L o T B AR A A B A O
A PO 7 o A 4 [ W R 1 e A 2 8
AL AR AE R EE AR » BB
AANRW42,257,00070 (ZFZ—4F A
R #21,833,00070)

BEAN > 7 B2 [ AR 2 AL 2 PR AR B
TR HR B A P B B B (B s) o
TRk — M B R AP AT a4 >
AR T T DL B R R A o AR [ T
PR A R NG R I N R A
A BEE AR 1,999,0007C (ZF
Z—4F s NR#2,966,00070) ©

REFEZZF+HZA=+—H  &AEH
A IR 2R 193 1 R 4 B ELAEL 5 A T 4 6
BRENBUCRASBAEMRMT

The Group as a lessor

The Group leased out retail stores of commercial properties in cities of
Fuzhou and Putian, Fujian province, Mainland China under subleasing
arrangements to receive rental income. Leases of retail stores are either
with only fixed lease payments or contain variable lease payments that are
based on pre-agreed percentage of sales recognised by the tenants and the
minimum annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease term. Rental
income arising from subleasing arrangements recognised by the Group
was recorded in revenue, with a total amount of RMB42,257,000 during
the year (2021: RMB21,833,000).

In addition, the Group leases its investment properties (note 15) of car
park spaces in Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income arising from car park spaces recognised
by the Group was recorded in other income, with a total amount of
RMB1,999,000 during the year (2021: RMB2,966,000).

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with

its tenants are as follows:

e S

2022

V-

RMB 000

—4ER Within one year 27,348
i —EER MR After one year but within two years -
27,348
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31 December 2022

15. #EWE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

MR

EX/E B
HAL AR #st

Leased

commercial

properties —

Car park  right of use
spaces assets Total
ANREFLT ARWTT ARWTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

“FCTHETZHZ4H 31 December 2022
it —H—HIREE Carrying amount at 1 January 21,600 144,890 166,490
N TAE R TS e R A Net loss from a fair value adjustment = (63,600) (63,600)
HE—HME AR (F5E30)  Disposal of a subsidiary (note 30) - (16,700) (16,700)
T ZHA=+T—HMIRME(E  Carrying amount at 31 December 21,600 64,590 86,190
—F-—H+-HA=Z+—H 31 December 2021

it —H—H IR E Carrying amount at 1 January 21,600 - 21,600
Wi BB A ) (B EE29) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) - 172,590 172,590
INTAE R TS s R T A Net loss from a fair value adjustment - (27,700) (27,700)
T ZH=T—HMMRM(E  Carrying amount at 31 December 21,600 144,890 166,490
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“ECEFTA=+—H
31 December 2022

15. #EWE @)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

%A T ) £ SE S A o I A Y
BT B = A A R o FRRE ([ R D)
B 7 A A 4 B TR T A Y
EWEYE (HsE14) - KEBENRE
W3 TS B S S A AR A (T =
Bt AT A SE R Al B sh A PR W) (1 22 T
D (I e St o el = =
T — HEA 2 AR 64,590,000 70 © A4
V0 ) 0 A S S A B e o A R E &
A S A 1 4 3 A 4R B A 3E 10 S R A
A o BTG A - B
SRR R R A o AR
A0 F T 8L T v R S A R
HEAT S R4 A (L A0 A (LB R e i (5
AT A o

AEEBEYER T F+ A=
T— A RFT

o

Location

The Group’s investment properties consist of car park spaces situated
and three leased commercial properties situated in Mainland China,
which are being recognised as right of use (‘ROU”) assets and subleased
by the Group under operating leases (note 14). The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2022 based on valuations
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited (“JLL"), an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
RMB64,590,000. The Group’s senior finance manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s senior finance
manager and the chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is

petformed for financial reporting.

Particulars of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2022

are as followings:

gl LR
R AT LB 23 5%
BEEAE A —E

b B A A A A T
TN B IEARRT & ol
B 168%E

v A AR AR T
M E R IEZE 0 & ol
His 1858

B TR AR A
B E L
FhE R B 1688%%

— 1 Floor, Longsheng Building
No.23 Hongwu road, Nanjing
Jiangsu, Mainland China

No.168 North, Shangqi road,
Fuzhou Mawei Zhenro Fortune Centre

Fuzhou, Fujian, Mainland China

18 Xinbao road,
Fuzhou Mabao Zhenro Fortune Centre

Fuzhou, Fujian, Mainland China

No.1688 Liyuan East road
Putian Fortune Centre

Putian, Fujian, Mainland China

ithe 0 ARG AR
Attributable

interest of

Use Tenure the Group
it AR 4 100%
Rental Medium term lease 100%
B ALY 100%
Sub-lease Short term lease 100%
L2 i) FRLA 100%
Sub-lease Short term lease 100%
i A 100%
Sub-lease Short term lease 100%
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15. BEW*E @) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
ARG Fair value hierarchy
TEAPARERBEY EN AP EHFE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
&4k : the Group's investment properties:

R E A BRI T A At &
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using

WS EAWEE EAATEE

2 i\ Yk LN € At
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(%) (B=%) (=8

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ABBTE  ARETL  AR¥TT  ARETL
RMB000 ~ RMBU000  RMB000 ~  RMB000

SO IE AT Recurring fair value measurement for:
RN THERE
— Hfi — Car park spaces - - 21,600 21,600
THEMEE Leased commercial properties
— SR ~ ROU assets - - 64,590 64,590
- - 86,190 86,190
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15. BeEWE @) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
INAE 8 B (45) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

A Z T A= HEAU TR A FER &
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

mENG  EATEE EATEE

2B PN (- PN (G st
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(#—%K) (FE=H) (F=#)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANRETT  ARWTZT ARFTT AREFTL
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
SLUTIE B AT THY Recurring fair value measurement for:
BN THERE
—Hify — Car park spaces = = 21,600 21,600
HEHEME Leased commercial properties
— R RE ~ROU assets - - 144,890 144,890
- - 166,490 166,490
AR > 55— RRELE AP ERHE During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
[ A RS > B = A N M A ol between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021:
(ZF=—F ) - Nil).
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BEWE )

LR 75 45 B W) A (6 B A £ (5 9 S
TR A B

I5.

Ml

Valuation technique

Bf TR AL AT B TS 2 5
) L H s » AR
U EREL/ESEIRTY

Car park spaces Direct comparison method-based
market observable transaction
of similar car park and adjusted
to reflect the conditions of the

subject properties

HElBEE T
{6 PR RE

IR B
LA ON-Yi S
T AR AT A B

ROU assets under  Income approach -based on market

operating lease rents of all lectable units of

the properties are assessed and
discounted at the market yield

expected

A S 9 i 355 B e i 0 AL KR b
e o BT AR R OKE T e R
PR A FER RS A -
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key inputs to

the valuation of investment properties:

R AT  \ i A2
Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
S —E -
2022 2021

BREAOTEEE (rEE ARW 25,0002 ARW2340007CE
B AFEER) ARH 26100008 ARH261,0007C

Market unit price per lot (the RMB225,000 to RMB234,000 to
higher of the market unit price, RMB261,000 RMB261,000
the higher of the fair value)

TG R (TSR ARW6s R N S
R ATEBIE) ARHE7.378 AE®6.87C

Market yield expected (the higher RMBG6.5% to RMB5.7% to
of the market yield expected, the RMB7.3% RMBG6.8%
lower of the fair value)

& HEF IR B A ARW3.678E AR#327TE
& (Bl a8 » AFE ARHF6.97C AR#7.37T
i)

Assessed prevailing market rents, RMB3.6 to RMB3.2 to
per square meter per day (the RMB6.9 RMB7.3

higher of the prevailing market

rents, the higher of the fair value)

A significant increase in the market unit price per lot and market rent,
or a significant decrease in the market yield would result in a significant

increase in the fair value of the investment properties.
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16. GOODWILL

16. W&

e i TET A

2022 2021

ARHToc AR T

RMB’000 RMB 000

—H—HBBAKIREFE  Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 766,626 59,537

W R B A ) (B GE29) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) - 707,089

R B Impairment of goodwill (228,849) =
A= A K& Cost and net carrying amount at 31

BT 7 December 537,777 766,626

WrZH=1+—H: At 31 December:

A Cost 766,626 766,626

ZEH(E Accumulated impairment (228,849) =

R T HE Net carrying amount 537,777 766,626

T 2 1k Ak

F ATl # AR H509,758,000 70
(ZF =4 NR¥748,351,00070) >
E S 28 PG PR A A L E A A
([IE ST 35 1) AR BR v 2 o 58 2 Dol (B s
AR #228,849,00070 (=& = —4 ¢
) o AT i ] 4 B Y AR 0 B ST
fAE o T a% S AR P A A L W
18 7 A (L R A 52 B A7 A SR Y 4 A
FHEMBLAE R E R o B EEIN TS
BT IS EE T R MR B > R4
PEMBEEEEMMRABERLE
A SR TE S LA B T W > B4
PR B ) TE R AR T A O A R D
Fit o AEAREE —F - _F+_H
=T —H IR EEEE AR
228,849,000 7C ( & . —4F 1 fE) o

Impairment testing of goodwill

An impairment loss of RMB228,849,000 (2021: Nil) based on the
recoverable amount of RMB509,758,000 (2021: RMB748,351,000) was
recognized on goodwill in relation to the CGU of Zhenro Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (“Zhenro Commercial”).
The recoverable amount has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period performed by the management with the
engagement of an independent valuer, JLL. Due to the intense market
competition and cyclical fluctuations in the real estate market, revenue
growth rates and gross profit margin for the CGU of Zhenro Commercial
decreased as compared to the budget, which resulted in a corresponding
decrease in the expected future cash flows of the CGU. As a result, the
Group recognised an impairment loss of RMB228,849,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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16. Fi% @)
T2 P R R )

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Bl et B FEEH HE R R R TR ARE B (B
Annual
revenue  Gross profit Terminal Discount
CGU Principal business Goodwill  growth rate margin  growth rate  rate (pre-tax)
ARBTI
RMB 000

e .y Y = |
31 December 2022
IRRER WEE
Jiangsu Aitao Property management 19,507 3% 12.6% 3% 17.7%
TLRRARAE IESE8L
Jiangsu Sutie Property management 40,030 3% 44.5% 3% 17.9%
IERT% EES7ES ¢
Zhenro Commercial Commercial property

management 478,240 7~12%  43.8~48.0% 3% 17.5%
Z“FF+ZR=tH
31 December 2021
TTHRER UESC#E
Jiangsu Aitao Property management 19,507 3~5% 12.3% 3% 16.8%
TLRRHRE UESELE
Jiangsu Sutie Property management 40,030 3~5% 45.1% 3% 16.9%
IE5R [EES7E S8
Zhenro Commercial Commercial property

management 707,089 10~15%  54.5~61.4% 3% 15.5%
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16. W% ) 16.

[k iR R NE

b B e A DA 0 0 5 2
R T RBOEAT - B 18 F e 177 B
80 7 5002 9 B e B840 B
Vi BT K B 26 L SRR T

GBI — BT RGBL R B R BLAT G B
Sl fz e BEL AP 6057 A ] LB,

W g A e A — R REA H R TR RO B
G AR B T Bk £ Y R R A R LA
EE AR BEZ — -

B — R EE 2 B £l B A
FEHER B THA ~ 2 A B A
JRA o %G B SR TR X A AL
B 1 EL B M) SR AR A T 4 S KF R R

24t

ﬁ,ﬁo

B R — M RBAT TN > %
Vit R RS £53.0% o

BE-F-_HF+ZHA=1+—H &7
g ] < R A0 B < A o IR TR L 9 2

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of the above-
mentioned CGUs. The following describes each key assumption on
which management had based its cash flow projections of the CGUs to

undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific

risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth rate — The predicted revenue growth rate of the
CGUs for the five years subsequent to the date of assessment is one of the

assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations.

Gross profit margin —The basis used to determine the estimated gross
profit margin assigned is the cost of staff costs, subcontractor costs
and other operating costs. The assumptions reflect past experience and
management’s commitment to maintain its gross profit margin at an

acceptable level.

Terminal growth rate — The terminal growth rate was estimated to be

3.0% which has taken into consideration the prevailing industry practice.

Details of the headroom measured by excess of the recoverable amount

over the carrying amount of the CGU as at 31 December 2022 are set out

BRTEIFHEM G ERI T as follows:
TR TH
2022
AR
RMB000
LR T Jiangsu Aitao 53,154
TLRRBRSE Jiangsu Sutie 27,110
N JHE S Zhenro Commercial =
80,264
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16.

8 ) 16.

T I A AR )

2 S B 0 A 17
BEEATHT » TR R L HTA Rl B
RS 58 00 1 0T T S R %
St Y B R Y LT
547 1 T M ) 4 25
WETH (109 W A 3 - BRI - A0
R ETEC LR

WA A SR R 1

Decrease in annual revenue growth rate

B

Dectrease in gross profit margin

A s = AR A

Decrease in terminal growth rate

MBI R

Increase in discount rate

ALEEHER L EREESENE
AR A AT AT 5 2 W] RESE B 4 R R
TR 5 e I Tk ok 35 1 e T (0 208 3
3 SVANEINIY TS iy e -
Z_HEZ—F+ZH=+—H  &%EH
B B TR B T SRR o K O 2
B R A o

0 EZRMFE LA M AR Zhenro Services Group Limited

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Management of the Group has undertaken sensitivity analysis on
the impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets forth the
hypothetical changes to annual revenue growth rate, gross profit margin,
terminal growth rate or discount rate that would, in isolation (with all
other variables remained constant), have caused the recoverable amount
of CGUs of which goodwill was impaired to be equal to their carrying

amount as at 31 December 2022:

LR TLRRE T IESET €
Jiangsu Aitao Jiangsu Sutie Zhenro Commercial
26.63% 7.78% EN il
26.63% 7.78% NA
7.43% 8.99% ENE

7.43% 8.99% NA
A 6.33% ENE

NA 6.33% NA

40.92% 5.57% ENE
40.92% 5.57% NA

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions of the value-in-use calculation would
not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the
CGUs of Jiangsu Aitao and Jiangsu Sutie. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, the management of the Group determined that no impairment of

goodwill should be recognised for Jiangsu Aitao and Jiangsu Sutie.
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17. HAbSeIB %

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Ligis ®PH% s
Customer
Software  relationship Total
ANRETFL ARBFFL ARBFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—F- &+ -A=Z+—H 31 December 2022
WoE - HF—H—H: At 1 January 2022:
LA Cost 7,138 61,021 68,159
Bty Accumulated amortisation (2,539) (13,493) (16,032)
HRE T Y Net carrying amount 4,599 47,528 52,127
RNoE - FE—H—HM Carrying amount at 1 January 2022
HR T {EL 4,599 47,528 52,127
nNE Additions 4 - 4
HEE A A (M5E30) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 30) (153) - (153)
& Disposal (124) - (124)
SENFHE S (FiEo) Amortisation provided during the year
(note 6) (1,055) (6,102) (7,157)
WoE - —F+—H Carrying amount at 31 December 2022
=+—HERE 3271 41,426 44,697
“E - HFEt+H=1+—H At 31 December 2022:
A Cost 6,865 61,021 67,886
ZEHE Accumulated amortisation (3,594) (19,595) (23,189)
R T Y Net carrying amount 3,271 41,426 44,697
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31 December 2022

17. Hfbie % o)

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

LIS &F IR HEt
Customer
Software relationship Total
NRETT ANREFILT AREFIL
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R ZHA=+—H 31 December 2021
R-F_—%—H—H: At 1 January 2021:
A Cost 4,539 35,919 40,458
Z Accumulated amortisation (1,015) (8,6406) (9,661)
HRE AT Y Net carrying amount 3,524 27,273 30,797
R_F_—F—A—HH Carrying amount at 1 January 2021
HR 1w B 3,524 27,273 30,797
nE Additions 2,081 - 2,081
W KRB A 7 (B EE29) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) 680 25,102 25,782
e Disposal (191) - (191)
SENFHE S (FiEo) Amortisation provided during the year
(note 6) (1,495) (4,847) (6,342)
WEFEZ—F+H=1—H At31 December 2021 4,599 47,528 52,127
AZ -+ H=1T—H At31 December 2021
ﬁSZZIK Cost 7,138 61,021 68,159
BT Accumulated amortisation (2,539) (13,493) (16,032)
AR TH ¥ Net carrying amount 4,599 47,528 52,127
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18. RB B A A HE 18. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
—F o TET A
2022 2021
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB000
L E Share of net assets 1,180 980
A F SN T REER T Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:
A At
e GRS E SR HEMERE T 2 1L EEEH
Percentage of
ownership interest
Place of registration attributable Principal
Name and business to the Group activities
F U TR S Y S A TR /] e A 48% ES g
(M REEE )
T T R S A PR ] PRC/Mainland China 48% Property management
("Ai Tao Feng Hui”")
PR 2 SR AT RS A R R/ e A 3 49% Y EScpt
P 2 SR R A PR PRC/Mainland China 49% Property management
A 1o B L 2R Sk i 5 A PR B 49% YISEE B
AR e T I SR 0 R i M5 A R PRC/Mainland China 49% Property management
T T AR LI AR5 A PR ) PR 49% YEEE
T R T 4TI AR A PR ) PRC/Mainland China 49% Property management
A B2 T W ) B R OB A A N ) The Group's shareholdings in the associates comprise equity shares held
EIE A FRA o through wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
T A R EE S A The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
g MR Group's associates that are not individually material:
e < TE T
2022 2021
AR T AR#T T
RMB 000 RMB000
S A 2 R I AR B R 4R Share of the associates’ losses for the year - —
G E AR 2 TERSIRAE  Share of the associates’ total comprehensive loss - -
AL E AR 2 BER Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
R T AR AR investments in the associates 1,180 980
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RO FZH=+—H
31 December 2022

19. ik 6 AL AT HE sk R

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

—EC M
2022
Bl E A
W sk I B
Present value
of minimum

finance lease

—nEDven e

2022
KA B
TR IE

Minimum

finance lease

receivables receivables
AR¥TI AR¥Fr
RMB000 RMB000
Al AR B IR S R R A Finance lease receivables comprise:
—4ENR Within one year 38,046 41,491
FER &L Gross investment in the lease i N/A 41,491
PN SIS PN Less: Unearned finance income A N/A (3,445)
JREMS Fo AR AR B K B Present value of minimum lease payment
receivables 38,046 38,046
AR ER= ZEi=ti i) Less: Allowance for credit loss (2,166)
35,880
iV Analysed as:
JEI: Current 35,880
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CERCCEFZA=ET—H
31 December 2022

19. b ¥ ALETHEOSK R )

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

- S/ S TR
2021 2021
REREHE mEMERE
NI B (E JRE R BRI
Present value
of minimum Minimum
finance lease finance lease
receivables receivables
AR BT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Al AR B RS RO LA Finance lease receivables comprise:
—4ER Within one year 60,327 62,884
B In the second year 55,118 61,975
A In the third year = -
115,445 124,859
FHE S Gross investment in the lease A N/A 124,859
ISP SIS PN Less: Unearned finance income AN N/A (9,414)
JRE TS AL 5 £+ B (B Present value of minimum lease payment
receivables 115,445 115,445
RN izt L] Less: Allowance for credit loss (2,932)
112,513
ST Analysed as:
&I Current 58,795
FERNHA Non-current 53,718
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“E -+ A=+—H
31 December 2022

20. B 5 HEWGK

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

- St —E-—F

2022 2021

AR¥Fr ANREFI

RMB’000 RMB000

5 EWCE IR Trade receivables 325,293 340,602
BE Impairment (42,626) (29,770)
282,667 310,832

52 5 M Wik T AR IR R ) 3 A B A
B~ FESEE M - Ak (IR LA
B b R I o o PSS AR A R B
ok A B AR R T IR B B S A

A R T B 5 Y S0 o 4R 4
AR 0 B 5 RES SR A SR 7 BT 80 T

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners, community value-added services
and brand and management output services, and are due for payment
upon the issuance of the demand notes in accordance with the terms of

the relevant agreements.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

TR TR TR T

2022 2021

ANR¥TFr AR T T

RMB000 RMB 000

—4ER Within 1 year 245,165 275,919
—RB T 1 to 2 years 36,709 33,210
—H=kE 2 to 3 years 793 1,703
282,667 310,832
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ZERCCHEFZH=Z+—H
31 December 2022

20. © G MEWCGKIE () 20.
25 S SEL L IR O B T

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

RO THE TR T4
2022 2021
AR ARBF
RMB 000 RMB000
4] At beginning of year 29,770 21,090
BB (ko) Impairment losses, net (note 6) 16,850 11,100
LSS PR Rk i [ 3E Amount written off as uncollectible (3,994) (2,420)
FR At end of year 42,626 29,770

BEZ-_F+-A=+—HILEE
F) M SRR A0 I 7 o R — TR B B
36 1 8 5 OB S T 4 R T K
B -

JA i H FT 5 B R 488 e A A AT A
A > Et R TEHIfE HE R - S RTY
B BLAT B S 2 8 & 5 0
AL B B R R E o AR R R
MRS B Wb i SR ks H AT
5B BRI I~ IR L B R A A
TR 00 TE Y 5 2 T 5 R o

— PR A B 5 M ORI A I
ZAE RO S R B AT A
5 53 MEWGRIR TS T DAL

The increase in the loss allowance during the year ended 31 December
2022 was due to a special provision and the significant changes in the

gross carrying amount of the trade receivables which were past due.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than three

years and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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20. B 5 MEWCGKIE (41) 20.
SRR P B 0 A

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

5 REWCHR IR 9 15 S B B0

“FCEYZA=Y—H

Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

31 December 2022

g |
Past due
—EPT —ETE CFE=E Ht
Less than 1to?2 2t03
one year year years Total
TG EEIE®  Expected credit loss rate 7.2% 28.5% 92.0% 13.1%
AR Gross carrying amount
(NR¥T ) (RMB’000) 264,120 51,318 9,855 325,293
HHEREE Expected credit losses
(NR¥FIT) (RMB’000) 18,955 14,609 9,062 42,626
—E-—F+_H=+—H 31 December 2021
Past due
—EDF —F 4 —R=E HEt
Less than 1to?2 2to03
one year year years Total
TR EER%E  Expected credi loss rate 5.8% 21.0% 70.7% 8.7%
AR (E Gross carrying amount
(NR¥Tr) (RMB’000) 292,760 42,022 5,820 340,602
HEE Bk Expected credit losses
(NR¥Tr) (RMB’000) 16,841 8,812 4,117 29,770

Ak ER B R S E B AR
#110,004,0007C (& - —4 : AR
275,024,0007C)  iE— 5 T2 B MR
32.

198 1E48 M7 4 B4 B A 7] Zhenro Services Group Limited

In addition, the trade receivables from related parties amounted to
RMB110,004,000 (2021: RMB275,024,000). Please refer to note 32 for

further details.
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21. TAS K~ IR ME ORI B

21.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

HAb ¥ OTHER ASSETS
A B
2022 2021
ABRHT T ANR#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000

RFEZF 0 FI 2R3 Payments on behalf of customers

to utility suppliers 33,194 30,254
¥4 Deposits 29,473 15,415
T4 Prepaid rental 27,291 -
HAh T A Other prepayments 6,174 5,044
f] B THGK Advances to staff 3,948 4,212
oAb RE S IE Other receivables 31,648 3,351
131,728 58,276
WifH Impairment (3,892) (1,915)
127,836 56,361

TR BRI~ H Al B AR R B A 7 Y

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of prepayments,

WAH RS E T other receivables and other assets are as follows:
R TE TR T
2022 2021
AR AR¥F
RMB’000 RMB'000
A At beginning of year 1,915 1,018
AR (o) Impairment losses, net (note 6) 1,977 897
FER At end of year 3,892 1,915

FEHIE B G185 88 S 2% A 45 [ 1 8 14 s
Bt sk > RABRR T EETHE -
B T DR R DA B R DL R R
AR 2 T (@A) o i F
SO A=Z T HEANERRE
4.0% (ZEZ—4 1 3.6%)

Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach
with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31 December 2022
was 4.0% (2021: 3.6%).
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22. Bl& R8T Bk 22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

ZECME R

2022 2021

ARHTFoc AR T

RMB’000 RMB 000

B4 SR AT HE Bk Cash and bank balances 691,627 741,530
B AR A Less: Pledged deposits 2,896 4,616
ZREE Restricted cash 3,640 =

W4 MIREEEY) Cash and cash equivalents 685,091 736,914

WoZE - F+A=Z+—H AR
#2,896,000 0 (ZF ——4 : AR
4,616,00070) M 8R1T 45 BRAE B I 1E b 45
T EEH S4B LG > B
HALEIRBR EER2ITE - AEM
I ERAT 4 Bk N RH3,640,0007C (ZF 2
—AF ) SRR EIGE A o

MR-+ A=Z+—0 BHEK
WITHEBRUARBEAENESEL AR
#685,045,00070 (—F ——4F : AR
734,664,0007C) o N RMEART] B i Hh i
Fy EoAb B > M AR B A S I A 3
R I A5 W ~ 5 R I ) A 3R > A
[ 0 O A0 O T S A T A B 2R 2 4R
FTA N B S 4 oy Eo At B 8 o

FROR RAT I B & % 18 B RT3 )
MZHFHE - RITH BRI MR EE R E
I I KL BRI RAT - B BBl E 5
B B9 e A (SR (LA A

200 4R 4E A B /A F Zhenro Services Group Limited

As at 31 December 2022, bank balances of RMB2,896,000 (2021:
RMB4,616,000) were pledged as security for performance of certain
property management contracts and bank balances RMB3,640,000 (2021:
nil) were restricted as to use by the Group due to asset preservation

actions against the Group.

At 31 December 2022, the cash and bank balances denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB685,045,000 (2021: RMB734,664,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash

equivalents approximated to their fair values.
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E——ft-A=+—H
31 December 2022

23. R B MERTSKH 23. TRADE PAYABLES
R AL BT H I B 5 AT SR An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of year, based on the
IREE AT invoice date, is as follows:
e S E A
2022 2021
ANBRH T ANR#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
—HR Within 1 year 144,674 197,760
R —4F Over 1 year 4,805 4,358
149,479 202,118
B 5 AT SOE B A wHE B — Mk Lhoo H A The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally setcled on
BRA&SH o 90-day terms.
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RO FZH=+—H
31 December 2022

24, A ME A ok 2R B RE il 2 24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

i3 e —F

Notes 2022 2021
ANRIWFFI ANR¥T
RMB’000 RMB000
B4 Current portion
BRI Contract liabilities (a) 154,974 151,277
B lii% & Deposits received (b) 26,837 29,749
R AP R Receipts on behalf of community residents 81,033 88,787
JRE AR L5 S A | Payroll and welfare payable 79,509 103,887
LAt R AT 8 Other tax payables 14,169 32,234
TR Rental advances 44,326 56,327
Hth Others 17,110 17,671
417,958 479,932
HERIHARS 7 Non-current portion
EAEi&n Deposits received (b) 11,114 10,177
429,072 490,109
BT - Notes:

@ RERIG R R AR E Y
PRMRES ~ TS EIG MRS - A R (E R
5 % it 5 A o M S U R G
SRR B o AR B T
JR S T I (RS & 4 TR A DR S 0 ]
RBEF ATk - B W TES HEAT 2 1
WO — S 3 AR E AR E )
SIS o

b)  HEEERAEF R GOR R
< DUR KR AR B e

202 IEAMMF LA AR Zhenro Services Group Limited

(a)

(b)

The contract liabilities as at the end of year are related to short-term advances
received from customers for the Group’s property management services, value-added
services to non-property owners, community value-added services and brand and
management output services. The Group receives payments from customers based
on billing schedules as established in the property management and value-added
services to non-property owners contracts. A portion of payments is usually received
in advance of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from property

management services.

The balance mainly represents security deposits received from tenants and suppliers

and rental deposits from lessees.
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31 December 2022

25. b BBAT B IR 25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
A ;o Y & [y e =|
At 31 December 2022
BB (92) W ARETT
Effective
interest rate (%) Maturity RMB 000
i Current
SRAT R — A Bank loans — unsecured 4.2-44 R 68,772
2023
1= NE e G Current portion of long term
RATRR — A Bank loans — secured 5.0 R = 6,040
2023
SRAT R — AR Bank loans — unsecured 4.6-5.1 TR 10,205
2023
85,017
FEEP Non-current
SATER — KM Bank loans — secured 5.0 ZRINE 15,100
2026
100,117
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31 December 2022

25. wl BBUT BILABAT K () 25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

REFZ—F+ZH=1—H
At 31 December 2021

HBF (%) W AREFIL
Effective
interest rate (%) Maturity RMB 000
P Current
SRATRR — AR Bank loans — secured 5.2 R 20,000
2022
AT — KA Bank loans — unsecured 4.4-5.2 TR 57,044
2022
RIAE Y BRI ES o Current portion of long term
SRATRER — A Bank loans — secured 5.0 R 8,000
2022
SATEI — KA Bank loans — unsecured 4.7-5.2 R 2,500
2022
87,544
B3 Non-current
WATER — AN Bank loans — secured 50 —EFTEEFE 19,180
TR
2023-2026
SRATE N — HEIEA Bank loans — unsecured 4752 —FE R 11,375
e~y 112
2023-2024
30,555
118,099

204 4R 4E B A B A F Zhenro Services Group Limited
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—E——ft-A=+—H
31 December 2022

25. wHBEAT BIABAT K 4 25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)
R TR
2022 2021
ABRHT T ANR#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
T E Analysed into:
— N Repayable within one year 85,017 87,544
pay: Y
“RERERNEE Repayable within two to five years 15,100 30,555
100,117 118,099
A (K N REEEE YR E e The Group’s borrowings are all denominated in RMB and bore interest at
FZRFTE o fixed rates.
WoZ A=t —H > AEE As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings of
K ERATfE s N 21,140,00070 (% — RMB21,140,000 (2021: RMB27,180,000) were pledged by 70% equity
—4 0 NR¥27,180,00070) AN EH— interests of Jiangsu Sutie, a subsidiary the Group.

1] B J 2 7 YL R AR SERE) 7096 JECHEHEE AT
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26. MEHEBLH 26. DEFERRED TAX
N RIEBURE E R BB T The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as
follows:
R JEE T T Deferred tax assets
Rl
SHEERE SRAMER  EHRX HEAR it

Losses

available for

Impairment offsetting
of financial  against future Accrued Lease
assets taxable profits expenses liabilities Total

NERTE  ARRTT  ABWFT  ARFFT  ARETT
RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUWO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO

R-ZF-—F—A—H At 1 January 2021 6,103 10,035 2570 2,686 21394
A A Acquisitions of subsidiaries 801 5,788 134 42,853 49,576
ERFEA/ (IBRA) BAER  Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or

TEAERIA (fi3E10) loss during the year (note 10) 6,771 (7,200) (906) (7.938) 9.273)

MWZEZ—4+=H=1—H Ar31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

) o R 13,675 8,623 1,798 37,601 61,697
HEREAR (k30 Disposal of a subsidiary (note 30) (501) (90) (33) (2,697) (3,321)
ERFIA/ (TR E)BEK  Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or

IRAERLA (W3 10) loss during the year (note 10) 32,174 1,737 79 (16,807) 17,183
REFZZZEFZA=—H  At31 December 2022 45,348 10,270 1,844 18,097 75,559

206 4R 4E B A B A F Zhenro Services Group Limited
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26. MEHEBLH a0 26. DEFERRED TAX (Continucd)
IEAERLIE B Deferred tax liabilities
"EMF:  MEHE
EEEEGS EMEEE  ATEZH RGO it
Amortisation Change in
of other fair value of
intangible  Right-of-use  investment Finance lease
assets assets properties  receivables Total
ANRETL  ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETFx
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
R_F_—F—]—H At 1 January 2021 6,818 1,715 3,001 - 11,534
iR T 2 ) Acquisitions of subsidiaries 6,276 1,170 43,148 36,369 86,963
g W FTA) / I AR Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profit
BRI (it 10) or loss during the year (note 10) (1,212) (838) (6,266) (4,227) (12,543)
e Sy Y At 31 December 2021 and
o £ S S 1 January 2022
—H—H 11,882 2,047 39,883 32,142 85,954
HERE AT (H:E29) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 29) = (65) (4,175) (3,463) (7,703)
FERFIABRIELEHIE  Deferred tax credited to profit or loss
(BifzE10) during the year (note 10) (1,526) (886) (15,900) (19,167) (37,479)
R-Z-—#E+H At 31 December 2022
=t—H 10,356 1,096 19,808 9,512 40,772

REEZZHF+ZH=+—H  HES
&> & TEEREEEKAMED R
B IABR VLR AL o LA Jy i B 5 o
e H T R HAS B A

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

TR B i
2022 2021
AW T ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB000
TR SR BRI R N R A Net deferred tax assets recognised in the

IRIER TG 1 (H consolidated statement of financial position 53,383 20,321

A A B IR LR R Y Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
n.LfJé THE IR consolidated statement of financial position 18,596 44,578
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26. EHEBLIE ) 26.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

A JE R I £ (49)

Mg Crh A RILAE S BRIE)
N3 A o A b R ST R AR T AR A 2 1)
A B 18 R B i 1096 O TR
Bl wHEH _FFNF—H—HgE
HAEAR -ZZEETF A=+ —H
HEELE B o i b Bt B A I 4R
B TR A R AR A B E o TR
R TEIRL S o A BB AR A
10% (ZFZ—4H 1 10%) o FIk » &K%
V9 2k % S5 A P B A ST 1 A )
WA ZZENFE—A— HREENRAF
43R B e S5 Sk TR T B o

WEFEZZFEFZH=+—H > i e
7S [ 1 o A R T R 2 D ZE
A TR FUBE A S R H 28 E 455 1Y) T 4 B e
SRAT AT AR SE B IE o 0L T R AR T4
b 7 B A A A S BUR 5 T
PR 74 10 1 ¥ 4 A R B AE T B A
VERAR A SE B 0 B8 2 1 > WA vl
1) 548 20 A K T i 4 B A R B s A o L
B v A 3t R 2 A IR TG
b e R R B IR L AR
#INRH398,679,000 0 (ZF Z—4F :
ANE#390,668,0007C) °

7 S5 I8 75 B 2 B I E AR W B TEUBS 4R A A
[R2,765,00070 (F = —4F &) » H
A0 PRI T % 5 B A A R A A
R B A o R F =
H="1—H » A5 7 B 2 A
BLIE R 1B A N R #40,959,0007C ( — %
—4F  NER#28,440,00070) » Al K
B % 56 SR A5 Tl 1R Y BT 0 Y R A R R i
AR R A — 2 FLAE S o phy R R 2
BIAEER AR ZRMREAR > H
S8 B R 5 AN K AT il i B LB Uik R
DK 88 ME B B 1 - 0T i % S e 1
HERRIEHEBLIE B E o

8 IR 4E A R A 7 Zhenro Services Group Limited

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10% (2021: 10%). The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings

generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. This is because the Company controls the dividend
policy of the Mainland China subsidiaries and the directors determined
that the Group’s fund will be retained in Mainland China for the
expansion of the Group’s operation, so such retained earnings are not
likely to be distributed in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amounts
of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB398,679,000 (2021: RMB390,668,000).

The Group has tax losses arising in Cayman Islands of RMB2,765,000
(2021: nil) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group
had tax losses arising in Mainland China of RMB40,959,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB28,440,000) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the entities in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will

be available against which the taxable losses can be utilised.
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27. AR 27. SHARE CAPITAL
R CTHE TR T4
2022 2021
LA Number of ordinary shares:
EE Authorised:
BT {EL0.002 38 T 5488 Ordinary shares of US$0.002 each (2021:
(ZFZ—4 1 0.002% 1) US$0.002) 20,000,000,000  20,000,000,000
BT : Issued:

IR T (E0.002 35 7T 178 Ak

Ordinary shares of US$0.002 each (2021:

(—FE - —4F 1 0.002%E7T) US$0.002) 1,037,500,000 1,037,500,000
- S CE T
2022 2021
AR ARBF
RMB 000 RMB 000
SFE Amounts:
EEIT AR Issued and fully paid:
B R T (EL0.002 35 T 1Y) 3278 i Ordinary shares of US$0.002 each
(ZFZ—4 1 0.0027T) (2021: US$0.002) 7,867 7,867
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28. it
S 25 A I 6
HEH) B IR M ES 107 BG4
R -

(a)

(b)

(c)

BB e A8

A 5 R A1 B T 52 A 2 B I )
BEY - REEEEAHEHE
N IR > B
i (B AR AR 2 7 RE A L AR T 3 S B
TR HHSEBS R T S S A
BT > AERAREMNK -

e N

B —FE—-NE+—HEHTL
46 1B Wk - A2 F 1l Sky Bridge
BE1750,000 AL ) 5 B H (E 1
FITTHCE B - DL 000
Future Prosperity (BVD B (B
Future Prosperity (BVI)%%KE?;’FI
JBeAR ) o T i R A AR A T FBCAR 1
I ERE Sy E A A

B Bl

ARSI 5 O Gt 3 A S P B e
A B R 7 9 T AL
SIS I A 1 R 0 B A 0t

% 2 B B

AR T B0 2 ) i B 8RR Y
J& 2~ R ALAR R AR > AR BIZH
EBRBLR AR 109 52 0% 2 &L
BRMHAT - LT RR AR B g 51 e A
o AR R R M E A
19509 o AR B B B fiY e 2
i A A B A ) A T R A A
BR - R 8L B ot A T S IR B A 4R
BHOEIRA  HeHAR R R EA
BONKEEEMEAR25% - f#
A AR B A BUAM R HLAt
Mg PABERBEREDK -

28.

0 IEZ MR 4E A R A Zhenro Services Group Limited

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the

current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity on page 107 of the financial statements.

(a)

(c)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the constitutional
documents and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium is distributable as dividend on the condition that
the Company is able to pay its debts when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business at the time the proposed dividend is to
be paid.

Capital reserve

Pursuant to the share swap agreement on 7 November 2019, the
Company issued 50,000 consideration shares of the Company of
US$1 each to Sky Bridge in exchange for 1,000 shares of Future
Prosperity (BVI), representing the entire issued share capital of
Future Prosperity (BVI). The excess of the par value over the share

capital of the Company was recognised as capital reserve.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital contribution
of the then holding company of the companies now comprising the
Group, after elimination of the investments in subsidiaries for the

Reorganisation.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group
is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as
determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
subsidiaries, the statutory surplus reserve may be used either to
offset losses, or to be converted to increase share capital, provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital of the respective entities. The reserve cannot be
used for purposes other than those for which it is created and is not

distributable as cash dividends.
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29. BB 29. BUSINESS COMBINATION
TE28 R S5 B Zhenro Commercial Management
WZFEZ—FAHZTIHE » REFED On 29 June 2021, the Group acquired an aggregate of 99% interest in
BB AR W91 7 # 7o ) IE 5 30 2 42 Zhenro Commercial Management from Zhenro Properties Group with a
B IE 2 P SR A 299 M RE 4G © cash consideration of RMB891 million. Zhenro Commercial Management
F % S B o A P R R S are principally engaged in the provision of commercial operation and
S PR TG 0 R B o management services for commercial properties in Mainland China.
MRIEUCE T > MIEA M EEHEE Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, if the net profit of Zhenro
R YA —HIEFEEN Commercial Management (the “Guaranteed Profit”) for the year ending
R (TR )RR AR B 60 H 31 December 2021 is less than RMBGO0 million, the second instalment
WOt RIS IR IEE A N R will be adjusted in RMB as 356,400,000 — (60,000,000 — a*) x 99% x b*
356,400,000 — (60,000,000 — a*) x 99%
xb**J0
& A NR Mo H #ot - BIELMEEM g being an amount less than RMBG0 million, represents the net profit of Zhenro
BE-Z -+ -HA=1+—H1EEMN Commercial Management for the year ending 31 December 2021
A
ok BRI 38 5 (B M N R 891 B ek s represents the total consideration of RMB891 million for the transaction divided
VA E99% IR HE » 2 22 FRR A R W60 by the corresponding 99% equity interest and then divided by RMBG60 million,
Hon (MERAMEEHEE-Z - —F 1 namely the Guaranteed Profit of Zhenro Commercial Management for the year
ZHE+— B IEEE S RFIE) - ending 31 December 2021.

£ Annual Report 2022 211



B 5 A B

Notes to Financial Statements
“E - HF+—HA=+—H
31 December 2022

29. EBEHE ) 29.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

ERWHEEH 4) Zhenro Commercial Management (Continued)
% 7 S S Y ]k P B AR The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Zhenro
W H W0 A AR - Commercial Management as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
e i e R
INTE
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Wit ANR¥ T
Notes RMB000
VIENET Property and equipment 13 739
id<v/ES Investment properties 15 172,590
RS = Right-of-use assets 14(a) 4,690
HAh T & Other intangible assets 17 25,782
il g*ﬂgﬁgq&%ﬁ Finance lease receivables 133,163
R R TE Deferred tax assets 1,437
2 5 e IR Trade receivables 3,076
WEW E%Hﬁ%/l} i oL Due from related companies 57,209
FEATRRIE ~ Heg KAt R IR R IR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 5,962
Bl RaRITHE o Cash and bank balances 46,045
B 5 At 3R0H Trade payables (5,340)
At 8 AF T R T Other payables and accruals (38,771)
BT ESRATIE K Interest-bearing bank borrowings (8,500)
HEARE Lease liabilities 14(b) (171,411)
JRE S At T Tax payables (2,078)
TRACHIIA B & Deferred tax liabilities (38,824)
AN TEFHAR AT A & Total identifiable net assets at fair value
TFEAR 185,769
FEPEIRE SR Non-controlling interests (1,858)
WS i R £ Goodwill on acquisition 707,089
LABL & S AY Satisfied by cash 891,000

212 EAMMFEE A A R Zhenro Services Group Limited



485 e i

Notes to Financial Statements
~E - HF+—HA=1+—H
31 December 2022

29. BBEPE @) 29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

IERFEEEH (@)
AR B AR BT T -

Zhenro Commercial Management (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the above acquisition is as

follows:

ANRBHT T
RMB 000
BaERH Total cash consideration (891,000)
HEA B4 B RAT A B A Total cash and bank balances acquired 43,045
wWE_F_—H+_A=+—H Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
14 BE A BRI R B S acquisition included in cash flows from investing activities
SEYRERE GIAREES) for the year ended 31 December 2021
PifFBlalie) (847,955)

A S T 5y o B A 2 B TR N R
1,263,5007C © %5 58 5 A £ 38 3 7}
A TR A B At 2 TR G 4 R R RE AT B
BASC -

C T 0 77 B o 0 R0 I 2 7 S B
[ T T S5 1 ) B A 2 [ O I
5 15 B OF 2 O TR T I ¢ 2 B H At
Fldi o FERLBTRH BT = A AT o

SRR 5 i BT P (E R RE > DA
[~ EF AR 4 S g | AR
e N1 (5 B 0 48 2 1 R A AP E R
B o MU A SR A TR AT B AL - 5L
RAER-F - —F+-A=+—HH
NHERE -

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB1,263,500 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are included
in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected synergies
and other benefits from combining the assets and activities of Zhenro
Commercial Management with those of the Group. The goodwill is not

deductible for income tax purposes.

The contingent consideration is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date, which was recorded as “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss”, and measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognise
in profit or loss. Based on the assessment performed by the management
of Group, the fair value of the contingent consideration at 31 December
2021 was nil.
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30. HEHEA 30. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
WE F - HEF A= —HILE During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed 100%
o AEELE TR IEAHESTHA equity interest in Changsha Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Ltd.
BRA R ([ 100% B HES — 1/ (“Changsha Commercial”) to an independent third party. The principal
B =0 RUPHEN EEEY A activity of Changsha Commercial is in the provision of commercial
b 7R SE 0 SE 5 TR property management services.
Bk ANBWTFIT
Notes RMB000
Jir 1 e VR (E Net assets disposed of:
LEI T Property and equipment 13 195
BEYE Investment properties 15 16,700
G Right-of-use assets 14(a) 260
H b fIY & e Other intangible assets 17 153
FilE AR B B YGRIA Finance lease receivables 12,946
B 7 BENGOR Trade receivables 472
B i B e W) Due from related companies 3l
TEAT I ~ $ie e S HA RN IR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 26,888
B& RBEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,551
B 7 et 30 Trade payables (1,409)
At B A5F R e R T Other payables and accruals (16,565)
JREASS TR By O Due to a related party (64)
HEAE Lease liabilities 14(b) (10,790)
TS At T Tax payables (1,035)
Rl B Deferred tax liabilities (4,382)
27,951
6 B A W 2 s Gain on disposal of a subsidiary -
27,951
AR F 7 3 Satisfied by
BE_F_=HF£+"HA=1+—H Cash consideration to be received during the year
1R AR B & AUE ended 31 December 2023 27,951
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30. Hi B HHE 2 6l ) 30. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Concinued)
WE-FZ -+ H=1T—HILEE An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents for the year
FRBERBARAZEERESSEY ended 31 December 2022 in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as
WA FHEAHWE follows:
ANRHT 7T
RMB 000
HaeME Cash consideration =
B EZ 4 KR TR R Cash and bank balances disposed of (4,551)
AR &2 HE R E% Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
B ERA disposal (4,551)
31. BABER R 31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
@ TEEBERS (@) Major non-cash transactions
TN Ry o 7 ] L 4 7 A During the year, the Group agreed with Zhenro Properties Group
W EE o DUE AT IF 25 i 7 4 B 4 to offset the outstanding amounts due from Zhenro Properties
{0 FEL 4 315 0 1F 45 Hb 25 45 ) ok 1 e Group by the rentals payable to Zhenro Properties Group with a
R e NR¥68.267,000 total amount of RMBG68,267,000.
JG ©
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31. BRE Bl IR R ) 31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Coatinued)
(b)y ROVEEEhEARNSEEH (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

il BRI R HEA BAGk
HERHA 5 H AR e ¢ HEAK
Interest-bearing

Interest bank and other ~ Due to related

payables borrowings companies  Lease liabilities

ANRETFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARFFI

RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000

RZF_—~F—A—H At 1 January 2021 - 27,375 4,885 10,722

i B S A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries - 8,500 = 171,411

FIEBE3 Interest expenses 3,589 = = 4,524

ENHREESRE Cash flows from operating activities (5,589) = (2,270) =

REFHHERENE Cash flows from investing activities - = - -

MEEBEHLNE Cash flows from financing activities = 82,224 (21) (36,253)

REZZ—E+ZA=+—H  At31 December 2021 - 118,099 2,594 150,404

FIER Interest expenses 5,659 - - 6,060

HEMEAR Disposal of a subsidiary = = (64) (10,790)
B R A8 Offset by amount due from related

companies = = = (68,267)

BEEHEHSNE Cash flows from operating activities (5,659) - (490) =

MEEH ARSI E Cash flows from financing activities - (17,982) - (5,019)

REZZZHE+ZA=+—H  Ac31 December 2022 - 100,117 2,040 72,388
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31. HABSRERWE @) 31.

(© HERBEWN
AT B R LT B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash

mF : flows is as follows:
-~ TET A
2022 2021
ANBHTT ANRET T
RMB’000 RMB 000
R ETEE N Within operating activities 3,007 5,075
RS TSN Within financing activities 5,019 36,253
8,026 41,328
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32. BT B 5 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BrHAbM T RRE S50 » AREHE (a)  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere, the Group had
BB T HEAT DA T 28 ) the following transactions with related parties:
e S TET A
2022 2021
ANRWFTFIT ANRWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
1] A Bt 2 R A K Repayment to related companies
TE 5 b E AR T Y Joint ventures and associates of Zhenro
BEERE AT Properties Group - 21

AT RE A A EE R Property management services, value-added
fIRHS ~ Ha (A MR AS K b h A services, and brand and management

&gy Hﬂﬂ[ﬁ%(i) output services rendered to related
companies (i)
1F 5 b e 42 3] Zhenro Properties Group 140,436 278,454
ERERE AT Zhenro Group Company 4,813 9,264
E%i@%f‘é i % ’KE‘& 1> %& Joint ventures and associates of Zhenro
/Nl Properties Group 22,233 82,314
TESEEE B RIS 2 An associate of Zhenro Group Company 6,866 5,723
174,348 375,755
TR TET A
2022 2021
ANRIWFFT ANEHT7T
RMB000 RMB 000
1] B A R SO AT AT EFUH Lease payment to related companies
IE48 S Zhenro Properties Group 5,019 37,527
%A 3L 5 TIN5 B 7 4L IR e These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms
1 K B R AT o and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.
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32. BTG5 ) 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) BB T W R AT G (b) Outstanding balances with related parties

TR B i

2022 2021
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB000
B W A i A ) R Due from related companies:
o Trade related
IE 53 2 AR 1 Zhenro Properties Group 89,881 223,842
ERAEEAF Zhenro Group Company 1,036 16,303
E%ﬂﬁé £ H 1) é’ ’%’ 2 Joint ventures and associates of Zhenro
PN Properties Group 18,168 34,879
TESEAE B w2 ) An associate of Zhenro Group Company 919 -
110,004 275,024
W ASF A A W) R Due to related companies:
2yl Trade related
IE2E M E & oo 2 Joint ventures and associates of Zhenro
k- N Properties Group 1,836 2,390
JREAS TR BB A W) O Due to related companies:
FEE ZHH Non-trade related
IEAMEEEN A8 RE Joint ventures and associates of Zhenro
3=yl Properties Group 204 204
R B it
2022 2021
ANRBFTF I ANRHT 7T
RMB’000 RMB 000
FE AL - Lease liabilities:
B oM Trade related
E 4 e 4 Zhenro Properties Group 72,258 149,605
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32. BTS2 B )

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) SRRSO R AN SRR () (b) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

R TME TR TR

2022 2021

AR¥FIT ANRBFIT

RMB000 RMB’000

JRE WS R W A ) kT Due from related companies

] Gross amount 231,547 287,731
@E{E Impairment (121,543) (12,707)

110,004 275,024

An ageing analysis of the due from related companies as at the end

TR S AR R 58 5 H 0 R A bRl
1R 138 4 722 1 S B W 2 ) ORI R

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

AT allowance, is as follows:
ZECME TR
2022 2021
ANR¥F ANRBTT
RMB’000 RMB 000
—4EN Within 1 year 63,305 260,871
= —kE 1 to 2 years 46,699 14,153
110,004 275,024
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32. BAWRTG 25 (#) 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Concinued)
(b) BB B ARAT K5 (47) (b) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)
JRE M B 2 ) K T (M 1R 8 A The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of due from
ST - related companies are as follows:

L S — B

2022 2021
AR T ANR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB000
4] At beginning of year 12,707 -
R R T (Ffte) Impairment losses, net (note 6) 108,836 12,707
FER At end of year 121,543 12,707
R M B 7 2T A ~ A Amounts due from related companies were unsecured, interest-free
B BESMREEA - with a credit term of 3 months.
£ B 7 1 E i IEE'J%?%E{%% The calculation of loss allowance for receivables arising from
= ph B T B R b S A related parties was carried out by an independent specialist, JLL.
i o
() A LT A B W (c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
TR e i
2022 2021
AEH T AR
RMB’000 RMB000
o A g B AR Short term employee benefits 10,591 16,479
RIRE FHBI LR S AL g 48 A Pension scheme contributions and
social welfare 844 936
AT EEEWANBRHMAE  Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 11,435 17,415
T < ) — 2D R R HE T Further details of directors” emoluments are included in note 8.

8o
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33. $BNE A TR 33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
FHER & T H IR E T The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

are as follows:

W_F_—H+_-H=+—H At 31 December 2022
LR E Financial assets
TS AT R 1Y
SRE R
Financial assets
at amortised cost
ARBFIC
RMB’000
2 5 REWSEIE (i3 20) Trade receivables (note 20) 282,667
JRE s P B j%‘/}( (BtEE32) Due from related companies (note 32) 110,004
Ft ATATEK HABREWCHKIE R Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
HAth & E’Jﬁr‘ﬂ%? Fat21) and other assets (note 21) 94,371
IE%&%E THERR (FfFEE22) Cash and bank balances (note 22) 691,627
1,178,669
SR AR Financial liabilities
Fe 8 A S HR 1
AL
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
ARKFT
RMB 000
B oy MEATEIE (FfeE23) Trade payables (note 23) 149,479
FEA A BT B H S REFH & /Y Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
GRE R ( &ﬁuaaz4 (note 24) 136,094
JREAF B g 7 IR (Bt E32) Due to related parties (note 32) 2,040
FHES1T ﬁﬂﬁ%#\ (FfF5E25) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 25) 100,117
387,730
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33, SN AR T ) 33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
woEZ - —#+-H=+—H At 31 December 2021
SREE Financial assets
FeHREH LA BRI
GREE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
ARBFr
RMB’000
b= EJWEW% M]L?ZO Trade receivables (note 20) 310,832
WEWE%W/ A O (FfFEE32) Due from related companies (note 32) 275,024
Tt AR ﬁﬁﬂE WK . Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
Hibg E’Jﬁﬁﬂl%é MaE21) and other assets (note 21) 51,317
B& T sRAT s (M et22) Cash and bank balances (note 22) 741,530
1,378,703
LREfE Financial liabilities
PSR LA B R Y
GRE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
AR¥F
RMB000
5 M HIE (Bt 5E23) Trade payables (note 23) 202,118
nf)\ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ JUH S EGTE M Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
SRl A ( BH.:EM (note 24) 146,384
WEH WA 5 3kE (B EE32) Due to related parties (note 32) 2,594
B R &/ﬁ\:ﬂﬁ Bk (B 2s) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 25) 118,099
469,195
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4, BT HBMAEMEE AT 34 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

e 8% FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AN ] 4 i T 2L A B T (B S A T (IR AT The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,
(B A B A T A0 4 Rl T ELBR AN other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to
T fair values, are as follows:
$ i AFE
Carrying Fair
amounts values
ANRWT T ARTT
RMB'000 RMB 000
—E -t -A=1+—H 31 December 2022
FHESRAT RHAM K — FERIM  Incerest-bearing bank and other borrowings —
non-current 15,100 15,353
At A5 FkIE — FR B Other payables — non-current 11,114 10,822
26,214 26,175
—“F_—HFt+-A=+—H 31 December 2021
FHEERAT BHAMEZK — JERIEE  Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings —
non-current 30,555 31,066
oAb REAT I — JE R Other payables — non-current 10,177 10,177
40,732 41,243
EHE OB e KRITA R - EO Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank balances,
Wk~ FEATEAT EOE - A R R trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
T HA B B A B E B T receivables and other assets, amounts due from related parties, trade
T~ E o AT EE ~ A H AR T 2R payables, financial liabilities included in the current portion of other
Te METH 25 ) 4 b £ A 1) RSO 40 ~ JE payables and accruals, amounts due to related parties, and the current
ASF R 7 TR DA Bt S SR AT B A £ 3K portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to
F10 B0 340 350 4 )/ 1 B HL R T (ELAR 7 their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these

FER RS TEOE IR - instruments.
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34.

2 b L0 2 P B A T
J& B )

755 1 x w] BB B ol B R A
o BEME SR T AL PEF R
WRBFESY « 7 a) B Bs B BK B o) A ]
HEHGMEH o RAWE A > AR
P B 7 i < il TR 10 58 ) I B B
J Al (B 9 5 B A\ R o (B Pl B
BB 7 B S HE Vo A A ) AR
S0 i L A (R T R A R
LG

SRR BRI AL B 5
(BRI A t BRR51) 55 TR
BTRNSEAIE - LTk R T)
PR g A

AT B ERAT B F At 5 3KH0 JE BB 820 R K
At JBE A5F R TE B F B3 20 9 2 - (H T8
0B B ~ 15 B B i
B8 H R TR B0 5 AL A SR
RB G EETHBGE - RER A
L A SRR RAT R S 4
JRBR RGN EK o

34.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team reports
directly to the board of directors of the Company. At each reporting
date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the board of

directors twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, and non-current portion of other payables have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and other payables was assessed to be

insignificant as at end of year.
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4, BT HBMAEMEE AT 34 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

J& 8 ) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
WRATFEZAE: Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
R HETZAZ+T—H 31 December 2022

WEWS  EATEE B
ZHE  WABE BEEEARRE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(5—#) (5B 8) (H=8) At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ANEWBTFE  ARBETLE ARETFT AR¥TE
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB00O

BT K HoAth Interest-bearing bank and other

A — JREIH borrowings — non-current - 15,353 - 15,353
At A FIH — Other payables — non-current
BN - - 10,822 10,822
- 15,353 10,822 26,175
—E - HETZH=E+—H 31 December 2021

WG EAAUBE BT
ZHE WAME WA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(—%) (5B =%) (FE=5) st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ANRHTT ARETT ARETLT ARETIL
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB00O

BT K HoAth Interest-bearing bank and other

- — JF R borrowings — non-current = 31,066 = 31,066

At A FKIH — Other payables — non-current
FE RN - - 10,177 10,177
- 31,066 10,177 41,243
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35. Soh s e e A B D R B R 35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AEENETESHM TAEEAHEFAR
5 E WSS TR I 4 Pl E B WS W /4 )
BOE R ATEATFOHE A R iR
REMEEN EMEE - Bla BRI
Bk - B 5 ME AT SROR - B B B A R R
DL RR A A 1 A5 3K0H e et 4 9
AR > R SR TR AR T A
EA - AEEBEAHMERMEE LA
R A B R B R AT R A AR
oo ZEEMIANEEANTER AL
KEMEEME -

i

ALE M THEENEZERR S
JEL By B B B o — T o AR
V36 HL e T AR B AR ST SR o A
5 T P T R O % S L e e A AR
VR Sz A0 8 A 07 A S HEA TR R 3
AR o AL R A RET TS
WA TR - EEGFEMILRES
TR i BLEOR > AR T

(a) AP B
RS WA 52 5 MR © %R
B PR DA T e 3 T B AT
BRI A2k o (EASEIR ) > R
TCABHE T - S5 e )
BREBAWE - ~F " EMHTH
RAEIF R LR LAEATHY -

WAL BRI DB - BE
RABREEUALBERIER

Al B o P kA A T 4 A1 L e
Fi/s o A4 B RTBESEA B A1 I
E N BN E R (EBOR - A
S s U b S LB o 0 TR
i B2 IR 75 i RS R

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include financial
assets included in trade receivables, amounts due from related companies,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, cash and bank balances, trade payables, amounts due to related
companies, and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, which arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as lease liabilities and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings. The main purpose of these financial

instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit
risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative
strategies on its risk management. To keep the Group’s exposure to
these risks at a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and
other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and

they are summarised below:

(@) Foreign Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from the bank balances denominated in HKD and USD.
But the Group considers the risk exposure to foreign currency
fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$ remains pegged to the

US$. This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.
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35. S 5 M g 4 L H B B BOOR

(#)

(b)

i BB

A 5 68 T A ) 2 5 B MR
oA e O DA R B SR AT B
s S -

A5 B TR RT I BRAT R B D SR
A% A FE B R AR B
T BRSO SR A0 A7 A
A RAT AR R B RAT ©
B BRI AN 6 DR % S SRAT I A T
EEALMERBAK

A T e BB A B ey 1 R 5
ST B Lt R MR TR BT A £
JEBRREAL > R A T B 1
JEATHE I A 40 B 4 E AT I A
RE 7 BRI o A7 B AF 1A RERR A ek
AR 0 R BRI s 20 K21

A A 2 L M WA 5 = 7 F 5 2 B M
B BRSSP R
YR AR G I A S R S =7
F 52 5 B WS L B L Al B WA TE Y
BEREEEFEE - 1o > LM
FRAE B P MRS A B

P B 51 & 50 7 4 P 7 O iR T AR
{f o

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

228 IEZE M4 M A PR /A W Zhenro Services Group Limited

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade

receivables and other receivables and cash and bank balances.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with cash and bank balances since they are substantially deposited
at state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized listed banks
in Mainland China. Management does not expect that there will be

any significant losses from non-performance by these banks.

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables and other receivables from related parties is considered
to be low, since related parties have strong financial capacity and
commitment to meet contractual cash flow obligation in the near
term. Information about the impairment provision recognised

during the year is disclosed in notes 20 and 21.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk for trade
receivables and other receivables from third parties as the customer
bases of the Group’s trade receivables and other receivables from
third parties are widely dispersed. In addition, receivable balances

are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.



485 e i

Notes to Financial Statements
~E - HF+—HA=1+—H
31 December 2022

35. MBS BB AT B H B R IR 3.

(#7)

(b) fEEEE
T 5 TR B L 10 e 4 R 4 s Bt
T £ 1R AL S S BRI 1S
BEE A A5 R B 9 5% v R B
0> EEEREHER (% H A
VR AT M o A B AR B %
TR T S ) R 4F K A B o
I o TR B4 R E OB
o

“ECTETZA=ZTH

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts

for financial assets.

31 December 2022

A
RS
12-month L L A
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
AR BTRE O BSRBR O Wi it
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

NEHTE ARETE ARETT ARETT ARKTZ
RMBUOO  RMBUO  RMBUOO  RMBUO)  RMBUOD

BVl e Finance lease receivables 38,046 = = = 38,046
Bl R Trade receivables’ - - - 5293 305093
T R A ) SO Due from related companies

HAHER Trade related - - - BT BLT
AT IR » AR Financial assets included in prepayments,

AbEEnomEsE other receivables and other assets

— g - Doubteful”* - 98,263 - - 98,263
W RITEE Cash and bank balances

— AN — Not yet past due 691,627 - - - 691,627

729,674 98,2603 - 556,840 1,384,776
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

31 December 2021

12f8 A B
[FEE#R
12-month EREENENEEER
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
AR FCRER O BEMB Wilonk st
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARKTE AREFL ARKTFT ARKTT ARETL
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
Bl e Finance lease receivables 115,445 = = = 115,445
B el E Trade receivables” = = = 340,602 340,602
T B & ) SO B 5 Due from related companies
B Trade relaed = - - WL Bl
AT ATTHE » FABREMGE R Financial assets included in prepayments,
HEENEMERE other receivables and other assets
— g ~ Doubtful” - 53,232 - - 53,232
eI S Cash and bank balances
— A — Not yet past due 741,530 - - - 741,530
856,97 33,232 - 628,333 1,538,540
* A A 1 E P S AL T I & For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
5 RE R TE T o > 570 438 4 4 i impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note
TR B 52 20 h B % o 20,
sk

wk

i st AT 3R~ Al FE e 3R
T M Y i DA B
WA Wi > ) g TEL ST R A ) L 3 4
FHBUR 7% 48 4 1 R 0 5 YRR
ERN A N EE
GEMEEZFREREHAE
Wl B ZEMEENGFEE
AL % -

0 IEZ MR 4E A R A Zhenro Services Group Limited

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets and amounts due from related companies is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the

financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity

of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank

and other borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on an

ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on

the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

At 31 December 2022

SEAUNE
wEk  MAZIE YL Hht
Less than More than
3 monthsor 3 months and
ondemand  within 1 year Over 1 year Total
ANRHTFL  ARFTT  ARETFT  ARWTT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
B AN F0E Trade payables 149,479 s - 149,479
HAMER I RIERT 2 Other payables and accruals 136,094 - - 136,094
At BT R Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 1,770 86,901 15,855 104,526
HEAR Lease labilities 876 70,988 3,118 74,982
T BB 708 Due to related parties 2,040 - - 2,040
290,259 157,889 18,973 467,121
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35. MBS M PR ¥ PR H B % 35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

(4 AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) WLEIE 4R (¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Wz -_—F+_H=+—H At 31 December 2021
3MA AR
HER WAz DL At
Less than More than
3monthsor 3 months and
on demand within 1 year Over 1 year Total
ANEWTE  ARETT  ARFTT  ARKTx
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
B AR Trade payables 202,118 - - 202,118
FRERFARMET B Other payables and accruals 146,384 - - 146,384
it BT R A 3K Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 632 91,303 32,075 124,010
HEAR Lease liabilities 942 75,935 83,200 160,077
JEAT By R Due to related parties 2,594 = - 2,594
352,670 167,238 115,275 635,183
d) EARSH (d) Capital management

AL EE A Y £ 2 E AR R R
RS B R K 1Y RE ) AR A
MVEEAS L o DASCHRRH 3685 3 A
REEHKAL -

7SR B AR R AR DL AL B
BB E AL o IAERF S %
BALME > AEE NG IR T
RS 1 BRI A Bk
Pl -

232 AT 4E B A B A F Zhenro Services Group Limited

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares.
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35. MBS M PR ¥ PR EH B %K 35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

(# AND POLICIES (Continued)

) BEAREH 4) (d) Capital management (Continued)
AAEEME A EA AR RETES The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
A EAR AR E T & B interest-bearing bank and borrowings divided by total equity as of
FEAR BB SRAT B A 3Rk DA RE £ 48 the end of each financial year. The gearing ratios were as follows:

HEtH - BAAMLERNT

—EBUE E A

2022 2021
ABRHT T ART T
RMB000 RMB000

FHERAT S A K Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 100,117 118,099
25 4B Total equity 1,169,291 1,473,301
EARABILR Gearing ratio 8.6% 8.0%
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36. A2 vl BR LA 36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
{%\ WAEWA > A BAL R BRI R Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
BORHANE - the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—BUR A

2022 2021
AR NRBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
e H NON-CURRENT ASSETS
i i NliOE i 8=y Investments in subsidiaries 2,524 2,524
WEEE CURRENT ASSETS
JRE S BA MG o ) R E Due from related companies 1,039,133 980,599
HoAth s IR Other receivables 49 49
B4 RERATHE R Cash and bank balances 45 439
B G Total current assets 1,039,227 981,087
M A CURRENT LIABILITIES
Hopth e ] 508 Other payables 255 1,314
TR A NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,038,972 979,773
FEE NET ASSETS 1,041,496 982,297
£ EQUITY
BEA R HEA N\ REASBE 2R Equity attributable to owners of the parent
JeA Share capital 7,867 7,867
fitits Reserves 1,033,629 974,430
WA A TOTAL EQUITY 1,041,496 982,297

234 IEAMF LA AR Zhenro Services Group Limited
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36. ARl BHRDER ) 36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
W - Note:
AL rEIEREMT A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
Bt A B RSB ok A
Exchange
Share Capital fluctuation
premium reserve reserves Total
ANR#TT  AR¥FT ARWFT ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
WoE - —F—H—H At 1 January 2021 1,134,189 2,168 (68,011) 1,068,346
A R 4 T e R 4R Total comprehensive loss for the year (72,625) - (21,291) (93,916)
REF-—FE+TH At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
St—HR-B- 4
—H—H 1,061,564 2,168 (89,302) 974,430
RN ¥ Y Total comprehensive income for the year - - 59,199 59,199
REFZZETZA At 31 December 2022
=t—H 1,061,564 2,168 (30,103) 1,033,629
37 ﬂ}ﬁﬁj%#j@ 37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FHEN B SHEZH =t — AR The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
AR HE T8 A B board of directors on 31 March 2023.
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BET-H=1+—HI4E

Year ended 31 December
“RITE R ZEIRR O ZFNE ZFOAF
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ANRETFE ANREFIL AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

A Revenue 1,141,293 1,335,788 1,102,752 716,220 456,308
EH Gross profit 252,856 428,111 383,375 244,489 120,983
SEN (B538) / (Loss)/profit for the year

i ) (280,749) 177,641 175,159 109,160 39,524

BEARHEA N (Loss)/profit for the year

JREAG 4R A attributable to owners of
(B48) /WAl the parent (281,326) 174,578 171,647 105,358 39,612
#+=H=1+—H
As at 31 December
RO SR RO CZFE ZENAE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ANBR¥TFrx ANRETIT ANREFT ANRETT ARETIL
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
FE & E Non-current assets 733,535 1,076,026 145,325 139,912 42,931
B E Current assets 1,248,014 1,442,542 1,830,355 389,194 808,162
B AR Total assets 1,981,549 2,518,568 1,975,680 529,106 851,093
i A fE Non-current liabilities 47,786 165,118 29,761 40,919 503,108
mE AR Current liabilities 764,472 880,149 562,283 360,127 293,965
B EAE Total liabilities 812,258 1,045,267 592,044 401,046 797,073
% 4R Total equity 1,169,291 1,473,301 1,383,636 128,060 54,020
SNk 3 Total equity attributable to
W?m%ﬁﬁﬁ@“ﬁ owners of the parent 1,163,643 1,451,140 1,363,566 111,502 54,108

1E 28 IR %5 55 45 i A 5] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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